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Definitions

“AltX”  Alternative Exchange of the JSE Limited, on which Ansys listed in 2007 

“Ansys” or “the company”  Ansys Limited (Reg no. 1987/001222/06), listed on the JSE’s AltX

“B-BBEE” Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

“CBDO”   Chief Business Development Officer. Ansys Limited’s CBDO is Kgabo Badimo  

(appointed 1 June 2014, resigned 30 June 2015) 

“CEO”  Chief Executive Officer. Ansys Limited’s CEO is Teddy Daka (appointed 4 June 2013)

“CFO”  Chief Financial Officer. Ansys Limited’s CFO is Rachelle Grobbelaar (appointed 8 February 2008) 

“COO”  Chief Operating Officer. Ansys Limited’s COO is Dave Howie (appointed 1 March 2014)

“CSI” Corporate social investment

“EIA” Environmental impact assessments

“EXCO” Executive committee of Ansys Limited

“FTTx” Fibre to (x) building, home and/or curb

“IBC” Inside back cover (of this integrated annual report)

“IFC” Inside front cover (of this integrated annual report) 

“IP” Intellectual property

“ISO” International Standards Organisation

“IT” Information Technology

“JSE”  JSE Limited incorporating the Johannesburg Securities Exchange, the main bourse in South Africa, and AltX 

“King III Report” or “King III”  King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa, 2009

“KPIs”  Key performance indicators – a set of quantifiable measures that a company or industry uses to gauge or 

compare performance in terms of meeting its strategic and operational goals

“NEPAD” New Partnership for Africa’s Development

“OEM” Original equipment manufacturer

“PRASA” Passenger Rail Association of South Africa

“Quadsoft” Quadsoft Pty Ltd (Reg no. 2001/004368/07), subsidiary of Ansys Limited that is dormant

“R&D” Research and development

“SABS” South African Bureau of Standards

“SAICA”  South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 

“SENS”  The JSE’s real-time news dissemination service

“SERC” Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee

“SHEQ” Safety, Health, Environment and Quality

“Tedaka” Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd (Reg. no 2002/024918/07), a telecoms solutions company acquired by Ansys  

 in December 2013 

“telecoms” Telecommunications sector (fixed line and mobile)

“the board” The board of directors of Ansys Limited, as set out on page 31

“the Companies Act” South African Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended

“the current year” The year ending 28 February 2016 

“the group”  Ansys Limited and its subsidiaries 

“the previous year”  The year ended 28 February 2014 

“the year” or

“the year under review” The year ended 28 February 2015

financial Definitions

“EBITDA”  Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

“FY”  Financial year, for Ansys ending 28 February

“GDP”  Gross domestic product

“HEPS”  Headline earnings per share

“IFRS”  International Financial Reporting Standards

“ROI”  Return on investment
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HigHligHtS

 Order bOOk maIntaIned at R200 million 

  HEPS up frOm lOss Of r3,58 cents tO  

earnIngs Of R4,44 cents

  Strong cash position

  Operating profit Of R17,3 million  

frOm prevIOus lOss Of r7.3 mIllIOn

  Competitiveness improved 

– expOsure tO fast grOwIng telecOms sectOr

  substantIal contracts secured In  

exIstIng busInesses (raIl)

  Returned to profitability

  drIve tOwards own IP products & service

  the acquisition Of Parsec Holdings

  achIeved Level 2 B-BBEE status 

 – black-Owned and cOntrOlled 
– 56% dIrect black sharehOldIng; 
– 20% black female

hIghlIghts/Our  
cOmpetItIve strengths
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OUR COMPEtitiVE 
StRENgtHS

  centre fOr  
engineering excellence

  In-hOuse intellectual  
and technology capital

  Level 2 B-BBEE

  sIze-enabled flexibility  
and adaptability

  sOlId client base

  establIshed reputation  
fOr client satisfaction

  cOst-effectIve,  
innovative solutions

  Solid strategic  
product partnerships
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abOut thIs repOrt

We are a black-owned and controlled  

engineering technology company specialising 

in the design and development of engineering 

solutions for the rail, defence, mining and most recently 

telecoms industries. the company has been listed on AltX, 

since June 2007.

Ansys’ head office is in Centurion, Gauteng.

This, our fourth integrated annual report, presents the 

financial results and the environmental, social and governance 

performance of the group for the year 1 March 2014 to  

28 February 2015, and follows our prior integrated report 

published in July 2014. The information disclosed encompasses 

all divisions and subsidiaries of the company, as illustrated in 

the group structure on page 11. These same entities are included 

in the company’s consolidated financial statements as set out 

on pages 68 to 131 of this report.

The content included in this integrated annual report 

endeavours to identify and explain the material issues faced by 

the group in terms of Ansys’ economic, environmental, social 

and governance performance. This should enable the group’s 

stakeholders to accurately evaluate Ansys’ ability to create and 

sustain value over the short, medium and long-term.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE yEAR 
Ansys has successfully implemented its turnaround strategy 

with revenue up 282% to R251 million from R65,8 million in the 

2014 financial year with the operating profitability for the year 

at R17,3 million. The group’s HEPS is up from a loss of 3,58 cents 

to earnings of 4,44 cents.

The group’s 2015 financial results have a full year inclusion of 

Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd (“Tedaka”), our telecommunications 

business, which has also provided the company with a strong 

foothold in the telecommunications industry.

During the current year, the company commenced the 

acquisition of a technology company, Parsec. This acquisition 

is in line with our strategy to become an IP-led, technology-

driven company with the strategic objective of becoming an 

original equipment manufacturer through in-house solutions 

origination. The Parsec acquisition will bring a broader portfolio 

of solutions to our mining, telecommunications and defence 

sectors and introduce information security to our portfolio.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The group’s executive directors are Teddy Daka (CEO) and 

Rachelle Grobbelaar (CFO).

Key data

Ansys Limited

Registration no.: 1987/001222/06

ISIN: ZAE00097028

JSE AltX

Share code: ANS

Listing date: 7 June 2007

Shares in issue (at year-end): 244 867 056

PROCESS FOR DEFINING REPORT CONTENT
This report is primarily targeted at our shareholders and 

potential investors.

Ansys has considered and applied many of the 

recommendations contained in the International Integrated 

Reporting Framework issued in December 2013. The company 

has also applied the majority of principles in the King III Report 

and explained any which have not been applied.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with IFRS, the JSE Listings Requirements,  

the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the 

Accounting Practices Committee and the requirements of  

the Companies Act.
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ASSURANCE
To ensure the integrity of sustainability reporting in the group, the following assurance has been undertaken:

NAtURE OF ASSURANCE ASSURANCE PROViDER

Business process

External audit Independent audit BDO South Africa Inc.

Empowerment

Employment equity Employment Equity submission Department of Labour
B-BBEE* B-BBEE Audit Verification EmpowerLogic

SHEQ

ISO 9001:2008 External quality assurance audit SABS

*B-BBEE – Broad-based black economic empowerment

A hard copy of this integrated annual report is available on request from the company secretary, and is also posted online at  

www.ansys.co.za.

For additional contact details please see inside back cover. 

We welcome your feedback and any suggestions you may have to enhance our future reports.
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consistently developing, producing,  
                         distributing and integrating  
niche world-class
          technology-driven   
   engineering solutions 
                 for harsh environments



grOup snapshOt

We produce, develop, distribute and integrate niche technology-

driven engineering solutions for harsh environments to  

improve client productivity and safety. Our range of standard 

and bespoke solutions is currently aimed at the rail, defence, 

mining and telecoms sectors.

As a centre of engineering excellence with extensive technical 

and business experience, we offer a mature engineering 

process and keen ability to understand our customers’  

technical requirements.

We intend Ansys to become a leading R&D engineering house 

by originating solutions that stand at the forefront of innovation 

and amass a cache of intellectual property for the group.

 LEVEL 2 B-BBEE

 ISO 9001:2008 ACCREDITED

  LEVEL 7 CONSTRUCTION  
INDUSTRy DEVELOPMENT  
BOARD (CIDB) RATING

 ALTX-LISTED

D E F E N C E

PROFit/(lOSS) CONtRiBUtiON
R5,9 million

(R2,3 million)

CONtRiBUtiON tO REVENUE AND PROFit OUR VAlUE PROPOSitiON

REVENUE CONtRiBUtiON

PROFit CONtRiBUtiON

R94,1 million

R29,8 million

R37,1 million

R9,8 million

R A i l

We provide complex trackside 
measurement systems and onboard 

train cab control and communication 
systems.

CONtRiBUtiON tO REVENUE AND PROFit OUR VAlUE PROPOSitiON

REVENUE CONtRiBUtiON

lOSS CONtRiBUtiON

R2,1 million

R4,1 million

R0,54 million

R4,3 million

M i N i N g

We provide rope testing and monitoring 
systems for the mining environment, 

which optimize business processes 
and maintenance management.

CONtRiBUtiON tO REVENUE AND PROFit OUR VAlUE PROPOSitiON

REVENUE CONtRiBUtiON

PROFit CONtRiBUtiON

R9,9 million

R2,7 million

R15,0 million

R8,2 million

We specialise in weapon 
system integration for air and  

land application.

CONtRiBUtiON tO REVENUE AND PROFit OUR VAlUE PROPOSitiON

REVENUE CONtRiBUtiON
R144,9 million

R13,1 million

t E l E C O M S

We supply transmission and 
networking products and services 

to the telecommunications industry 
covering wireline, wireless and 

enterprise networks.

 2015    2014

 2015    2014

 2015    2014

 2015    2014

• South Africa
• Botswana

gEOgRAPHiC FOOtPRiNt

• South Africa

gEOgRAPHiC FOOtPRiNt

• South Africa

gEOgRAPHiC FOOtPRiNt

• South Africa
• Zimbabwe

gEOgRAPHiC FOOtPRiNt
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geOgraphIc fOOtprInt

HEADqUARTERS
Centurion, Tshwane
Our geographical footprint extends 

throughout South Africa, Botswana 

and Zimbabwe with a strategic 

intent to expand further into  

Africa and beyond.

HEAD OFFICE 
Centurion 
140 Bauhinia Street,  

Highveld Techno Park

Centurion

PRODUCtS AND SERViCESKEY CliENtS

Trackside systems
•  Vehicle identification

•  Hot bearing detection
•  Load and wheel profile 

monitoring
•  Integrated Train Condition 

Monitoring  

•  Transnet Freight Rail 
• PRASA 

•  Transnet Rail Engineering
• Sasol

• SAPPI
• Botswana Rail

PRODUCtS AND SERViCESKEY CliENtS

• Rope Monitoring System
–  Continuous Rope Monitoring System

–  Mobile Rope Testing unit

•  Assmang
• Kumba

• Anglo Platinum
• Anglo Field Services

PRODUCtS AND SERViCESKEY CliENtS

• Avionics and communications
• Simmulators and consoles

• Test equipment

• Denel Aviation
• Denel Dynamics

• Airbus DS Optronics
• Denel Land Systems

PRODUCtS AND SERViCESKEY CliENtS

• Distribution of fibre and data cabling infrastructure
• Data centre design and implementation

• Structured cabling and fibre reticulation
• Network and equipment monitoring solutions

•  Vodacom
• Telkom

• Cell C
• MTN

• Dark Fibre Africa (DFA)
• Neotel

Onboard systems
•  Integrated display

•  Auxiliary display
•  Train communication

•  Train definition unit

• South Africa
• Botswana

• South Africa

• South Africa

• South Africa
• Zimbabwe
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vIsIOn, mIssIOn and values

OUR VISION AND MISSION
•	 To	enhance	our	clients	productivity,	safety	and	security	
•	 To	become	an	IP-led	originator	of	technology-driven	engineering	solutions
•	 To	produce	world-class	products	for	global	distribution
•	 To	progress	to	Level	1	B-BBEE	mid-term

We intend to evolve into the top diversified high technology company on the continent, leveraging our engineering excellence to 

create superior and competitive solutions for emerging markets, in a manner that our employees and customers will feel that we 

have contributed to their lives in a positive way. Our brand will be synonymous with innovation and quality.

OUR VALUES AND HOW WE LIVE THEM

OUR VAlUES HOW WE liVE tHEM

Integrity

• Treat our employees with care, concern and respect
• Robust corporate governance standard
• Actively implementing our Code of Conduct
•  Committed to promoting and maintaining respect for human rights
• Committed to environmental responsibility
• External assurance on financials

Technical 
excellence

•  Provide optimal engineering solutions to our customers
• ISO accreditation
• Stringent quality control

Delivery
• A customer-centric culture
• Aim to exceed our customer expectations
•  Deliver products and solutions to customers’ specifications

Making a 
difference

• Originate solutions
• Improve customers’ productivity, safety and security
• ROI for shareholders
• Transformation is a business imperative
•  Provide our employees with varied and stimulating work environment
• Responsible approach to our environmental impact
• Adhere to the principles of ISO 9001:2008

Integrated annual repOrt
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grOup structure

Our hIstOry

1987 Ansys established as a defence company (providing avionic computers/crash recorders to SAAF)

1998 Ansys entered Rail

1999 ISO 9001:2008 accreditation

2002 Achieved B-BBEE status

2007 Listed on AltX

2010 Entered Mining

2012 Restructuring commenced

2013 Entered Telecoms through acquisition of Tedaka

2014 •   Restructured and focused on IP  
•   Turnaround strategy started

       •  Black-owned and controlled

20,66% Black female

56,26% Black-owned

2015 • Drive towards own IP products and services  
• The acquisition of Parsec Holdings

Achieved Level 2 B-BBEE Status

AnSyS LImITEd

ANSyS LIMITED  
RAIL SEGMENT 

MINING SEGMENT 
DEFENCE SEGMENT

qUADSOFT 
PROPRIETARy LIMITED 

(100%)  
DORMANT

TEDAKA TECHNOLOGIES 
PROPRIETARy LIMITED 

TELECOMS SEGMENT 
(100%)
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This has been a challenging, but positive year for 
Ansys. We are beginning to see the fruits of our 
turnaround strategy. Our results are an indication 
that we can weather the negative macroeconomic 

environment and continue on our growth trajectory.

Our focus for 2014 comprised of three pillars, which included 

strengthening the leadership of the company, focusing on 

efficiency and bedding down the Tedaka acquisition.  

The Tedaka acquisition has helped us in realising our strategy  

of diversifying the organisation’s risk from over dependence  

on one key client in the railway sector, to a greater focus  

on telecommunications and defence. This is just the beginning,  

we are moving forward in our vision to create an IP-led 

company with huge footprints in the railways, 

telecommunications, mining, defence and information  

security sectors. We are conscious that we need acquisitions 

to achieve this vision, and that every acquisition must fit 

within this framework. We are ambitious about diversifying 

our revenue sources globally, and building a formidable skill 

base that allows us to innovate, while delivering world-class 

solutions to our client base.

HIGHLIGHTS
The company has moved from a position of loss to a position  

of profit for the first time in three years. This is all due to the 

hard work and dedication of all the staff in implementing our 

turnaround strategy. This is also a result of us growing our 

business with existing clients, and acquiring new business 

partners. The growth in the size of contracts we have won in the 

last year demonstrates the trust that we have earned through 

quality and on time delivery. We are unlocking the inherent 

synergies across our businesses and reaping the rewards of 

cross selling.

The focus on the bottom line in both the traditional Ansys 

business and the Tedaka business is yielding dividends.  

We are focusing on our margins and building relationships  

with our partners so that we are strategically aligned to solve 

their problems. 

I am pleased to note that we were able to reward our  

staff with bonuses this year for the first time since 2012.  

While this may not be significant in most industries, in ours  

we deal with intellectual capital, hence the importance of 

having the best brains in the business. In line with our vision 

of being an IP-led provider of engineering solutions, our in-

house intellectual capital has  improved significantly, with the 

recruitment of a number of great engineering minds to add 

to our existing pool of developers. We also plan to grow the 

number of engineers in our business through acquisitions, as 

this will catapult us to the next level in terms of delivering 

chaIrman’s statement
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solutions to the market. The Parsec transaction that is in 

progress at the moment will contribute towards this ambition.

We have also improved our B-BBEE status from Level 4 to being 

a Level 2 contributor, a strategic imperative that we take a great 

deal of pride in. This is not only in terms of ownership, but also 

in terms of governance, staff base, enterprise develelopment 

and corporate social responsibility. 

OUR BUSINESS
During the year under review, we were cautiously optimistic 

about the prospects of our mining and defence sectors.  

We were also cautiously confident about the prospects for 

our rail division, which hinged quite strongly on the forecasted 

government spend in the transport sector. Our results in the 

railway sector are better than our expectations. Our telecoms 

business has contributed significantly towards our results. 

We look forward to further growth in this division and sector.

Our value proposition has always been, 
and continues to be, to work with our 
clients and identify  areas where they 
are experiencing problems, and we 
then design and provide the technology 
solutions to solve those problems.  

This approach has yielded results, and there has been great 

progress towards assembling a world-class team blending the 

best in local talent at all levels of the organisation. Research 

and development into bringing our own proprietary products to 

market continues to be one of our key strategic focus areas.

While defence has not yet become a significant contibutor,  

we are seeing green shoots coming from this sector, and 

growing this sector will form a concentrated part of our 

strategy in the coming year.

In terms of rail, we continue to develop some of the key 

technological solutions for the problems faced by the sector 

today, making this one of our most stable segments.

Our mining technology solutions continue to sell, albeit not 

at the levels we would like. This is partly due to the subdued 

commodity market worldwide, but not unexpected. With our 

strategy of focusing on continually improving our proprietary 

products, however, we do expect to continue to see growth 

and become one of the dominant players in the mining safety 

technology sector.

Moving from a loss to a profit position bodes well for our 

competitiveness, of developing South African technologies  
that work globally. This position of profit translates into a 

capability of focusing more on research and development, 

rather than on maintenance.

GOVERNMENT PARTNERING
Ansys is well placed to take full advantage of partnering with 

government in its Black Industrialists Initiative, which is aimed 

at assisting black-owned and controlled companies improve 

their manufacturing capabilities. Partnering with government 

will allow us to focus even more on research and development 

and putting out quality, innovative products into the market.

SUSTAINABILITy
It is very important to us to ensure that we are  not only building 

a sustainable company, but a company that is sensitive to 

the environment in which we operate. We are committed to 

ensuring that we continue to deliver sustainable growth for all 

our stakeholders.

CHANGES IN BOARD COMPOSITION
 I would like to thank Keebine our previous chairman of the  

Audit Committee, who resigned at the end of the year, for his 

services as a non-executive member of the board and  

chairman of the committee. His contribution to the company 

has been valuable. Siza Mzimela has taken over his position  

as chairman of the Audit Committee. Siza comes with 

considerable experience in this position and the transition  

has been seamless.

APPRECIATION
Very few companies have been able to survive the difficulties 

that Ansys faced over the past few years with as much 

dedication and input from staff and the board. It is credit  

to the entire Ansys team that they have navigated through  

this. I would like to thank the board, CEO, senior management 

and Ansys employees for all the hard work, advice and 

dedication that have been put into the company to bring us to 

this position. I pay tribute to Teddy Daka in his second year as 

CEO. Teddy has demonstrated the enduring Ansys culture of a 

practical approach to achieving results.I would also like to thank 

our customers, technology partners, and suppliers for their 

continued support and trust in our products and services.

I look forward to another year of growth and development,  

in which Ansys continues to grow from strength to strength.

NONhlaNhla MjOli-MNcube
Chairman
29 July 2015
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THE yEAR AT A GLANCE

The last year has been a year of significant growth 

in terms of both increased turnover and profit, 

as well as improved learnings and development 

within our company. We have achieved several 

milestones in order to position our group as a competitor in all 

the markets in which we operate, and I believe that we are well 

poised to make even greater inroads into our sectors  

of speciality.

Our revenue has grown significantly, from last year’s  

R65 million to around R250 million. Earnings before tax is  

close to R14 million, from a loss of R7 million and we are cash-

positive. We have completely reversed the trend that I inherited 

when I took on the role of CEO.

During last year, we acquired a telecommunications business, 

Tedaka Technologies. At the current year-end, we will be 

reporting on a full year of ownership, and it pleases me to  

note that this acquisition has contributed significantly to our 

 growth and has delivered on the acquisition objectives.  

Both our telecommunications division and our rail division  

have performed superbly, especially in light of where we  

are coming from.

ACqUISITION DURING THE yEAR
We have commenced the 100% acquisition of a company called 

Parsec, in line with the strategy and vision of becoming an 

IP-led, technology-driven company. When I look critically at 

our vertical markets, I note that our mining and our defence 

businesses are not performing as well as they should be.  

While there are market issues, critical analysis also shows that 

we were not positioned optimally within these markets from a 

product portfolio point of view. The Parsec portfolio gives us a 

broader portfolio of solutions for both of these sectors, as well 

as the telecommunications sector. This acquisition will allow us 

to increase our impact across all our vertical markets.

The Parsec acquisition, as well as the acquisition during the 

previous year of the telecommunications business, falls in line 

with our strategy of diversifying the business. This not only 

reduces the concentration risk of railways sector that Ansys 

was exposed to but also enhances our technological strength. 

ceO’s repOrt
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OUR STRATEGy AND MARKET PENETRATION
We remain focused on becoming an IP-led technology 

company, as reported during the last year. Our overriding 

strategic objective remains becoming an original equipment 

manufacturer (OEM) through in-house solutions origination, 

supplemented by strategic partners.

The addition of 45 engineers and developers to our staff 

complement, as a result of the acquisition of Parsec, will make 

a great deal of headway in our strategy to become a company 

known for developing new products and technologies for 

the market. They will dramatically increase our research and 

development capabilities, giving us a strong base in terms of 

innovation and technology development.

In the previous year, I stated that we wish to improve our quality 

systems. We have maintained our ISO 9001 and we are looking 

at new applications to improve our quality levels. 

We are also improving on our drive to be more customer-centric 

in our attitude and focus, as even the strongest development 

capabilities and best products are worth very little without 

a strong customer base. Our legacy business has been more 

focused on engineering and development, so it became 

necessary to infuse an attitude of meeting and exceeding 

expectations and delighting customers.

When i took the position of ceO, ansys’ 
bee rating was at level 6. During the 
previous period, we achieved a level 4 
rating, and i am pleased to announce 
that we end this year at level 2.

SEGMENTS
Both our telecommunications and rail businesses have  

done exceptionally well during this year. During last year,  

I projected that the fibre-optic rollout will produce significant 

growth for our business, as we are well positioned to take 

advantage of that rollout, which has started. We have grown 

our telecommunications business significantly, showing growth 

from full-year results of R75 million at year-end last year,  

to R145 million at the end of the current year. 

The fibre rollout is projected to continue for another five 

years and more, and we are ensuring that we continue to 

take strategic advantage of this. We continue to improve 

our positioning, strengthening our partnerships, investing in 

distribution capability, improving our speed to delivery and 

increasing our sales force, which is showing results.

Railways has grown from around R45 million to around  

R112 million. The previous year’s performance was lower, as 

we were in a project-development phase. With the majority of 

these projects now being in production, revenue and margins 

have improved. Our major production is coming from trackside 

systems and onboard systems, and some of the additional 

products we are currently developing and producing will 

continue to show us growing revenue.

Our mining segment has not done as well as I had hoped.  

In my view, this is more to do with the narrowness of our 

product portfolio than the depressed mining sector.  

This however will be positively affected by the acquisition of 

Parsec. Parsec’s revenue in mining has shown growth, and we 

are confident that the acquisition of this company will help us 

drive growth. There are some exciting product developments 

happening, and, at the same time, we are reviewing our price 

points on many of our products, in order to increase not only 

production, but sales, while passing on the benefits to  

our clients.

Defence is not where it should be, but the market is seeing an 

increase in spending and we are in an ideal position to take 

advantage of this. Considering the significant size of Denel’s 

order book, currently at over R30 billion, and their dependence 

on external contractors to ensure delivery, we, as one of the 

few black-owned and managed companies with significant 

capability in the sector, are well positioned to exploit this 

market. The Parsec acquisition also brings additional capability, 

products and clients that will augment our current effort in 

defence to produce positive results.

OUTLOOK
We continued to strengthen the foundation of this business that 

we embarked on in 2013 and ensured that the fundamentals are 

in place. The business is profitable, we generated strong cash, 

and we have a stronger balance sheet. We have diversified 

our revenue streams, significantly reduced the historical 

concentration risk of one market sector, increased our capability 

and with the Tedaka and Parsec acquisition, are further 

strengthening the business. All this I believe will contribute 

positively to the growth of Ansys in 2016 and the future.

The railways infrastructure and rolling stock upgrade 

programmes will continue as most of the funding for these 

programmes has been secured. I forecast that in the coming 

financial year our railways business will continue to grow owing 

to the increased expenditure in this sector from the railways 

operators as well as their suppliers and customers. 
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I believe the defence sector, though subdued in this financial 

year, will grow through the support we can offer Denel and 

other clients in the security sector both locally and abroad.  

As noted in the Defence Review, South Africa’s current defence 

capability has weakened, and as a country with demanding 

regional responsibilities, we expect an increase in defence 

investments. With a forecast doubling in defence expenditure 

over the coming years, I expect our revenues in the defence 

segment to increase significantly.

The telecommunications sector continues to see operators 

investing heavily in their networks as they attempt to make 

their networks meet current demand as well as making them 

future ready. I believe that our investment in research and 

development in this sector will show positive results. 

The acquisition of Parsec will give us exposure to additional 

products and clients  for both the local and international market 

that will augment our current offering. I expect the mining and 

defence market segment to improve significantly in the  

coming years.

In general, our increased and improved capabilities and a 

broader spectrum of products will position us positively in  

the market.  

By strengthening the four segments in which we operate,  

I expect the company as a whole to see less volatility in our 

operation and profit-generation.

APPRECIATION
Our company has seen a great improvement over the last year, 

and this would not have been possible without our people.

I want to personally thank each member of our staff for your 

continued dedication and passion. I also want to thank the 

directors for their continued support, expertise and counsel. 

To our partners, suppliers and advisors, thank you for your 

support and reliability.

Finally, to our customers and our shareholders, without whom 

we would not be in business today, thank you. 

TeDDy Daka
Chief exeCutive OffiCer 
29 July 2015

ceO’s repOrt cOntInued
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Our railways business   
     will continue to grow owing to the 
increased expenditure  
  in this sector
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        focusing on originating 
technology-driven           
          engineering solutions for  
   challenges faced by  
    our clients
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The value added statement depicts the performance and efforts of management, employees and providers of capital.  
The statement further indicates the value added distribution to those contributing throughout the year. 

2015 2014
R’000 % R’000 %

Revenue  251 121  65 803 
Cost of material and services*  (189 609)  (45 972)

Value added by operations  61 512 99,24  19 832 90,92
Interest income  35 0,18  3 0,01
Other income  361 0,58  1 979 9,07

Total wealth created  61 908  21 814 100,00

Applied as follows:
Employees’ salaries, wages and benefits  42 421 68,44  27 206 124,72
Government taxation  4 302 6,75  (2 085) (9,56)
Providers of capital and interest  1 842 3,09  903 4,14
Dividends  –   0,00  – 0,00

Retained in the group
Retained loss  10 025 16,36  (7 025) (32,20)
Depreciation and amortisation  2 148 3,47  1 946 8,92
Impairment of development cost  1 168 1,89  868 3,98
Impairment of goodwill  –   0,00  –  0,00

 61 908  21 813 100,00

Reconciliation
Cost of sales  187 917  42 678 
Add back:
– Labour overhead recovery  13 889  8 867 

 174 028  33 812 

Overheads  46 262  32 447 
Add back:
– Employees’ salaries, wages and benefits  28 532  18 339 
– Depreciation and amortisation  2 148  1 947 

 15 581  12 160 

 189 609  45 972 

*	Cost	of	sales	in	the	statements	of	comprehensive	income	includes	labour	recovery	of	R0,9	million	(2013:	R3,4	million).	Labour	recovery	for	the	value	
added	statement	was	included	in	salaries.

value added statement
as at 28 february 2015

 Employees  

 Government
 Providers of capital  

 Retained in the group
 Employees  

 Government
 Providers of capital  

 Retained in the group
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share perfOrmance
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market prOspects

OUR SEGMENTS’ OPERATING ENVIRONMENTS
RAIL

During 2012, Transnet announced its market demand-driven 

seven-year strategy, which comprises a more than R300 billion 

capital investment programme to increase capacity and cargo 

volumes from 200 million tonnes per annum to 350 million  

tonnes per annum by 2019. In an effort to reduce both the cost 

of doing business as well as carbon emissions, Transnet intends 

to move the transport focus from road to rail. To aid with this,  

R200 billion of this committed spend will be channelled to fleet 

and infrastructure development, while R100 billion will go to 

ports, terminals and harbours.

On the commuter rail side, PRASA is set to invest R120 billion 

 over the next 20 years on services, including support 

infrastructure and rolling stock. They have placed the first order 

of 600 train sets, and the first delivery is due during 2015.  

The next RFP is to follow in 10 years.

Further afield, NEPAD’s transport programme initiatives to close 

Africa’s infrastructure gap is spurring promising opportunities in 

other African countries. During 2015, Botswana is taking delivery 

of 500 wagons, adjudicating locomotive tenders and is set to 

engage in rail-related projects flowing from expansion in its 

coal, salt and cement markets.

As one of Ansys’ strongest segments, rail is well positioned 

to continue to leverage our partnerships in this area and 

show continuous growth. Our strategy is to provide leading 

technology applications to ensure the safety and efficiency  

of rail services throughout South Africa and beyond.

DEFENCE

As a major player in Africa, South Africa has a vested interest 

in assisting with the spread of democracy throughout the 

region and as such needs to ensure our military is capable of 

supporting its responsibility in continental leadership, and 

meets international standards. The Defence Review 2014, the 

first major assessment of South Africa’s military capability since 

1998, strongly recommends increasing defence spend from the 

current 1,1% of GDP to 1,6% in 2015 (R57 billion), 2,0% in 2016 

(R74 billion) and 2,4% in 2017 (R88 billion). To reach the level of 

capability required, new equipment is needed both to close the 

most urgent existing gaps and to replace old equipment.

Denel’s order book in this regard has increased significantly. 

To meet the demanding delivery targets, private sector 

participation by companies such as Ansys will be essential.  

The Review reclassifies defence companies by distinguishing 

locally owned companies from South African-based foreign-

owned companies. Therefore, as a South African black-

owned group, Ansys is well-positioned to take advantage of 

opportunities in the strategic areas of command and control, 

unmanned systems, electronic warfare, missile guidance and 

fire control.

Long-term development of the industry has been strengthened 

by the establishment of the New National Defence Industry 

Council to facilitate close coordination between the defence 

force, companies in the defence industry and any research 

bodies conducting research in defence-related technologies.

Defence is Ansys’ traditional division, this being how we were 

founded. While this side of the business has been subdued  

for some time, we intend to position the company to receive 

benefit from the increased defence spend, and to provide 

world-class, top-quality systems and products for this sector. 

Our acquisition of Parsec wil also assist in reaching our  

strategic goals of diversifying our risk base and ensuring  

wider revenue streams.
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MINING

At present, the South African mining landscape is depressed, 

strongly influenced by local issues such as the aftermath of 

Marikana and ongoing strikes in the platinum sector, as well 

as wider international factors such as subdued commodity 

prices, rising costs and the reputational damage suffered by 

South African mining. Mining is, however, still a major economic 

driver of the South African economy and it is anticipated that 

there will be some recovery in the market in 2016 and a further 

upturn in 2017. A strengthening European Union should help stir 

resurgence in demand, particularly in platinum.

Across our borders mining is in a growth phase and prospects 

are promising.

Ansys’ mining division houses a number of proprietary 

technology applications that will  benefit the industry 

immensely. As part of our strategy to ensure diversification 

of our strengths and risk, we have a number of planned 

interventions in place to increase this division’s revenue  

and production.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

The explosive growth in both mobile telephony as well as 

broadband connectivity means that telecommunications is 

one of the fastest growing sectors in South Africa’s economy. 

However, the market is highly competitive and characterised by 

increasing pricing pressure on suppliers as well as consumers.

For 2014, the fixed-line network reported budgets are for 

Telkom R20 billion, for MTN R7 billion, Vodacom’s is R9 billion 

and Cell C’s is R2,3 billion. In addition, City Connect and Tshwane 

Metro have budgeted R2 billion over the next five years for the 

planned rollout of Fibre to the X (FTTx). As a well-established, 

trusted player in the telecommunications industry, Ansys’ 

subsidiary, Tedaka, is well positioned to benefit from this rollout.

The acquisition of Tedaka during the previous year has 

assisted Ansys in diversifying its income base significantly. 

The acquisition has shown immediate improvement in Ansys’ 

revenues and will continue to be a major factor in our growth 

and turnaround strategy.
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Our busIness mOdel and strategy

• Design

• Hardware engineering

• Software development

• System engineering

• Technical skills

• Assembly

•  Programme 

and project  

management

• Equity

• Long-term funding

• Origination

• Production

• Development

•  Distribution

•  Integration   

  of technology-

driven engineering 

solutions for harsh 

environments to 

improve client 

productivity, security 

and safety

•  Bespoke and standard 

solutions

•  Tracking measurement 

and onboard train 

cab control and 

communication systems

• System integration

• Rope testing and   

 monitoring systems

•  Carrier and enterprise 

telecoms solutions

• ROI

•  Improved safety and 

efficiency for clients

• Upskilled workforce

•  Industry and 

technological 

advancement

WHAT GOES IN WHAT WE DO WHAT WE PRODUCE OUR IMPACTS

LONG-TERM STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 2015 PROGRESS

Enhance group IP •  Started the acquisition process of Parsec Holdings

•  Focus on originating technology-driven engineering solutions for  

challenges faced by clients

•  Emphasis on determining client needs to deliver appropriately

•  Leveraging on in-house technical, hardware, software and embedded 

software and systems engineering skills

Enhance research and development and 

innovation capability

•  Enable culture of innovation in which original thinking and an  

entrepreneurial approach are encouraged and rewarded

Diversify segmental and revenue risk •  Acquired Tedaka Technologies and diversified into telecommunications sector

•  Removed lumpy revenue

• Started the acquisition of Parsec Holdings

Reposition the group as a customer-centric 

solutions provider

•  Entrench quality management company-wide

•  Meet requirements to maintain ISO 9001:2008 accreditation

•  New operational executives appointed to execute quality controls

•  Introduced frequent client status meetings and surveys

Achieve and maintain Level 1 B-BBEE status •  Improved to Level 2 from Level 4

Attract, develop and retain skills •  Create varied and challenging work environment with appropriate  

incentives and reward

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

OUR STRATEGy
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materIal Issues

At Ansys we define material issues as those risks and opportunities that have a direct impact on the ability of the group to create 

value in the short, medium and long-term. 

Material issue Key risKs flagged addressed by strategic objective

ec
o

n
o

M
ic

Growth Delivery of 
sustainable value  
to stakeholders

•	 	Not	staying	abreast	of	new	
technological advances, 
competitors and/or market 
development

•	 	Inadequate	compliance	
to customer B-BBEE 
requirements

•	 	Enhance	R&D	and	innovation	
capability

•	 Enhance	group	IP
•	 	Diversify	segmental	and	 

revenue risk

Liquidity Ensuring sufficient 
liquidity	and	capital	
to meet business 
objectives

•	 	Debtor	recovery	or	late	
payments

•	 	Exchange	rate	volatility

•	 	Diversify	segmental	and	 
revenue risk

Project execution Efficient risk-
controlled delivery  
of	quality	product	 
and service

•	 	Material	and	equipment	theft	
and vandalism

•	 	Contract	(project)	execution
•	 	Avoid	supplier	reliance
•	 	Technical:	design	aspects,	
execution,	change	in	
specifications

•	 	Reposition	as	customer-centric	
solutions provider

•	 	Entrench	quality	management	
company-wide

so
c

ia
l

People Attracting, retaining 

and developing 

employees

•	 	Succession planning

•	 		Uniform policies and 

procedures

•	 		Attract, develop and retain skills

Safety •	 			Adherence to legislative 

requirement

•	 		Entrench	quality	management	

company-wide

en
v

ir
o

n
M

en
ta

l Impact of 
operations 
(environmental)

Across-the-board 

commitment to 

environmental 

sustainability 

•	 		Adherence to legislative 

requirement

•	 		Achieve and maintain Level 1  

B-BBEE status

•	 		Entrenched	quality	management	

company-wide
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Our stakehOlders

We recognise stakeholder engagement as key to our corporate accountability and have identified key stakeholder groups who may 

impact on or be impacted by our business strategy. As a responsible corporate citizen we have adopted an inclusive approach to 

stakeholder engagement.

StAKEHOlDER 
gROUP

WHAt MAttERS  
tO tHEM

NAtURE OF  
ENgAgEMENt RESPONSiBilitY ACtiVitiES iN FY2015

Shareholders/ 
investors

•  Sustainability
•  Profitability
•  ROI (share price and 

dividends)
•  Cash generation
•  Corporate governance 

and compliance
•  Risk management
•  Growth prospects
•  Reputation

•  SENS

•  Website

•  Results presentations

•  One-on-one meetings

•  Road shows

•  Annual general meeting

•  Site visits

•  Investor polls

•  JSE showcases

•  CEO •   Strengthened corporate 
governance structure

•  Continuous review of 
performance to ensure 
operational excellence

•  Ensure distributions 
are not at expense of 
business growth

•  Ensure risk management 
processes in  place

Lenders/ 
providers of 
capital

•  Capital management
•  Sustainability
•  Profitability
•  Cash generation
•  Corporate governance 

and compliance
•  Risk management
•  Growth prospects

•  Contractually required 

information flow

•  Regular ad hoc 

meetings

•  CEO and CFO •   Strengthened corporate 
governance structure

•  Ensure risk management 
processes in place

Employees •  Job security
•  Sustainability
•  Varied and stimulating 

work environment
•  Personal growth and 

development
•  Feedback on 

performance
•  No discrimination in 

workplace
•  Skills development
•  Competitive 

remuneration

•  Employment contract

•  Payslips

•  Annual performance 

management process

•  HR processes

•  Regular internal 

communication

•  Toolbox talks on site

•  CFO •  Clear job descriptions
•  Key performance area 

evaluations
•  Market surveys for 

salary reviews to achieve 
market parity

•  Continuous training
•  Policy of promotion from 

within
•  Group culture facilitates 

pleasant and productive 
work environment

•  Job satisfaction survey’s

National 
government

•  Environmental 

compliance

•  Fair competitive 

practices

•  Skills development

•  Job creation

•  Revenue through 

corporate taxation

•  Formal and informal 

meetings

•  Consultations and 

workshops

•  Tender submissions

•  Presentations

•  Customer audits

•  CEO •  Submission of equity and 

skills reports

2015
26 Integrated annual repOrt



StAKEHOlDER 
gROUP

WHAt MAttERS  
tO tHEM

NAtURE OF  
ENgAgEMENt RESPONSiBilitY ACtiVitiES iN FY2015

Customers •  High level of  

project execution  

and delivery

•  Quality

•  Service that meets or 

exceeds expectation

•  Contract and service 

agreements

•  Regular one-on-one 

meetings

•  CBDO •  Clear articulation of 

expectations through 

contractual agreements

•  Customer feedback 

surveys

Suppliers •  Market conditions •  Contract and service 

agreements

•  Regular one-on-one 

meetings

•  Presentations

•  Training

•  Workshops

•  CFO •  Professional relationship 

to ensure impartiality 

and no corruption

•  Clear articulation of 

expectations through 

contractual agreements 

and project meetings

•   Regular feedback and 

inspection by Ansys 

quality teams

•  Customer feedback 

surveys 

Growth

Liquidity People

Project execution Safety

Environment
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         ethical leadership forms 
the basis of our direction,  
strategies and 
      interactions and is 
           defined in our dnA
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ethIcal leadershIp

SUSTAINABILITy FOR ANSyS GROUP = COMMON SENSE 
As an organisation that continues to be more sensitive to our responsibilities in the global marketplace and the impact of  

these decisions on the markets in which we operate, ethical leadership forms the basis of our direction, strategies and interactions.  

We continue to demonstrate our commitment to diversity through ambitious targets and goal setting.

We are committed to the highest standards of honesty, integrity and fairness, and have zero tolerance for the commissioning or 

concealment of fraudulent acts by our people, from the board downwards. The Board Charter accordingly defines all aspects of 

ethical leadership as expected from the directors, who must lead by example.

The group has also put in place a Code of Conduct and complementary Code of Ethics. These policies were reviewed and finalised.

The board, through the Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee ensures the Code of Conduct is communicated and adhered to 

throughout the group. Our disciplinary codes and procedures in the Code of Conduct further ensure compliance with the Code.

Our multi-generational and increasingly diverse workforce is encouraged to communicate suggestions or complaints in this regard 

anonymously through various platforms. 

There were no reported incidences of non-compliance during the year. 

Our appetite and aptitude for larger involvement in social affairs saw the Ansys group assisting in rehabilitating Ma Julie’s Early Day 

Care Centre in Olievenhoutbosch as part of our participation in and recognition of Mandela Day.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Teddy Daka (50) 

CEO

BA	(Hons)	in	Business	Management	(De	Montfort	University),	

MBA	(Gordon	Institute	of	Business	Science),	Executive	

Programmes	(Wits,	UCT,	Michigan	State	University,	University	 

of	Pennsylvania)

Appointed CEO: 4 June 2013

(Held the positions of non-executive chairman since 2006 and 

then interim CEO since June 2012)

Prior to establishing Tedaka Investments, Teddy served 

in executive-level posts at Telkom and the Phalaborwa 

Foundation. He is foremost an exponent of transformation 

issues and was a regular advisor to a number of public and 

private sector organisations in this regard as well as in areas 

of strategy, supply chain management, public enterprise 

management, and B-BBEE.

He currently serves as global chairman of the Aurecon Group 

Ltd (Australia), a director of Tedaka Investments Pty Ltd, and a 

trustee of the South African National Defence Education Trust.

His past directorships include South African Airways SOC 

Ltd (Independent NED), Aurecon Pte Ltd, Singapore (NED and 

chairman of the Audit Committee), South African Airways 

Technical SOC Ltd (non-executive chairman), T-Systems SA Pty 

Ltd (NED), ADC-Krone Telecommunications Africa Pty Ltd (NED), 

Africon Pty Ltd (NED), The Nations Trust (Trustee), and Aurecon 

Africa Ownership Trust (trustee).

RACHELLE GROBBELAAR (35)

CFO

CA(SA)

Appointed 8 February 2008

Prior to joining Ansys, Rachelle worked for McDonalds (SA) 

as corporate financial manager. She originally completed her 

articles at PricewaterhouseCoopers and remained at the firm as 

an assistant audit manager, gaining extensive experience in the 

engineering industry and the listed environment.

NONHLANHLA MjOLI-MNCUBE (56)

Chairperson

MSc	in	Urban	and	Regional	Planning,	SPURS	Fellow	

(Massachusetts	Institute	of	Technology),	Certificate	in	

Engineering	and	Technology	Management,	(Warwick	University),	

Senior	Executive	Programme	Certificate	(Harvard),	Wharton	

Business	School	(USA),	Aspen	Global	Fellow

Appointed 4 June 2013

Nonhlanhla has received numerous industry recognition awards 

and currently sits on the boards of several listed companies. 

She has worked at executive and management levels in the  

USA and in South Africa. She is the past economic advisor to  

the Presidency.

FEzILE DANTILE (52)

independent non-executive director

BCom,	Diploma	in	Labour	Law	and	Diploma	in	Business	

Management	(Executive	Education)

Appointed 10 March 2011

Fezile is the managing director of SIMS Pty Ltd, a private 

company involved in the construction and maintenance of 

railway infrastructure. He is also a director of SimsKhula Pty Ltd. 

Further, he is a member of the Institute of People Management 

and of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa.

Fezile formerly served as president of the RailRoad Association 

of South Africa from 2004 to 2005 and again from 2009 to 2010.

SIzA MzIMELA (50)

independent and non-executive director

BA	(Economics	and	Statistics)	(University	of	Swaziland),	

Certificate	in	Management	(Henley	College),	Transnet	Executive	

Development	Programme,	(Gordon	Institute	of	Business	Science)

Siza Mzimela currently serves as the Executive Chairperson  

of Blue Crane Aviation as well as CEO and founder of Fly  

Blue Crane.

Siza served as the Chief Executive Officer of both South African 

Airways and SA Express Airways. She has held various other 

pioneering roles within the aviation industry; including being 

the first female board member at IATA in 67 years and being the 

Chairperson of African Airlines Association (AAFRA) and Airlines 

Association of Southern Africa (AASA).

Siza‘s positive attitude, strong negotiating skills and business 

acumen have helped her scale to many heights. She serves 

on the boards of Cargo Carriers and Africa Reinsurance 

Corporation, amongst others. 
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bOard Of dIrectOrs

TEDDy  
DAKA*

CEO

* Executive Director

RACHELLE  
GROBBELAAR* 

CFO
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NONHLANHLA  
MjOLI-MNCUBE  
CHAIRPERSON

FEzILE  
DANTILE 

INDEPENDENT  
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

SIzA  
MzIMELA 

INDEPENDENT  
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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executIve cOmmIttee

DAVE 
HOWIE 

COO

KGABO 
BADIMO

CBDO

RACHELLE 
GROBBELAAR 

CFO

TEDDy 
DAKA 
CEO
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secretarIat

MELINDA
GOUS

COMPANy SECRETARy

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Dave Howie (52)

COO

BSc	and	MSc	(Electronic	Engineering)

Appointed 1 March 2014

Dave has extensive training in business processes, technical 

management, and leadership, and is passionate about 

technology development and trend analysis and forecasting. 

Prior to joining Ansys, Dave was the chief technical officer 

at Poynting Defence Antennas. A large part of his career 

development was at SAAB, where he was executive manager 

for engineering and later executive manager for product 

development, and the South African representative to the 

Development Council.

Kgabo Badimo (55)

CBDO

BSc	Computer	Science,	BSc	(Hons)	Licence	D’Informatique,	 

MSc	Data	Engineering,	PhD	in	Information	Systems	focusing	on	

Knowledge	Management	(in	progress)

Appointed 1 June 2014. Resigned 30 June 2015

Prior to joining Ansys, Kgabo was the general manager at  

Neotel responsible for business development and sales in 

the public sector. Before that he served as divisional director 

of Spescom Mobile Solutions, general manager at SAP, group 

executive – customer service operations at MTN, executive 

manager – customer services, marketing and communications 

at SITA and executive manager at Denel Infoplan.

SECRETARIAT
Fusion Corporate Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited 

represented by 

Melinda Gous

Company secretary

Fusion has combined experience of more than 10 years in 

company secretarial practice. Combined qualifications include 

certificates in advanced business and securities law and BCom 

(Law) degrees. Fusion provides company secretarial services to 

a number of listed companies and their subsidiaries and remain 

independent in their function.

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
35



PE
R

FO
R

m
A

n
CE

Integrated annual repOrt

2015
36



2015 saw Ansys moving away from 
   limitations and establishing 
  the capacity required to achieve     
         strategic decisions
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cfO’s repOrt

HIGHLIGHTS 

Ansys has delivered a solid set of financial  
results of which the main features include: 
•		 Revenue	was	up 282% to R251 million   
	 	 from	R65,8	million
•   Operating profit of R17,3 million    
	 contrasted	with	the R7,3	million	loss	in	the		
	 comparative	period	
•  hePS up	from	a	loss	of	3,58	cents	to		 	
  earnings of 4,44 cents 
•  Solid cash position	with	a	cash	balance	 
	 	 of	R19,3 million 

The group’s performance reflects aggressive 
growth across the board and at the end of the 
financial year the business is in a much stronger 
financial position. 

COMPARABILITy OF RESULTS
The Tedaka financial results were included for the full financial 

year for the first time as part of the telecoms business unit and 

only for three months in the comparable period. 

The Parsec transaction’s effective date is 1 June 2015, therefore 

no results of Parsec were included in the financial results for the 

28 February 2015 year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
The key features of the financial performance of the group  

have been covered in some detail in the Chief Executive  

Officer’s report. As a result, I will focus on some of the more 

detailed financial aspects of the performance in the statement 

of comprehensive income.

Statement of comprehensive income

Other gains and losses

During the year other gains and losses resulted in gains of 

 R4,3 million (2014: R0,796 million). The biggest contributor  

to the foreign exchange gains is the telecoms business unit.  

Our telecoms distribution business is exposed to euro 

denominated foreign currency. Foreign currency is managed 

through foreign exchange contracts and future contracts. 
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Research and impairment cost

In line with our strategy and vision to become an IP-led 

company, we have invested R2,9 million (2014: R0,460 miilion) 

for research and development cost that was included in the 

comprehensive income statement in this financial year.

The decrease in intangible assets relates mainly to the 

impairment in the development cost capitalised for the 

Continuous Rope Monitoring System (“CRMS”) of R0,795 million 

(2014: R0,226 million) and the Mobile Rope Monitoring System 

(“MRTU”) of R0,373 million (2014: R0,642 million).  

The challenging market conditions have had a significant 

impact on the sales which triggered the impairment.  

The impairment formed part of the mining segment results.

Stock adjustments

Work-in-progress inventory to the value of R2 million was 

written off to net realisable value as it is considered partially 

obsolete. The impairment is included in the mining segment. 

Inventory to the value of R4,8 million included in finished goods 

has been written off to its estimated net realisable value as it is 

technologically obsolete. The impairment is included in cost of 

sales for the telecoms segment.

FINANCIAL POSITION
The group’s net asset value has improved by 23,6% since 

the previous financial year, primarily as a result of the good 

performance of the year.

Statement of financial position

Provision for warranty

The provision for warranty claims increased to R2,28 million 

(2014: R0,209 million) on products sold and delivered.  

The provision was calculated on a project specific basis as  

and when the revenue on the products is recognised. A 3% to 

7% failure rate and the estimated production and material  

cost were used to calculate the provision. The warranty claim is 

valid for a 12 month period.

Parsec acquisition

Ansys acquired 100% of the shares in and all shareholders’ 

claims against Parsec Holdings (Pty) Ltd (“Parsec”), 25% of the 

shares in and all shareholders’ claims against Parsec (Pty) Ltd 

and 20% of the shares in and all shareholders’ claims against 

Redline Telecommunications SA (Pty) Ltd for a maximum 

amount of R81,7 million, which includes the net consideration 

for the property, Erven 3323 and 3318, Irene Extension 72, 

Kungwini local municipality, JR, Gauteng, together with all 

improvements thereon of approximately R6,7 million. 

All conditions precedent to the acquisition of Parsec have been 

fulfilled and the effective date was 1 June 2015. This report was 

released after the effective date, therefore disclosures were 

included in this report as per the requirement of IFRS 3. 

Cash flow and funding requirements

I’m pleased to report the improvement in working capital 

over the last year and the group is reaping the benefits of its 

diligent cash flow management together with the solid financial 

performance achieved during the financial year. Our strategy 

has put us in a strong position to ensure a sustainable business. 

We realised strong cash flow from operations of R22,4 million 

(2014: R3,5 million) which enabled us to repay loans to related 

parties after the financial year-end.

The trade and other receivables, inventory, trade and other 

payables increased as a direct result of the increased revenue 

close to the financial year-end.

The cash flow position of the group improved to R19,3 million at 

the end of the financial year.

CONCLUSION

This has been a very good year for the 
group. The last three years have involved 
significant changes within the group, but 
there is no doubt we are on the  
right track. 

I would like to thank the board and the executive team for their 

indispensable support and look forward to the new challenges 

and opportunities that the 2016 financial year will bring.

Rachelle gRObbelaaR
Chief finanCial OffiCer 
29 July 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
Revenue  251 121  65 803  81 259  102 090  97 877 

Gross profit  63 204  23 125  33 515  46 430  31 879 
Other income   361  654  444  355  342 
Operating costs  (48 047)  (29 174)  (27 972)  (31 302)  (30 246) 

Earnings/(loss) before interest, taxation, 
depreciation, amortisation and impairments

15 518  (5 395)  5 987  15 484  1 975 

Development cost impairment  (1 168)  (868)  (8 536)  –  – 
Goodwill impairment  –  –  (7 907)  –  – 
Depreciation and amortisation 1 785  (1 947)  (3 772)  (3 872)  (3 772) 

Profit/(loss) before interest and taxation  16 135  (8 210)  (14 228)  11 612  (1 797) 
Finance income 34  3  0  3  63 
Finance cost  (1 842)  (903)  (1 112)  (850)  (694) 

Profit/(loss) before taxation  14 327  (9 110)  (15 340)  10 765  (2 428) 
Taxation  (4 302)  2 085  2 792  (2 843)  2 624 

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing 
operations

 10 025  (7 025)  (12 548)  7 922  196 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Loss for the year  –  –  –  –  (13 432) 
Taxation  –  –  –  –  – 

Profit/(loss) for the year from  
discontinued operations  10 025  –  –  –  (13 432) 

Other comprehensive income, net of taxation – –  –  –  – 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  10 025  (7 025)  (12 548)  7 921  (13 236) 

fIve-year revIew
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets
Non-current assets  27 091  33 974  31 751  46 447  45 078 

Plant and equipment  1 716  1 584  509  920  1 641 
Intangible assets  1 810  4 170  6 545  13 044  9 310 
Goodwill  15 059  15 059  15 059  22 966  22 966 
Deferred tax asset  8 506  13 161  9 638  9 517  11 161 

current assets  124 739  53 837  31 873  30 744  19 194 

Inventories  40 533  29 218  8 265  9 136  5 390 
Trade and other receivables  64 816  24 031  23 398  21 276  12 836 
Derivative financial assets  –  80  4  –  – 
Cash and cash equivalents  19 390  508  54  180  781 
Current tax receivable  –  –  152  152  187 

Total assets  151 830  87 811  63 624  77 191  64 272 

Equity and liabilities
Equity  42 433  32 408  37 435  49 443  37 171 

Capital and reserves  42 433  32 408  37 435  49 443  37 171 

Non-current liabilities  10 496  12 011  2 452  5 125  4 055 

Loan from related parties  9 070  9 993  –  –  – 
Instalment sale agreement   532  436  –  –  – 
Deferred tax liability   894  1 582  2 452  5 125  4 055 

current liabilities  98 901  43 392  23 737  22 624  23 046 

Loans from related parties  5 998  –  2 133  3 456  4 044 
Trade and other payables  89 938  35 282  12 959  14 259  16 666 
Derivative financial liabilities   –  –  –  291  19 
Bank overdraft  –  7 722  8 645  4 617  2 317 
Current tax payable   335  –  –  –  – 
Instalment sale agreement   350  179  –  –  – 
Provisions  2 280  209  –  –  – 

Total equity and liabilities  151 830  87 811  63 624  77 192  64 272 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Cash flows from operating activities before  
working capital  17 823 

 (6 886)  4 581  14 871  (4 709) 

Changes in working capital  4 626  10 431  (2 555)  (14 686)  7 873 

Cash flows from operating activities  22 449  3 545  2 026  185  3 164 

Cash flows from investing activities  (643)  (329)  (5 397)  (6 848)  (6 407) 
Cash flows from financing activities  4 798  (1 839)  (784)  3 762  5 554 

Cash flows for the year  26 604  1 377  (4 153)  (2 902)  2 311 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  (7 214)  (8 591)  (4 438)  (1 536)  (3 847) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  19 390  (7 214)  (8 591)  (4 438)  (1 536) 

PER SHARE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Number of shares in issue
– total  244 867 056  244 867 056  164 867 056  161 867 056  149 117 056 

– weighted  244 867 056  182 620 480  162 162 946  155 994 105  143 637 146 

– diluted  244 867 056  182 620 480  162 162 946  155 994 105  143 637 146 

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
– total  4,09  (3,85)  (7,74)  5,08  (9,22) 

– from continuing operations  4,09  (3,85)  (7,74)  5,08  0,14 

– from discontinued operations  –    –  –  –  (9,35) 

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
– total  4,09  (3,85)  (7,74)  5,08  (9,22) 

– from continuing operations  4,09  (3,85)  (7,74)  5,08  0,14 

– from discontinued operations –  –  –  –  (9,35) 

Headline earnings/(loss) per share (cents)
– total  4,44  (3,58)  2,40  5,06  (3,86) 

– from continuing operations  4,44  (3,58)  2,40  5,06  0,14 

– from discontinued operations –  –  –  –  (4,00) 

cOntInuedfIve-year revIew
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cOrpOrate gOvernance

Ansys’ board and the various committees endorse the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct (“the code”) as set out in the 
King Report on Corporate governance (“King iii”) and substantially follow the recommendations and principles of the Code.  
the commitment and pursuit of these principles are delivered through the group’s subsidiaries and committees, ensuring 

transparency, integrity and accountability as foremost in all business units. the board accepts that effective corporate governance 
practices are necessary to achieve and maintain trust and confidence in the organisation at all levels and aims to integrate 
responsible corporate citizenship into the group’s business operations, to ensure sustainable long-term growth. the board further 
acknowledges that this is a dynamic responsibility that demands continuous, unrelenting attention and focus.

The directors are committed to an open governance process giving all stakeholders the assurance that its directors and managers 
at all levels are managing the company responsibly. In line with King III’s “apply or explain” approach, the directors will continue to 
state the extent to which the company applies good corporate governance principles to create and sustain value for stakeholders 
over the short, medium and long-term, and to explain any non-compliance.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities  
and functions

The board’s primary responsibilities and functions include, but are not limited to:
•  oversight of the group’s strategic direction and the control of the group;
•  setting the values to which the company will adhere formulated in its Code of Conduct;
•  ensuring that its conduct and that of management aligns to the values and is adhered to in all 

aspects of its business; 
•  ensuring that all deliberations, decisions and actions are based on the four values of good governance;
•  ensuring that the company acts as, and is seen to be, a responsible corporate citizen;
•  ensuring that appropriate governance structures, policies and procedures are in place;
• ensuring the effectiveness of the group’s internal controls;
•  reviewing and evaluating the group’s risks
•  approving the annual budget and operating plan;
•  approving the annual and interim financial results and shareholder communications; and
•  approving the senior management structure, responsibilities and succession plans. 

Board meetings The board meets at least four times per annum and if and when necessary otherwise. The details of 
directors’ attendances in financial year 2015 are provided below. 

A formal agenda is issued for each board meeting and supporting documentation is distributed to all 
directors at least five working days before a board meeting to provide sufficient time for preparation.

Members 
and meetings 
attendance

ATTENDANCE

Executive
Board  
meetings

Special board 
meetings

Teddy Daka (CEO) 4/4 3/3

Rachelle Grobbelaar (CFO) 4/4 3/3

Independent non-executive

Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube (Chairperson) 4/4 3/3

Fezile Dantile 4/4 3/3

Sizakele Mzimela 4/4 3/3

David Keebine 
(Resigned effective 28 August 2014 and for this reason only attended  
two scheduled board meetings during his term as director)

2/2 –

Independence 4/6*, 3/5**

Evaluations Individual director, chairperson, executive directors and board evaluations were conducted during 
Fy2015 and the board was satisfied with the overall outcome thereof. 

Achievements 
during the year

• Realignment of group strategy

*		Independent	non-executive	directors	are	independent	in	line	with	recommendations	as	set	out	in	King	III	and	the	JSE	Listings	Requirements
**Subsequent	to	David	Keebine’s	resignation	
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COMMITTEES

Group EXCO
Audit and  
Risk Committee

Social, Ethics and 
Remuneration 
Committee

Nominations 
Committee

Responsibilities •  Reviewing operations 
in detail on a weekly 
basis

•  Monitoring and 
managing risk

•  Developing and 
implementing the 
group strategic plan

•  Determining human 
resources policy and 
practices

•  Preparing budgets 
and monitoring 
expenditure

•  Monitoring 
operational 
performance against 
agreed KPIs and 
targets

•  Adhering to 
financial and capital 
management policies

•   Appointment and 
assessment of 
independence of the 
external auditor

•  Financial statements 
and accounting 
practices

•  Internal financial 
control

•  Risk management
•  Evaluation of CFO
•  Integrated reporting 

and combined 
assurance model

(For the full report see 
page 69)

Remuneration function
•  Ensuring the 

remuneration policy 
is competitive and will 
appropriately attract, 
retain and reward 
skilled and quality 
employees

•  Assessing 
executive and non-
executive directors’ 
remuneration

•  Assessing the 
performance of the 
executive directors 
in executing their 
functions

•  Determining short- 
and long-term 
incentives for group 
executives

•  Succession planning

Social and ethics 
function
•  Monitoring initiatives 

to promote diversity
•  Supporting 

management in 
embracing principles 
of transformation

(For the full report see 
page 60 and for further 
details see ‘Impacts of 
our Business’ on pages 
62 – 65)

•  Advising on the 
composition of the 
board

•  Reviewing the board 
structure, size and 
balance between 
non-executive and 
executive directors

•  Identifying and 
recommending 
qualified candidates 
for directorships

•  Ensuring that 
the board has an 
appropriate balance 
of skills, experience 
and diversity

Delegation Board delegates the 
authority to the CEO 
for implementation of 
strategy and the daily 
running of the group

The committee is a 
statutory committee 
under the Companies 
Act and JSE Listings 
Requirements (and in 
the recommendations 
set out in King III) and 
as such is responsible 
for prescribed 
statutory duties as 
well as any additional 
responsibilities

The committee is 
appointed by the board

The committee is 
appointed if and when 
necessary by the board

cOntInuedcOrpOrate gOvernance
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COMMITTEES

Group EXCO
Audit and  
Risk Committee

Social, Ethics and 
Remuneration 
Committee

Nominations 
Committee

Members 
and meetings 
attendance

Teddy Daka (CEO)
Rachelle Grobbelaar 
(CFO)
Dave Howie (COO)
Kgabo Badimo (CBDO)

Attendance Attendance Attendance

David Keebine 1/1*
(Chairperson until his 
Resigned on  
28 August 2014)

Siza Mzimela 2/2* 
(Appointed as chairperson 
on 1 September 2014 
subsequent to David 
Keebine’s resignation)

Fezile Dantile 2/2*

Nonhlanhla  
Mjoli-Mncube  1/1* 
(Appointed to the 
committee on  
1 September 2014, 
subsequent to David 
Keebine’s resignation)

Invitees:
External auditors, 
Designated advisors,
Teddy Daka (CEO)
Rachelle Grobbelaar 
(CFO)
Nonhlanhla  
Mjoli-Mncube 
(Chair) 
(other members of the 
board) 

Fezile Dantile 1/1
(Chairperson)

David Keebine 1/1*
(Resigned on  
28 August 2014)

Nonhlanhla  
Mjoli-Mncube  1/1

Invitees:
Teddy Daka (CEO)
Rachelle Grobbelaar 
(CFO)

No meeting was held for 
period under review  

Number of 
independent 
non-executive 
directors

N/A 3/3  2/2 No meeting was held for 
the period under review

Achievements 
during the year

•  Integration of Tedaka
•  Implementation of 

realigned strategy
•  Executive 

management 
bolstered

•  Group risk matrix is 
considered at each 
meeting

•  Terms of reference 
were reviewed and 
adopted by the 
committee 

•  The committee 
further adopted the 
remuneration and the 
B-BBEE policies

N/A

*	Meeting	attendances	during	term	of	service	as	committee	

A brief curriculum vitae for each director is set out on page 31 of the integrated report.

All committees are governed by formal terms of reference which are available at www.ansys.co.za.
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THE BOARD
The board ensures effective control over the group by 

continuously monitoring the implementation of strategies, 

policies and goals which are prepared by executive 

management based on the group’s core competencies, existing 

skills, overarching values and ultimate goal of value creation.

The role of the board is documented in a formal charter which 

outlines the scope of authority, responsibility, composition and 

functioning of the board. The charter is reviewed regularly.

Ansys’ unitary board at year-end comprised five directors, two 

of whom were executives, and three of whom were independent 

non-executives.

Chairperson

The independence of the Chairperson is paramount to the 

successful implementation of good corporate governance 

practices at board level. 

The Chairperson of the board is charged with providing the 

board with leadership, and to harness the talents and energy 

contributed by each of the individual directors.

The core functions and responsibilities of the Chairperson are 

set out below: 

•  To govern the workings of the board, including directing the 

meetings of the board and acting as a conciliatory element 

when elements of the board differ;

•  To provide overall leadership to the board;

•  To set the ethical tone for the board and the company;

•  To act as the link between the board and management and 

particularly between the board and the CEO;

•  To provide independent advice and counsel to the CEO;

•  To keep abreast generally of the activities of the company 

and its management;

•  To serve on other committees of the board where 

appropriate as determined by the board;

•  To ensure that good relations are maintained with 

the company’s major shareholders and its strategic 

stakeholders, and preside over shareholders’ meetings;

•  In concert with the CEO, to determine the date, time and 

location of the annual meeting of shareholders and to 

develop the agenda for the meeting;

•  To act as chair at meetings of shareholders;

•  To formulate (with the CEO and company secretary) the 

yearly work plan for the board against agreed objectives, 

and to play an active part in setting the agenda for board 

meetings and to recommend an annual schedule of the date, 

time and location of board and committee meetings;

•  To call special meetings of the board where appropriate;

•  To ensure that complete, timely, relevant, accurate, honest 

and accessible information is placed before the board to 

enable directors to reach an informed decision;

•  To uphold rigorous standards of preparation for meetings;

•  To preside over board meetings and to ensure that time in 

meetings is used productively;

•  To use this power appropriately and not to influence the 

outcome of the meetings towards a specific agenda;

•  To ensure that regularly, upon completion of the ordinary 

business of a meeting of the board, the directors hold 

discussions without management present;

•  To review and sign minutes of board meetings;

•  To ensure that decisions by the board are executed;

•  To manage conflicts of interest;

•  To recommend to the board, after consultation with the 

directors, management and the Nominations Committee,  

the appointment of members of the committees of the board;

•  To identify and participate in selecting board members  

(via a Nominations Committee);

•  To assess and make recommendations to the board annually 

regarding the effectiveness of the board as a whole, the 

committees of the board and individual directors; 

•  To oversee a formal succession plan for the board, CEO and 

certain senior management appointments such as the chief 

financial officer;

•  To ensure that all directors are appropriately made aware of 

their responsibilities through a tailored induction programme, 

and to ensure that a formal programme of continuing 

professional education is adopted at board level; and

•  To ensure that directors play a full and constructive role in 

the affairs of the company and take a lead role in the process 

for removing non-performing or unsuitable directors from 

the board.

The performance of the Chairperson is assessed by the board 

every second year. No one director has unfettered power of 

decision-making.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the 

businesses, the development and implementation of strategy, 

and the submission of business plans and budgets to the board 

for consideration.

In this regard the CEO is assisted by the CFO, COO and CBDO.

(See page 31 for a biography of the CEO.)

cOntInuedcOrpOrate gOvernance
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Independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive directors are high merit 

individuals who objectively contribute a wide range of 

industry skills, knowledge and experience to the board’s 

decision-making process. (See page 31 for biographies of the 

independent non-executive directors.) These directors are  

not involved in the daily operations of the company.  

The independent non-executive directors are also entitled 

to seek independent professional advice on any matters 

concerning the affairs of the group, at the company’s expense.

Each non-executive director is given a letter of appointment.

The non-executive directors do not participate in any share 

incentive or share option schemes in the company.

Rotation of directors

All directors, other than the CEO and Chief Financial Officer,  

are subject to retirement and re-election by shareholders  

every three years. Re-election takes place on a staggered basis 

to ensure continuity. Reappointment, however, is not automatic. 

Appointments of new directors are subject to confirmation by 

shareholders at the first annual general meeting after their 

appointment.

The board agreed to recommend the re-election of Nonhlanhla 

Mjoli-Mncube and Sizakele Mzimela, who will retire at the 

upcoming annual general meeting and who offered themselves 

for re-election. 

Appointment to the board and Induction

The board as a whole is responsible for the nomination and 

appointment process for new directors, which is transparent, 

and is assisted in this regard by the Nominations Committee. 

When making appointments, the board considers skills, 

knowledge, experience and the overall composition of  

the board.

All new directors are required to attend a formal induction 

programme, which includes site visits to operations and 

provision of all policies and procedures. In addition, new 

directors are required to attend the AltX Induction Programme 

presented by the Institute of Directors in South Africa  

(the IODSA).

In light of new directors’ extensive industry and business 

experience, additional development programmes have 

not been deemed necessary, but would be considered and 

implemented if considered necessary. The company secretary 

is responsible for keeping the board abreast of new legislation, 

recommendations and best practice.

BOARD PROCESSES
Board succession planning

An informal succession plan is in place for the Chairperson, CEO 

and senior management. The succession plan will be formalised 

as part of the integration of Parsec acquisition. During the 

period under review, the CEO allowed under his guidance a 

number of senior executives to assume the duties of the CEO 

while he was travelling for business purposes.

Share dealings and conflicts of interest

Share dealings are governed in terms of an Insider Trading 

Policy in line with the JSE Listings Requirements. Directors 

are not allowed to trade in securities of the company prior 

to obtaining written consent in line with the JSE Listings 

Requirements. The Chairperson receives clearance from 

the chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee to trade in 

securities of the company. It is also mandatory for directors 

to notify the company secretary of any dealings in company 

shares. This information is then disclosed on SENS within  

48 hours of the trade being made.

No instances of non-compliance were reported during the year.

The director dealings during the year were as follows:

•  Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube purchased 144 877 ordinary 

shares in Ansys Limited on 9 July 2014. She obtained the 

necessary clearance and the information was disclosed  

on SENS within the prescribed period. 

Directors of the company are obliged and, at every board 

meeting, given the opportunity to disclose any material interest 

in contracts with the company or its subsidiaries in terms of 

Section 75 of the Companies Act. Such disclosures are noted 

by the company secretary and kept in a separate register 

of directors’ disclosures. During the period under review, 

disclosures were updated where deemed necessary.

Price-sensitive information

The company acts in accordance with the JSE Limited’s 

guidelines on price-sensitive information. 

The company follows a “closed period” principle, during which 

period employees and directors are prohibited from dealing 

in the company’s shares. Closed periods are usually from end 

February until the publication of the February year-end results 

and from end August until the publication of the August interim 

results. Additional periods may be declared “closed” from time 

to time. 

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
47



SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
Company secretary

Access to the advice and services of the company secretary  

and to company records, information, documents and property 

is unrestricted.

The company secretary – Fusion Corporate Secretarial  

Services Pty Ltd – is a third-party practice, and was appointed 

as the company secretary of the group during 2008 and retains 

the office. 

The board assessed the competence, qualifications and 

experience of the company secretary and was satisfied that 

Fusion Corporate Secretarial Services Pty Ltd is sufficiently 

qualified and skilled to act in accordance with and update 

directors in terms of King III and other relevant regulations  

and legislation. 

The board was further satisfied that the company secretary 

remains independent from Ansys. There is no special 

relationship between the company secretary and any of the 

directors, in that the company secretary and/or any of her 

employees are not a relative of or closely related to any of 

the directors. The board was therefore satisfied that an arm’s 

length relationship exists.

The company secretary is responsible for guiding the board in 

discharging its regulatory, fiduciary and ethical responsibilities 

and in addition, the company secretary ensures compliance 

with laws and regulations.

Directors have unlimited access to the advice and services of 

the company secretary. The company secretary plays a role 

in the company’s corporate governance and ensures that, 

in accordance with the pertinent laws, the proceedings and 

affairs of the board, the company itself and, where appropriate, 

shareholders are properly administered. The company secretary 

also monitors directors’ dealings in securities and informs 

directors and other relevant parties of closed periods.  

The company secretary attends all board and committee 

meetings and records the minutes.

Designated advisor

Exchange Sponsors Pty Ltd was appointed as the designated 

advisor to the group on listing in 2007 and retains the office.

Transfer secretary 

Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd is Ansys’ transfer 

secretary. The company assists all group shareholders with 

enquiries pertaining to shareholdings.

Board committees

Ansys has an established Audit and Risk Committee, Social, 

Ethics and Remuneration Committee and Nominations 

Committee to assist the board in discharging its responsibility of 

corporate governance, as above. There is transparency and full 

disclosure from board committees to the board in the form of 

verbal reports by committee chairperson on recent activities at 

meetings, and the minutes of committee meetings are available 

to the board at any time. 

Attendance of committee meetings is set out on page 43.

The board was satisfied that all committees have satisfied their 

responsibilities during the year.

The chairperson of the committees or a nominated committee 

member attends the company’s annual general meeting to 

answer any questions from stakeholders pertaining to them.

Please see page 67 for the Audit and Risk Committee report  

and page 58 for the Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee 

report.

cOntInuedcOrpOrate gOvernance
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remuneratIOn repOrt

the Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee 
assists the board in ensuring that group 
remuneration and recruitment is aligned with overall 

business strategy, with the aim of enabling us to attract 
and retain personnel who will create long-term value for all 
stakeholders. it ensures that executive remuneration is linked 
in part to individual performance, the group’s performance, 
market conditions and benchmarks. the committee considers 
and makes recommendations to the board on remuneration 
packages and policies in this regard. 

It is therefore authorised by the board to seek any information 

required from any employee and may further obtain external 

legal and/or other independent professional advice if deemed 

necessary, at the expense of the group.

Executive directors who attend committee meetings by 

invitation are barred from deliberations in respect of their own 

or each other’s remuneration.

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHy
The remuneration philosophy reflects our commitment to 

being compliant with best practice and our aspiration to be a 

preferred employer. 

EXCO members are remunerated in terms of a basic 

remuneration package, benchmarked against industry 

parameters, with an incentive for achievement of defined KPIs 

such as profit before tax. The annual remuneration packages 

are structured on a cost-to-company basis and increases are 

benchmarked against market-related surveys. Annual increases 

are also dependent on individual achievement of respective key 

performance area targets as well as subject to affordability by 

the group. Executive directors do not receive fees for services 

as a director.

The Remuneration Committee determines the salaries for the 

executive directors, which are approved by the board.  

The assessment of a new bonus scheme and share scheme  

was temporarily put on hold until the Parsec transaction is 

concluded to ensure alignment of benefits within the group.

The non-executive directors, other than the Chairperson of the 

board, were in the past remunerated on a monthly retainer as 

well as attendance fee per meeting. It is now proposed that 

non-executive directors, as is the case for the Chairperson of 

the board, receive monthly remuneration as opposed to a fee 

per meeting. This recognises the responsibility of directors  

for the efficient control of the company and creates the  

expectation that the non-executive directors will attend every 

board or committee meetings. A premium is payable to the 

Chairperson of the board, as well as to the chairpersons of  

the subcommittees.

These fees have been determined with reference to 

comparative JSE peer companies as well as independent 

surveys obtained from 21st Century.
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rIsk management

Risk management remains integral to the day-to-day 

operation of our business. in the ordinary course of 

business the group is exposed to a wide range of 

risk that may have serious consequences for our operations 

and performance, and therefore our sustainability. Effective 

management of this supports the delivery of our objectives 

and achievement of sustainable growth.

We adopt a holistic approach to managing uncertainty, 

representing both risk and opportunity. The aim is to establish 

the acceptable level of risk in each area of business, which 

should be as low as reasonably practical, while taking full 

advantage of the highest returns possible to maximise 

shareholder wealth. In all risk management activities,  

Ansys complies with King III.  

RISK MITIGATION

Strategic

Dependency on government infrastructure 

spending

•  Strong B-BBEE rating

•  Product and service diversification

•  Customer diversification

Lagging behind technological advances, 

competitors and/or market development

•  Attend technical conferences (local and international)

•  Regular technical training (formal and informal)

•  Focus on recruitment of young engineers

Inadequate compliance with customer  

B-BBEE requirements

•  Robust aplication of employment equity

•  Increase black women ownership

• Expand our enterprise development programme

• Accelerate skills development

Project risk

Material and equipment theft and vandalism •  On-site security

•  Insurance

•  Regular review by group insurance provider (independent)

Contract (project) execution •  Capacity planning

•  Sub-contracting to diverse supplier base

Technical: design aspects, execution, change 

in specifications and scope creep

•  Specification sign-off by customer in advance

•  Regular meetings with customer and project team until delivery

Financial

Debtor recovery or late payments •  Upfront payments/deposits or payment bonds/guarantees

•  Secure medium- to long-term funding

Exchange rate volatility •  Hedging of all exposures through foreign exchange contracts and other 

hedging products

•  Ensure quotation of appropriate forward rates to customers for foreign 

components

Human resources

Succession planning •  Focus on recruitment of young engineers and developing skills for  

long-term retention

•  Career planning

Uniform policies and procedures •  Policies and procedures to be revised throughout the group
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RISK MITIGATION

Legal

Contracts •  Standardised contract terms and conditions to be rolled out as the norm

Enterprise governance

Adherence to legislative requirements,  

JSE requirements and other guidelines

•  Update legal register frequently

•  Retaining services of reputable designated advisors

•  Knowledgeable company secretary

IT

Restrict access to sensitive data • Implement IT policy throughout the group

•  Manage internal control access to data

•  Maintain firewall and anti virus protection

Disaster recovery programme • Implement IT policy and procedures throughout the group

•  Off-site data storage and cross-site backups

•  Regularly upgrade and maintain servers

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
Board
The board retains ultimate responsibility for the control and 

mitigation of risk.

The directors are responsible for the group’s systems of 

internal control as they determine them necessary to enable  

the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to maintain adequate accounting records and an effective 

system of risk management. The board annually evaluates 

the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems 

and processes, and monitors whether internal control 

recommendations have been implemented.

The systems are designed to safeguard and maintain 

accountability of the group’s assets and should identify and 

curtail significant fraud, potential liability, loss and material 

misstatement while complying with applicable statutory laws 

and regulations.

The systems of internal control are designed to manage rather 

than eliminate risk. Absolute assurance cannot be provided as 

inherent limitations in the system’s effectiveness exist due to 

human involvement.

No material matter came to the attention of the board  

during the year to indicate a breakdown in the internal systems 

of control.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the 

group’s risk management programme and reporting thereon to 

the board. The  Audit and Risk Committee approves the group’s 

risk appetite and ensures it is aligned with strategy. Formal risk 

assessments are conducted at least once a year.

EXCO
The day-to-day responsibility for risk management resides  

with the CEO. The CEO is accountable to the board for designing, 

implementing and monitoring the risk management framework 

throughout the group and submits reports at each  Audit and 

Risk Committee meeting.

External audit and other professional providers
The independent external auditors, BDO South Africa Inc.,  

as recommended by the  Audit and Risk Committee and 

appointed by the group’s shareholders, are responsible for 

reporting on whether the annual financial statements are fairly 

presented in compliance with IFRS and the Companies Act. 

The preparation of the annual financial statements remains the 

responsibility of the directors. The board, assisted by the Audit 

and Risk Committee, meets regularly with the external auditors 

and formally evaluates their independence annually.

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
51



Risk identification process
The risk management process is continuous, with well-defined steps.

IT governance

The board acknowledges its responsibility for IT governance  

and business continuity as part of its assumption of 

responsibility for risk management at the group, and recognises 

the importance of aligning the company’s IT strategy with  

our revised business strategy and objectives. While this is  

not currently consolidated in a formal IT Charter, related 

matters are discussed at the weekly executive meetings and an 

Ansys group IT policy is in place, which has been successfully 

rolled out at Tedaka. 

In line with the risk management framework above, the  Audit 

and Risk Committee monitors IT risk by reviewing IT activities 

and applicable IT standards and governance frameworks.  

The board and EXCO are responsible for the design, 

implementation and operation of the IT governance processes.

The  Audit and Risk Committee obtains assurances from the 

external auditors that effective controls are in place to address 

IT risks. The most prominent aspect in business continuity is 

protection of IT systems. Ansys currently performs weekly 

cOntInued

Risks from all sources are identified.

Identified risks are assessed according to a materiality threshold.

network backups, a hard copy of which is stored offsite, as well 

as software backups of each site at sister locations. The latest 

technology in firewall protection, spam and virus protection is 

utilised. Most of the servers have been upgraded to provide the 

necessary storage as well as for reliability. Remote software is 

used to monitor the server health situation.

This protection has to be extended to the additional facility, 

obtained through the acquisition of Tedaka,  to allow the group 

to operate as a single entity. There is now a seamless single 

IT system in operation. A higher capacity internet link has 

significantly improved IT services at Tedaka and allows for a 

common directory structure and information sharing. Software 

legalisation is monitored biannually and any shortfalls are 

addressed. Windows 365 has been implemented to allow staff 

to operate in a modern mobile environment and data storage 

is moving increasingly to the cloud. The major challenges 

going forward will be expanding the above environment to 

incorporate Parsec into the group and an upgrade to the  

ERP system.

If determined to be material, a formal process begins in which causal factors and 

consequences are identified and the correlation with other risks and mitigating  

controls is reviewed.

An assessment is undertaken of the potential direct and indirect impacts of social, 

environmental or economic and governance risks.

The most material business risks are appropriately categorised based on 

impact and likelihood of occurrence, together with amelioration control 

measures.
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cOmplIance framewOrk

LEGAL COMPLIANCE
The board is responsible for ensuring compliance with laws  

and regulations. New legislation that impacts the group is 

discussed at board meetings. The group currently adheres to 

the following major legislation:

• Companies Act

• Electronic Communications and Transactions Act 25 of 2002

• Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993

• Regulation of Interception of Communications Act 70 of 2002

• Protection of Personal Information Act 4 of 2013

• Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of 2000

• Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act 53 of 2013.

The group also complies with the JSE Listings Requirements and 

the recommendations of King III.

APPLICATION OF KING III AND COMPANIES ACT
During the year, the group progressed its journey towards better 

governance as certain King III principles, previously not applied, 

were brought on line; for instance the complete separation of 

the roles of the independent group Chair and CEO.

The table below represents the ongoing areas of non- or partial 

compliance with King III and the new Companies Act. Processes 

have been put in place to address these gaps as outlined below:

KiNg iii 
PRiNCiPlE DESCRiPtiON COMPliANCE

3.5 The Audit Committee should ensure 

that a combined assurance model 

is applied to provide a coordinated 

approach to all assurance activities.

The current assurance model only includes assurance from an  

external audit. Given the current size of the group, an internal function is 

currently not considered practical or necessary, but the committee and 

the board revisit the demand for this function regularly.

Currently EXCO and the board oversee the group’s systems of internal 

control and a report is submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee 

annually by EXCO.

External auditor representatives attend every Audit and Risk  

Committee meeting.

7.1 The board should ensure that there is 

an effective risk-based internal audit.

As above.

7.2 Internal audit should follow a risk-

based approach to its plan.

As above.

7.3 Internal audit should provide a written 

assessment of the effectiveness of the 

company’s system of internal control 

and risk management.

7.4 The Audit Committee should be 

responsible for overseeing internal 

audit.

7.5 Internal audit should be strategically 

positioned to achieve its objectives.

9.3 Sustainability reporting and disclosure 

should be independently assured.

The board recognises its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the 

group’s integrated report.

The authority to evaluate sustainability disclosures and the oversight  

of assurance providers is delegated to the Audit and Risk Committee.

Sustainability reporting and disclosures are currently not independently 

assured. The board is satisfied that current information contained in 

the integrated report is reliable and does not conflict with the financial 

aspects of the report.
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KiNg iii, CHAPtER 2 APPliCAtiON CONtiNUED

KiNg iii 
PRiNCiPlE DESCRiPtiON COMPliANCE

2.1 The board should ensure that the 
company has an effective and 
independent Audit Committee.

The board assumes ultimate responsibility for compliance with the 
corporate governance principles as stipulated in the King Report.  
The board charter is based on these principles. The board meets at 
least once a quarter and corporate governance is a standard item on 
the agenda. The board provides a comprehensive corporate governance 
report to stakeholders in the integrated report.

2.2 The board should appreciate that 
strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable.

The risk management strategy is approved by the board and reviewed 
quarterly by the Audit and Risk Committee. The strategy takes 
cognisance of inherent risks of the group’s business and the need to 
achieve sustainable outcomes.

2.3 The board should provide  
effective leadership based on an 
ethical foundation.

The board operates in accordance with a clearly defined charter which 
sets out all aspects of effective and ethical leadership. The board 
is responsible for the development of the group’s strategy and is 
continuously monitoring the execution thereof.

Great emphasis is placed on operating in an ethical and sustainable 
manner to promote the long-term interests of all stakeholders. The 
board requires that all employees of the group act ethically at all times.

2.4 The board should ensure that the 
company is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen.

The Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee monitors the group’s 
activities and the impact thereof on society and the environment. 
It strives to protect and invest in the wellbeing of society and the 
environment and has adopted specific policies and a code of ethics to 
ensure adherence to its principles. The group and its employees are 
required to operate in accordance with these policies and the Code  
of Conduct.

2.5 The board should ensure that  
the company’s ethics are managed 
effectively.

The board ensures that the group’s ethical standards are clearly 
articulated and supported as an integral part of conducting its business. 
Management is required to report on the group’s activities in relation 
to its ethics to the Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee. The 
board continuously monitors the group’s standard of ethical behave and 
accountability by management and all employees of the group.

2.6 The board should ensure that the 
company has an effective and 
independent Audit Committee.

An effective and independent Audit and Risk Committee is in place.  
The committee’s charter outlines the roles, power, responsibilities and 
membership. See Audit and Risk Committee report on page 67.

2.7 The board should be responsible for 
the governance of risk.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the board in executing its 
responsibilities in terms of the governance of risk.

2.8 The board should be responsible 
for information technology (IT) 
governance.

The board has assumed the responsibility for the governance of IT and 
monitors IT activities through the Audit and Risk Committee.  
The committee reviews IT standards, governance frameworks and 
results of internal audit reviews.

See IT governance on page 51.

KiNg iii, CHAPtER 2 APPliCAtiON
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KiNg iii, CHAPtER 2 APPliCAtiON CONtiNUED

KiNg iii 
PRiNCiPlE DESCRiPtiON COMPliANCE

2.9 The board should ensure that the 
company complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence to non-
binding rules, codes and standards.

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the board in ensuring that a 
relevant compliance framework is maintained and that applicable laws 
and regulations are complied with.

2.10 The board should ensure that there is 
an effective risk-based internal audit.

An effective risk-based internal audit function is in place.

2.11 The board should appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions affect the 
company’s reputation.

The board acknowledges the importance of the perception of its 
stakeholders on its reputation.

See Our stakeholders on page 26 for further details.

2.12 The board should ensure the integrity 
of the company’s integrated report.

The Audit and Risk Committee is delegated to approve the integrated 
report after satisfying itself with respect to the accuracy and integrity of 
the report.

2.13 The board should report on the 
effectiveness of the company’s system 
of internal controls.

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring the 
effectiveness of the company’s system of internal controls. It reports to 
the board and its findings are summarised in the report of the chairman 
of the Audit and Risk Committee in the group’s integrated report.

2.14 The board and its directors should act 
in the best interests of the company.

The board acts in the best interest of the group by ensuring that  
each director:
• adheres to legal standards of conduct as set out in the Companies Act;
•  exercises his or her fiduciary duties with the best interests of the 

group at heart; 
•  is permitted to take independent advice in connection with his or  

her duties; 
•  discloses real or perceived conflicts to the board and deals with  

them accordingly;
•  deals in securities only in accordance with the policy adopted by  

the board; and
•  is encouraged to attend all board and board committee meetings  

in an effort to better understand the business and to add benefit to  
the group.

2.15 The board should consider business 
rescue proceedings or other 
turnaround mechanisms as soon as 
the company is financially distressed 
as defined in the Act.

The Audit and Risk Committee considers the “going concern” status of  
the group at each meeting (held quarterly) and receives a report from 
the external auditors on the “going concern” status of the group at half-
year and financial year-end.

To ensure early detection of financial distress the board has developed 
various reporting metrics which are included in the quarterly  
board reports.

2.16 The board should elect a chairman of 
the board who is an independent non-
executive director. The chief executive 
officer of the company should not also 
fulfil the role of chairman of the board.

Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube was appointed as independent non-executive 
director and chairman of the board in June 2013. The roles of the 
chairman and CEO are separate.
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KiNg iii, CHAPtER 2 APPliCAtiON CONtiNUED

KiNg iii 
PRiNCiPlE DESCRiPtiON COMPliANCE

2.17 The board should appoint the  

chief executive officer and establish a 

framework for the delegation  

of authority.

The board is responsible for the appointment of the CEO. Teddy Daka 

was appointed as CEO on 4 June 2013. (Teddy Daka acted as interim  

CEO since 1 July 2012.)

A delegation of authority matrix will be finalised and approved by 

the board as part of the integration of the Parsec transaction as the 

transaction has a significant impact on it. The matrix will describe 

specific levels of authority and required approvals for all major  

decisions at both group and business level. It stipulates which executive 

position or committee needs to be consulted prior to taking a decision, 

which body is responsible for taking the decision and who should be 

informed of the decision. The matrix will be evaluated and updated on a 

regular basis.

Currently, a financial administration and control document includes the 

delegation of authority from the board to executives which has been 

approved by the board.

2.18 The board should comprise a balance 

of power, with a majority of  

non-executive directors. The majority 

of non-executive directors should be 

independent.

The board comprises five directors. Three are independent non-

executive directors and two are executive directors.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is 

assessed at least once a year by the board.

Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube was appointed to the board on 4 June 2013 as 

independent Chair.

2.19 Directors should be appointed through 

a formal process.

The Nominations Committee assists the board with the assessment, 

recruitment and nomination of new directors. The board is responsible 

for appointing new directors and board members are invited to interview 

potential appointees. Shareholders approve the initial appointment of 

each new director at the first annual general meeting following that 

director’s appointment.

A third of the directors retire by rotation annually and, if eligible, 

available and recommended by the Nominations Committee, their names 

are submitted for re-election at the annual general meeting.

2.20 The induction of and ongoing  

training and development of directors 

should be conducted through  

formal processes.

A formal induction policy of new directors has been approved by  

the board. The induction policy stipulates which information should be 

provided to new directors and makes provision for site visits to various 

developments of the group.

Directors are encouraged to remain abreast of major governance and 

regulatory developments and where applicable the board receives 

formal presentations on key topics.

cOntInuedcOmplIance framewOrk
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KiNg iii, CHAPtER 2 APPliCAtiON CONtiNUED

KiNg iii 
PRiNCiPlE DESCRiPtiON COMPliANCE

2.21 The board should be assisted by a 

competent, suitably qualified and 

experienced company secretary.

Fusion Corporate Secretarial Services Pty Ltd was appointed as company 

secretary of the group in October 2007. Fusion has combined experience 

of more than 10 years in company secretarial practice. Combined 

qualifications include certificates in advanced business and securities 

law and BCom (Law) degrees.

Fusion does not serve as a director of the board and has an arm’s length 

relationship with the board.

2.22 The evaluation of the board, its 

committees and the individual directors 

should be performed every year.

Board and committee assessments were conducted during the  

current year.

2.23 The board should delegate certain 

functions to well structured 

committees but without abdicating its 

own responsibilities.

The board has appointed the following committees to assist it in 

discharging its responsibilities:

• Audit and Risk Committee;

• Nominations Committee; and

• Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee.

Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the board committees 

and they operate under written terms of reference approved by  

the board. The board committees report back to the board at every  

board meeting.

2.24 A governance framework should be 

agreed between the group and its 

subsidiary boards.

All subsidiaries apply the policies and procedures of the  

holding company.

2.25 Companies should remunerate 

directors and executives fairly and 

responsibly.

The board has approved a remuneration policy applicable to executive 

directors and senior management. The annual remuneration packages 

are structured on a cost-to-company basis and increases are 

benchmarked against market-related surveys and compared to the JSE 

(AltX) peer companies. Annual increases are dependent on the overall 

affordability by the company. Key performance areas (KPAs) are  

also considered.

The non-executives, are remunerated on a monthly retainer basis 

as well as a fee per attendance of meetings. These fees have been 

determined with reference to comparative JSE peer companies.  

The executive directors do not receive fees for services as a director.

2.26 Companies should disclose the 

remuneration of each individual 

director and certain senior executives.

Non-executive and executive directors’ remuneration is disclosed in  

the integrated report.

2.27 Shareholders should approve the 

company’s remuneration policy.

The remuneration policy is tabled to shareholders at the annual general 

meeting. Shareholders vote in the form of a special resolution where  

75% of the votes are required for the approval of the remuneration.

The full King III application is available on the website.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, 
     Ansys is mindful of the 
potential positive and 
 negative impacts the group has on the  
              communities in which 
                                    we operate
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the chairman of the Social, Ethics and Remuneration 

Committee (the committee) has pleasure in 

presenting to shareholders this report for the 

financial year-ended 28 February 2015.

COMPOSITION AND MEETING ATTENDANCE
The current members are as follows:

Fezile Dantile (Chairman);

Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube; and

Sizakele Mzimela (appointed subsequent to the resignation of 

David Keebine on 28 August 2014). 

The committee meets at least once a year as per its terms of 

reference. During the year, one meeting was held. Details of 

attendance are set out on page 45.

The CEO and CFO and other members of the executive team 

attend meetings by invitation only.

ROLE, PURPOSE AND PRINCIPAL FUNCTIONS OF THE 
COMMITTEE
The committee operates in line with its approved terms of 

reference, which are reviewed on an annual basis. 

The committee fulfils a combined role between the roles of 

the remuneration committee as well as the Social and Ethics 

Committee roles assigned to it in terms of regulation 43 of the 

Companies Act 71 of 2008. 

REMUNERATION 
The responsibilities of the Committee in its role as a 

Remuneration Committee include:

•   To oversee the establishment of a remuneration policy that 

will promote the achievement of strategic objectives and 

encourage individual performance;

•   To ensure that the remuneration policy should be put to a 

non-binding advisory vote at the annual general meeting of 

shareholders once every year;

•  To oversee the setting and administering of remuneration at 

all levels in the company;

•  To review the outcomes of the implementation of the 

remuneration policy to establish if the objectives are  

being achieved;

•  To ensure that the mix of fixed and variable pay, in cash, 

shares and other elements, meets the company’s needs and 

strategic objectives;

•  To ensure that all benefits, including retirement benefits 

and other financial arrangements, are justified and  

correctly valued;

•  To consider the results of the evaluation of the performance 

of the CEO and other executive directors, both as directors 

and as executives, in determining remuneration;

•  To select an appropriate comparative group when comparing 

remuneration levels; 

•  To advise on the remuneration of non-executive directors; 

and

•  To oversee the preparation and recommend to the board  

the remuneration report, to be included in the integrated  

annual report. 

SOCIAL AND ETHICS FUNCTIONS
The committee assists the board to build and sustain an ethical 

corporate culture in the group. 

•  The committee monitors the company’s activities, having 

regard to any relevant legislation, other legal requirements or 

prevailing codes of best practice, with regard to matters  

relating to: 

•  social and economic development, including the group’s 

standing in terms of the:

 –  10 principles set out in the United Nations Global Compact 

Principles;

 –  OECD recommendations regarding corruption;

 –  Employment Equity Act; and

 –  Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act.

sOcIal, ethIcs and remuneratIOn cOmmIttee repOrt
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•  The committee monitors good corporate citizenship, 

including the group’s: 

 –  promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, 

and reduction of corruption;

 –   contribution to development of the communities in 

which our activities are predominantly conducted or 

within which our products or services are predominantly 

marketed; and

•  recording of sponsorship, donations and charitable giving.

•  The committee monitors matters relating to the 

environment, health and public safety, including the impact 

of the group’s activities and its services.

•  The committee also monitors consumer relationships, 

including the group’s advertising, public relations and 

compliance with consumer protection laws.

•  The committee monitors labour and employment, including:

 –  the group’s standing in terms of the International Labour 

Organisation Protocol on decent work and working 

conditions; and

 –  employment relationships, and our contribution towards 

the educational development of our employees.

The group operates under a Code of Conduct which includes 

business ethics. This is enforced throughout the group.  

The Code of Conduct is available on the company website  

www.ansys.co.za. The requirements of the Code of Conduct 

have largely been met during the period under review. 

Management reports to the committee on matters relevant 

to its deliberations to enable the members to fulfil their 

responsibilities. 

No human rights incidents occurred during the period  

under review. 

Ansys does not tolerate any use of child labour within its own 

operations. Recruitment of appropriate personnel is conducted 

according to the Ansys Code of Conduct, which includes 

determining the age of an employee, whether permanent, 

casual or temporary, before employment.

The committee draws these matters to the attention of the 

board as occasion requires and one of its members reports to 

the shareholders at the company’s annual general meeting on 

the matters within its mandate. 

Employment equity, B-BBEE, CSI and labour-related issues as 

reviewed by the committee are reported on pages 60 and 61.

Fezile DaNTile
Chairman remuneratiOn, SOCial and  
ethiCS COmmittee 
29 July 2015
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transfOrmatIOn

During the year we improved our rating to a level 2 contributor from level 4.

The directors continue to monitor progress against transformation objectives, supported by the Remuneration, Social, and 

Ethics Committee.

Our BEE committee is driving the initiatives aimed at realising our strategic goal of progressing to Level 1 in the medium-term.  

To achieve this we have targets determined by EXCO. The BEE committee, at regular BEE committee meetings, will monitor the 

group’s progress towards these targets. A group B-BBEE strategy is currently under review and will be presented to the board for 

approval in due course.

The BEE scorecard has undergone significant changes during the year:

BEE code
ITC

Charter 
Generic
Charter

Scorecard rating (%)
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Ownership 20 22 20 18,49 17,21 17,08 15,00 17,05

Management control 10 8,25 10 6,56 4,72 1,50 0,75 0,60

Employment equity 10 4,11 15 3,33 2,83 2,76 0,00 1,76

Skills development 17 12,55 15 0,02 0,54 0,33 1,13 0,03

Preferential procurement 20 19,04 20 16,71 17,07 15,93 11,79 8,06

Enterprise development 11 11 15 15,00 15,00 14,27 15,00 15,00

Socio-economic development 12 12 5 5,00 5,00 3,75 2,21 3,87

RATING 2 4 5 5 6 6

OWNERSHIP
The acquisition of Tedaka resulted in improved ownership scores as Teddy Daka’s direct and indirect ownership of the group 

consequently increased from 27,33% to 51%. In addition, UBU Investments Pty Ltd has a 6% stake in the business, taking total black 

ownership to 57%.

MANAGEMENT CONTROL
During the last verification period, Teddy Daka’s appointment as CEO, and the appointment of two black female independent non-

executive directors, Nonhlanhla Mjoli-Mncube and Siza Mzimela, significantly improved scores in management control. This means 

that of the current five directors, four are black and two female. The score further improved during the current verification with the 

appointment of Kgabo Badimo as CBDO to EXCO.

EMPLOyMENT EqUITy
EXCO implements and adheres to the requirements of the Employment Equity Act. Employment equity has been earmarked as an 

area of focus in the current year. Our approach to improving our employment equity is to focus on skills and leadership development 

to ensure that wherever possible, we are able to promote our existing employees into leadership and management positions.

The group’s employment equity demographics are set out in the table below:

African
Col-

oured Indian White

Sub- 
total 
male African

Col-
oured Indian White

Sub- 
total 

female Total

Top management 3 0 0 1 4 2 0 0 1 3 7

Senior management 2 0 0 3 5 1 0 0 1 2 7

Professionally qualified 7 1 1 17 26 0 0 0 3 3 29

Skilled 6 2 2 6 16 8 1 1 3 13 29

Semi-skilled 12 1 0 3 16 11 0 0 0 11 27

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Disabled 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

total employees 31 4 3 30 68 22 1 1 8 32 100
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 COMPASS runs a rehabilitation programme 
for homeless women and children, providing 
professional counselling programmes through 
registered counsellors, qualified teachers and 
mental health practitioners.R28 200

 Oliver House runs five social projects in the 
Zenzele informal settlement on the East Rand 
focused on early childhood development, 
education and community development. R28 200

 Girls & Boys Town is the largest private childcare 
organisation in South Africa, providing residential 
care to children whose own families cannot cope.R28 200

Donations to schools: 
Irene Primary 

Voortrekkerhoogte High SchoolR7 200

R60 000

The Rotary Foundation transforms donations 
into projects that change lives both close to 
home and around the world. Foundation  
grants empower Rotarians to approach 
challenges such as poverty, illiteracy, and 
malnutrition with sustainable solutions that 
leave a lasting impact.

R40 000

The Nyeleti’s Children’s Home is an inter-
denominational organisation that cares for 
abused and homeless children and orphans. 
They provide shelter, food, clothing and 
education to integrate coping and self-
sufficient people into the community at the 
appropriate time.

R30 000

nyeletI

 Child Welfare South Africa provides 
intervention to vulnerable children, through 
security, development and helping the  
children cope independently. R19 000

Mandela Day The group took action and inspired 
change by modifying and improving various 
aspects of Ma Julie’s Early Learning Centre in 
Olievenhoutbosch, a day care and learning centre 
for over 100 children from the local community. 
Our staff demonstrated their commitment to 
the project by personally building and mounting 
new shelves and doors, painting the play area 
and participating in the fun day activities. Toys, 
blankets and books were donated to the school.R10 000

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
Major focus was placed on skills development and training during the current year. Six black females, with only a matric 
qualification, were employed to work in the assembly line of the ISD products. An up-skill training programme is currently running 
and some of the training includes life skills training, health and safety awareness training and job specific (assembly) training. 
Also see Our people on page 64.

PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT
The group has almost achieved maximum points available for preferential procurement, mainly due to the focus placed on the 
spend from EME’s and QSE. The table below provides a summary of how we performed against our target in the different 
procurement categories:

2015 2014
Target 
R’000

Spend 
R’000

Target 
R’000

Spend 
R’000

Weighted BEE spend - All suppliers 55 226 75 277 17 922 21 825

Weighted BEE spend - QSE and EME 11 191 52 697 3 840 12 785

Procurement spend - Black-owned 8 953 7 086 3 072 1 698

Procurement spend - Black women-owned 5 968 1 980 2 048 53

We have a policy of affirmative procurement preference wherever possible. We focus our efforts on suppliers and services from 
within the communities in which we operate, particularly in remote and rural areas.

ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT
The group has contributed towards enterprise development a value of R1,435 million (2014: R1,647 million) during the 2015 
verification period. Enterprise development has been one of our primary focuses over the last few years. Our aim is to empower and 
enable the transfer of skills by helping establish and grow engineering companies with which we can partner. Assistance can range 
from donating stock, early payment of supplier invoices to technical assistance.

SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
As a responsible corporate citizen Ansys is mindful of the potential positive and negative impacts the group has on the communities 
in which we operate. Given the overwhelming socio-economic needs in South Africa, Ansys adopts a strict and strategic approach 
to its giving to ensure maximum impacts. During the year, the following financial assistance was provided to our chosen charities to 
support them with their operating expenditure:
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Our peOple

SAFETy FRAMEWORK
During the financial year under review, we remained steadfastly 

committed to our policy of improving and targeting zero 

accidents, incidents and occupational illnesses, and making 

safety a way of life. Health and safety are part of the core 

values and incorporated in all aspects of our business. This 

is being emphasised by complying with the South African 

Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993 and legislative 

requirements.

The board and the management team are committed and 

accountable to providing a safe and healthy work environment 

with the approach that visible leadership enables efficient 

practices that will prevent injuries and minimise losses through 

responsible behaviour.

Safety moments form an integral part of meetings, from small 

forums through to the management team.

The group SHEQ manager accomplishes our safety risk and 

performance with the assistance of the safety officer and  

safety committee that comprises the SHE representatives 

from each business facility. Monthly safety committee 

meetings are held to monitor performance. The performance 

is communicated bi-weekly in the operations meeting and 

monthly through the company’s electronic boards. Regular 

internal inspections are conducted and incident notifications 

are recorded and reported at the committee meetings.  

Safety planning is reviewed for each project and legal 

compliance is assured by means of audits against our  

legal register.

All employees are trained in accordance with the OSH Act, 

company policy and client requirements according to a health 

and safety plan conforming to the applicable requirements. 

On-site, safety issues are highlighted to employees by regular 

toolbox talks. Corrective disciplinary action is implemented in 

the event of non-conformances.

We experienced a minor injury that occurred on  

5 February 2015, and corrective and preventative measures 

were implemented in assuring that we remain committed to  

the safety of all employees both on- and off-site.

HEALTH AND WELLNESS
An HIV/AIDS policy is in place which demands fair, ethical, 

confidential and equitable treatment of employees with  

HIV/AIDS. All operations have workplace programmes which 

include education and awareness projects aimed at preventing 

and reducing the impact of HIV/AIDS on our employees. 

Employees are encouraged to undergo voluntary counseling 

and testing through the “know your status” campaign.

qUALITy ASSURANCE
Ansys has been accredited as ISO 9001:2008 since 1999.  

This governs our procedures and standards and ensures 

ongoing monitoring of our quality systems. Our quality 

assurance team monitors problems experienced in the 

execution of all projects, as well as our maintenance and 

infrastructure through the Problem Reporting and Corrective 

Action System (PRACAS) database. 

A new web-based system (AUTOSHEQ) was acquired and is 

currently being used for functions such as audit planning,  

SHEQ document management and asset monitoring and it will 

eventually be rolled out to support the PRACAS database.  

The advancement of the AUTOSHEQ system is accessibility 

anywhere whether on or- off-site.

Lost time injury frequency rate

2013–2014

0

11,6

2014–20152012–2013

0

Incident free hours

2012–2013
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hours
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envIrOnment

Ansys recognises the need to limit environmental 

impact for sustainable operations and growth.  

We are committed to identifying, assessing and 

reducing the environmental impact of the activities performed 

by our operations, production and supply chain as well as our 

products or services. We maintain extensive databases of  

the materials and parts commonly used in our products.  

For major projects, environmental impact assessments (EiAs) 

are conducted with our clients in compliance with the relevant 

environmental legislation and regulations. Our main objective 

is to be iSO 14001 accredited by mid-2017 if relocation happens 

by 2016 as planned.

All our activities during installations for rail and mining 

operations follow strict guidelines to minimise disturbance  

of the ecosystems in which we operate and preserve  

natural resources. Sites have to be cleared and rehabilitated 

upon completion of a project before sign-off is done by the 

client’s environmental officers.

We optimize our manufacturing activities by recycling scrap 

materials, batteries, equipment beyond economic repair and 

obsolete computing equipment.
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LEVEL OF ASSURANCE AND PREPARER
These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of the Companies Act, 
and were prepared by R Grobbelaar CA(SA), the CFO of Ansys Limited. The entity owner’s do not have the power to amend the 
group annual financial statements after issue.

PUBLICATION DATE
6 August 2015
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The directors are required, by the Companies Act, to maintain 

adequate accounting records and are responsible for the 

content and integrity of the annual financial statements and 

related financial information included in this report. It is their 

responsibility to ensure that the consolidated annual financial 

statements satisfy the financial reporting standards as to 

form and content and present fairly the consolidated and 

separate statement of financial position, results of operations 

and business of the group, and explain the transactions and 

financial position of the business of the group at the end of the 

financial year. The annual financial statements are prepared 

in accordance with IFRS, the Companies Act and are based 

upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 

throughout the group and supported by reasonable and prudent 

judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible 

for the system of internal financial control established by the 

company and place considerable importance on maintaining 

a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet 

these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal 

control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost 

effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation 

of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to 

ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 

throughout the group and all employees are required to 

maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s 

business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable 

circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the group is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of 

risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be fully 

eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 

that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 

behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 
procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and 
explanations given by management and the external auditors, 
that the system of internal control provides reasonable 
assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the 
preparation of the consolidated and separate annual financial 
statements. However, any system of internal financial control 
can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. The going-concern  
basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements.  
Based on forecasts and available cash resources the directors 
have no reason to believe that the group will not be a going 
concern in the foreseeable future. The consolidated financial 
statements support the viability of the group.

The financial statements have been audited by the independent 
auditing firm, BDO South Africa Incorporated, who have been 
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related 
data, including minutes of all meetings of shareholders,  
the board of directors and committees of the board. 
The directors believe that all representations made to 
the independent auditor during the audit were valid and 
appropriate. The external auditor’s unqualified audit report  
is presented on page 73.

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements  
as set out on pages 68 to 131 were approved by the board on  
29 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

                          
Teddy daka Rachelle GRobbelaaR

CEO CFO

CERTIFICATE FROM THE COMPANY SECRETARY

I certify that Ansys has filed all its returns and notices for the 

year ended 28 February 2015, as required of a public company in 

terms of section 88 (2) (e) of the Companies Act, and that such 

returns and notices are to the best of my knowledge and belief, 

true, correct and up to date.
Melinda Gous
FusiOn COrpOratE sECrEtarial sErviCEs pty ltd
COmpany sECrEtary
Pretoria

29 July 2015
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

deaR ShaReholdeR
The Audit and Risk Committee (“the committee”) of the company 
has pleasure in submitting its report, as required by the 
Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (“the Companies Act”). 

The committee is an independent statutory committee 
appointed by the shareholders, in terms of the Companies Act 
and recommendations of King III. Other oversight functions 
are performed by the committee as determined by the board 
of directors of the group. This report covers both these sets of 
duties and responsibilities.

The committee consists of three independent non- executive 
directors. Shareholders will be requested to approve the 
appointment of the committee members for the 2016 financial 
year at the upcoming annual general meeting: 
•	 Sizakele	Mzimela	(chairperson);
•	 Fezile	Dantile;	and	
•	 Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube.	

Although King III recommends that the chairperson of the  
board should not be a member of the committee the board 
agreed	that	Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube	be	appointed	as	a	
committee member. This was subsequent to David Keebine’s 
resignation on 28 August 2014, and until the anticipated 
restructuring of the board which is subject to the finalisation  
of the Parsec Transaction. 

A biography for each of these directors is set out on  
page 31 demonstrating their suitable and relevant  
skills and experience.

Meetings 
The committee meets at least twice annually and met twice 
during the period under review. Details of attendance are set 
out on page 45.

The CEO, CFO, Designated Advisors and the External Auditors 
attend meetings by invitation only.

Terms of reference
The committee’s formal terms of reference have been approved 
by the board of directors. The committee has conducted its 
affairs and has discharged its responsibilities and assigned 
functions in terms of section 94 (7) of the Companies Act, and 
contained in the Committee’s charter.

STaTUToRy RoleS aNd ReSPoNSIbIlITIeS
Nomination	for	appointment	as	a	registered	external	 
auditor of the company who, in the opinion of the committee,  
is independent of the company 

The committee has satisfied itself that BDO South Africa Inc. 
and Tinus Jansen van Vuuren, the designated auditor, are 
independent of the company, and are both listed on the JSE  
List of Accredited Auditors. Requisite assurance was sought 
and provided by the auditor that internal governance processes 
within the audit firm support and demonstrate its claim to 
independence.

The committee ensured that the appointment of the auditor 
complied with all legal and professional requirements with 
regard to rotation and independence, including the stipulation 
that the auditors should not hold shares in Ansys.

The Committee evaluated the performance of the external 
auditor and agreed to recommend the reappointment of 
BDO South Africa Inc. and Tinus Jansen van Vuuren as audit 
partner. The board subsequently resolved to accept the 
recommendation of the Committee. 

The external auditors have unrestricted access to the 
committee.

The determination of the audit scope and budget
The Committee considered and approved the Audit Scope and 
Budget for the audit of the financial statements for the year 
ending 28 February 2015. 

The determination of Non-audit services
Non-audit	services	should	exclude	any	work	which	may	be	
subject to external audit and which could compromise the 
auditor’s independence.

There were no non-audit services or fees during the year  
(2014: Rnil).

Financial statements and accounting practices
The committee has reviewed the accounting policies and the 
financial statements of the company and was satisfied with the 
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

appropriateness thereof and further satisfied that it complied 
with the provisions of IFRS. 

The committee recommended the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 28 February 2015 for approval to the board. 
The board has subsequently approved the annual financial 
statements which will be presented and open for discussion at 
the upcoming annual general meeting.

Review and evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal 
financial controls
The board as a whole currently considers the internal 
controls, including financial controls. Based on discussions 
with the external auditors regarding the results of the audit 
and information and explanations given by management, 
the committee has no reason to believe that there were any 
material breakdowns in the effectiveness of internal financial 
controls during the year which have not been addressed or were 
not in the process of being addressed. Therefore the financial 
records can be relied on for preparing financial statements.

Internal audit function
The board reviewed the internal audit function during the 
period under review and agreed that the cost relating to such a 
function	and	the	size	of	the	group	did	not	justify	such	a	function	
at the moment. The committee oversees the internal controls 
and is satisfied that the correct processes are in place. With 
the group expanding, the committee will re-considered the 
establishment of a internal audit function. 

Solvency and liquidity
The committee monitors the solvency and liquidity of the 
group in conjunction with the board and was satisfied that the 
company remained solvent and liquid. 

concerns and complaints
The committee deals with all concerns and complaints 
regarding accounting practices and the auditing or contents of 
the financial statements and the company’s internal financial 
controls.	No	matters	of	significance	were	raised	in	respect	of	
the year under review.

evaluation: cFo and finance function
In terms of the Companies Act, the committee has considered 
and satisfied itself of the appropriateness of the expertise and 
experience of the CFO, Rachelle Grobbelaar.

The committee was further satisfied that the company’s finance 
function was adequately resourced by people with appropriate 
expertise and experience. The committee was also satisfied 
that the internal financial controls were effective. 

Integrated reporting and combined assurance
The committee fulfils an oversight role regarding the company’s 
integrated report and the reporting process.  

The committee considered the company’s sustainability 
information and assessed its consistency with operational and 
other information known to committee members and with the 
annual financial statements. The committee also discussed the 
sustainability information with management and the chair of 
the Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee.

GoING coNceRN
The	committee	has	reviewed	a	documented	assessment;	
including key assumptions prepared by management, of the 
going concern status of the company and has accordingly made 
recommendations to the board. The board’s statement on the 
going concern status of the group and company, as supported 
by the committee, is set out on page 71 of the integrated report.

RISk MaNaGeMeNT
The committee determines the key risk areas faced by the  
group and recommends mitigation measures. It is the 
responsibility of the committee to advise and update the 
board on issues ranging from accounting standards through 
published financial information to the implications of major 
transactions. The committee was satisfied that the appropriate 
risk management processes were in place. The committee has 
reviewed the risk philosophy, strategies and policies and ensures 
that risk management is integrated into business operations.

The committee considered the risk matrix and has nothing 
material to report. See page 50 and 51 for more detail.

GeNeRal
The board was satisfied that the committee members 
collectively have sufficient academic qualifications and/or 
experience in economics, law, corporate governance, finance, 
accounting, commerce, industry, public affairs and human 
resource management as required by Section 94(5) of the 
Companies Act, read with Regulation 42 thereto.

The chair of the committee attends all statutory shareholder 
meetings to answer any questions regarding the committee’s 
activities.

aPPRoval oF The aUdIT aNd RISk coMMITTee 
RePoRT
The committee confirms that its report to shareholders has 
been approved by the board.

SIzakele MzIMela
audit and risk COmmittEE ChairpErsOn 

29 July 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their report for the year ended 28 February 2015.

1. RevIew oF acTIvITIeS
 Main business and operations
  Ansys is active in the rail, defence, mining and telecoms segments. The group develops, produce, distribute and integrate niche 

world class technologies driven engineering solutions for harsh environments with our market segments.

  The operating results and statements of financial position of the company and the group are fully set out in the attached financial 

statements and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. GoING coNceRN
  We draw attention to the fact that at 28 February 2015, the group made a net profit of R10 025 471 (2014 net loss: R7 025 175).  

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 

presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 

contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

  The directors have reviewed the group’s budget and cash flow forecast for the year ended February 2016 which include certain 

assumptions about the cash flows from planned and unplanned projects and raising additional funding when required. On this 

basis and in light of the groups’ current financial position, the directors are satisfied that the group will continue to operate for 

the foreseeable future and have therefore adopted the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

3. eveNTS aFTeR RePoRTING daTe
acquisition of Parsec
Ansys acquired 100% of the shares in and all shareholders claims against Parsec Holdings Pty Ltd (“Parsec”), 25% of the shares 

in and all shareholders claims against Parsec Pty Ltd and 20% of the shares in and all shareholders claims against Redline 

Telecommunications SA Pty Ltd for a maximum amount of R81,7 million, which includes the net consideration for the property, 

Erven 3323 and 3318, Irene Extension 72, Kungwini local municipality, JR, Gauteng, together with all improvements thereon of 

approximately R6,7 million, with the effect from 1 June 2015. Refer to note 21.

Part of the purchase price for the acquisition of Parsec has been funded by the issue on 8 April 2015 of 42 406 667 Ansys ordinary 

no par value shares at 36 cents per share to various new investors in terms of a vendor consideration placing. 

Tedaka Investments loan conversion
To assist in improving the Statement of Financial Position of Ansys, Tedaka Investments Pty Ltd signed an agreement to convert 

the loan entered into with Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd with a value of R7 900 000, into equity, in terms of a specific issue  

of 22 674 375 Ansys ordinary no par value shares to Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd at an issue price of 40 cents per share.  

The shareholder’s approved the specific issue of the shares at the general meeting on 1 June 2015 and the shares were issued  

on 6 July 2015. 

4.  dIRecToRS’ INTeReST IN STaTed caPITal aNd coNTRacTS
  At year end, the directors in aggregate, were directly or indirectly beneficially interested in 125 283 632 ordinary shares, 

equivalent to 51,16% of the issued ordinary shares of Ansys. The directors’ interests in the ordinary issued share capital of the 

group as at  28 February 2015, is set out in the table below:

2015 2014
Number of shares held beneficially Number	of	shares	held	beneficially

direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total

executive
T Daka 45 062 745 80 000 000 125 062 745 45 062 745 80 000 000 125 062 745

Non-executive
N	Mjole-Mncube  220 887 – 220 887 – – –

	 After	year	end,	N	Mjole-Mncube	purchased	4	000	000	shares	at	40	cents	each	on	20	July	2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED

5.  aUThoRISed aNd ISSUed ShaRe caPITal
	 		 	No	changes	other	than	those	below,	or	in	the	event	after	the	reporting	date	were	approved	or	made	to	the	authorised	or	issued	

share capital of the company during the current and prior period.

   Prior year: On 9 December 2013, 80 000 000 ordinary shares were issued as part of the purchase consideration for the Tedaka  
Technologies Pty Ltd acquisition, at a price of R0.33 per share.

6. boRRowING lIMITaTIoNS
	 	In	terms	of	the	Memorandum	of	Incorporation	of	the	company,	the	directors	may	exercise	all	the	powers	of	the	company	to	

borrow money, as they consider appropriate.

7. dIvIdeNdS
	 No	dividends	were	declared	nor	paid	to	the	shareholders	during	the	year.

8.  dIRecToRS
  The directors of the company during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

  executive
  –  Teddy Daka –  Rachelle Grobbelaar

  Non-executive 
	 	 –		Fezile	Dantile	 –		Nonhlanhla	Mjole-Mncube	(Appointed	4	June	2013)	
	 	 –		Siza	Mzimela	(Appointed	4	June	2013)	 –		David	Keebine	(Resigned	28	August	2014)	

9.  SecReTaRy
  The group’s designated company secretary is Fusion Corporate Secretarial Services Pty Ltd.

10. aUdIToRS
  BDO South Africa Incorporated will continue in office in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act of South Africa.

11.  IMPaIRMeNT
  The following impairments were made to non-financial assets:

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Intangible	assets:	Rope	Monitoring	Systems (1 168) (868) (1 168) (868)
Reversal/(impairment) of investment:  
Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd

– – 8 700 (8 700)

  Refer to notes 8 and 10 in the annual financial statements for further detail.

12. INTeReST IN SUbSIdIaRIeS

Percentage held
Profit/(loss)  
for the year Net asset value

Principal activity
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Name % % R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

QuadSoft Pty Ltd Rail communications systems 100 100 – – 8 809 8 809
Tedaka Technologies 
Pty Ltd

The distribution of 
telecommunications 
infrastructure products and 
related network accessories

100 100 4 017 (5 557) (3 682) (7 699)

13. SPecIal ReSolUTIoNS
  The following special resolutions were passed on 28 August 2014 at the annual general meeting:
	 	 •	 	General	authority	to	acquire	(repurchase)	shares
	 	 •	 Remuneration	of	non-executive	directors
	 	 •	 Financial	assistance,	as	amended,	in	terms	of	section	44	and	section	45	of	the	Companies	Act.
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To The ShaReholdeRS oF aNSyS lIMITed
We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Ansys Limited set out on pages 74 to 131, which comprise 
the statements of financial position as at 28 February 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in 
equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

dIRecToRS’ ReSPoNSIbIlITy FoR The coNSolIdaTed FINaNcIal STaTeMeNTS
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

aUdIToR’S ReSPoNSIbIlITy
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on our audit.  
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

oPINIoN
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and 
separate financial position of Ansys Limited as at 28 February 2015, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and 
consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and 
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

oTheR RePoRTS ReqUIRed by The coMPaNIeS acT
As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2014, we have read the 
Directors’ Report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Company Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of identifying whether 
there are material inconsistencies between these reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial statements. 
These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we have not identified material 
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited consolidated and separate financial statements. However, we have not 
audited these reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on these reports.

bdo SoUTh aFRIca INcoRPoRaTed  
PeR: TINUS JaNSeN vaN vUUReN
dirECtOr 
rEgistErEd auditOr
29 July 2015

Riverwalk Office Park
41	Matroosberg	Road,	Ashley	Gardens
Pretoria, South Africa
0081
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
as at 28 February 2015

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Revenue 22  251 121  65 803  106 215  52 694 
Cost of sales  (187 916)  (42 678)  (71 519)  (30 293) 

Gross profit  63 205  23 125  34 696  22 401 
Other income 23   361   654  5 884   629 
Other gains and (losses) 24  4 270   796  (818)  (528) 
Operating costs  (50 532)  (31 917)  (29 574)  (28 048) 

operating profit/(loss) 25  17 303  (7 342)  10 188  (5 546) 
Impairment of intangible asset 8  (1 168)  (868) (1 168)  (868) 
Reversal/(impairment) of investments 10  –  –  8 700  (8 700) 

Profit/(loss) before interest and taxation  16 135  (8 210)  17 720  (15 114) 
Finance income 26 35   3   532   160 
Finance cost 27  (1 842)  (903)  (1 161)  (546) 

Profit/(loss) before taxation  14 327  (9 110)  17 091  (15 500) 
Income tax 28  (4 302)  2 085  (2 383)  1 475 

Profit/(loss) for the year  10 025  (7 025)  14 708  (14 025) 
Other comprehensive income, net of taxation – – – –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  10 025 (7 025)  14 708  (14 025) 

Attributable to:  
Equity holders of the company  10 025  (7 025)  14 708  (14 025) 

earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
ordinary shareholders (cents):
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) 30  4,09  (3,85) 

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
74



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 28 February 2015

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

assets
non-current assets
Plant and equipment 7  1 716 1 584  744 257
Intangible assets 8  1 810 4 170  1 767 4 145
Goodwill 9  15 059 15 059  –   –
Investment in subsidiaries 10  –   –  27 209 18 509
Loans to related parties 11  –   –  1 701 8 160
Deferred taxation 12  8 506 13 161  7 256 10 359

 27 091  33 974  38 677  41 430 

Current assets
Inventories 13 40 533 29 218 19 503 10 084
Derivative financial assets 14  –    80  –    78 
Trade and other receivables 15 64 816 24 031 46 884 10 038
Cash and cash equivalents 16 19 390 508 3 035 57

 124 739  53 837  69 422  20 257 

Total assets  151 830  87 811  108 099  61 687 

equity and liabilities
equity
Stated capital 17  73 668  73 668  73 668  73 668 
Accumulated loss  (31 235)  (41 260)  (24 212)  (38 920) 

 42 433  32 408  49 456  34 748 

non-current liabilities
Loans from related parties 11  9 070  9 993  –   –
Instalment sale agreement 18  532  436  293 –
Deferred taxation 12  894  1 582  828  1 548 

 10 496  12 011  1 121  1 548 

Current liabilities
Loans from related parties 11  5 998 –  9 925  8 809 
Trade and other payables 20  89 938  35 282  45 164  8 651 
Instalment sale agreement 18  350  179  153 –
Bank overdraft 16  –    7 722  –    7 722 
Current tax payable  335  –    –    –   
Provisions 19  2 280  209  2 280  209 

 98 901  43 392  57 523  25 391 

Total liabilities  109 397  55 403  58 644  26 939 

Total equity and liabilities  151 830  87 811  108 099  61 687 
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GRoUP coMPaNy

Notes

Stated
 capital

accu-
mulated

 losses Total
Stated

 capital

accu-
mulated

 losses Total
Name R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Balance	at	1	March	2013  47 268  (9 833)  37 435  47 268  (24 895)  22 373 
Common control business  
combination acquisition 21  –  (24 402)  (24 402)  –  –  – 
Total comprehensive loss for the year  –  (7 025)  (7 025)  –  (14 025)  (14 025) 
Issue of shares 17  26 400  –  26 400  26 400  –  26 400 

Balance at 28 February 2014  73 668  (41 260)  32 408  73 668  (38 920)  34 748 

balance at 1 March 2014  73 668  (41 260)  32 408  73 668  (38 920)  34 748 
Total comprehensive income  
for the year  –  10 025  10 025  –  14 708  14 708 

balance at 28 February 2015  73 668  (31 235)  42 433  73 668  (24 212)  49 456 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ending 28 February 2015
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GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operating activities 31  24 256  4 445 4 242  3 085 
Finance income 26 35   3 532  – 
Finance costs 27  (1 842)  (903) (1 161)  (546) 

Net cash from operating activities 22 449  3 545 3 613  2 539 

cash flows from investing activities
Plant and equipment acquired 7  (382)  (306) (203)  (52) 
Intangible assets acquired 8  (263)  (18) (203)  – 
Proceeds on disposals of plant and equipment 7  2   775 15   572 
Common control business combination acquisition 21  –  (780) –  – 
Loans repaid by related parties – – 6 459 –

Net cash utilised in investing activities  (643)  (329) 6 068   520 

cash flows from financing activities
Loans repaid to related party 11 –  (2 166) –  (2 133) 
Loans received from related party 11  5 075   327 1 116  – 
Instalment sale agreements 18 (277) (97)

Net cash utilised in financing activities 4 798  (1 839) 1 019  (2 133) 

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  26 604  1 377  10 700   926 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year  (7 214)  (8 591)  (7 665)  (8 591) 

cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16  19 390  (7 214) 3 035  (7 665) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ending 28 February 2015
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1. GeNeRal INFoRMaTIoN
  The company is a public listed company which is listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange and is incorporated and domiciled in 

South Africa. The address of its registered office is 140 Bauhinia Street, Highveld Techno Park, Centurion, Pretoria.

2. accoUNTING PolIcIeS
 2.1 Presentation of financial statements

 The consolidated and separate annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and comply with the SAICA Financial Reporting 

Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act of South Africa 

using the historic cost convention, except for certain financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The annual 

financial statements have also been prepared on a going concern basis presented in South African Rand (Rounded to the  

nearest R’000), which is the group’s functional currency.

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied by all group entities as well as consistent with those of the 

previous year, except for the relevant IFRSs, IFRIC interpretations, Circulars and amendments thereto, adopted for the first time 

in accordance with the respective transitional provisions where applicable (refer to note 5). These changes had no material 

impact on reported results, for both the current year and comparative year, other than giving rise to changes to the terminology 

and presentation of relevant disclosure and revision to the relevant accounting policies.

3. SIGNIFIcaNT JUdGeMeNT aNd key SoURceS oF eSTIMaTIoN UNceRTaINTy
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The directors make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 

seldom equal related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying value of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Significant judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made in the process 

of applying the group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements:

(a) Revenue recognition

The group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price service contracts. Use of the percentage-

of-completion method requires the group to account for actual cost incurred to date as a proportion of the total estimated 

contract cost. The total estimated cost of the contract is reviewed on a monthly basis. When the outcome of the transaction 

involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses 

recognised that are recoverable.

(b) Common control business combination: “de facto control”

The company acquired the entire issued share capital of Tedaka during the previous financial year, which was controlled by the 

Ansys CEO, Teddy Daka. In view of his pre-existing significant interest in the issued share capital of Ansys, and taking account of 

an analysis of the attendance and voting patterns at shareholder meetings, it is the judgement of the board that Teddy Daka had 

the practical ability to direct the relevant activities and therefore had de facto control over Ansys before the transaction.  

The directors have assessed that this business combination meets the definition of a business combination under common 

control. Such a business combination does not fall within the scope of IFRS 3 – Business Combinations and the directors have 

therefore recognised the assets and liabilities of the acquiree at their carrying values at acquisition dates.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ending 28 February 2015
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c) Assessment of control

The directors of the company assessed whether control over Parsec was obtained based on the practical ability to direct the 

relevant	activities	of	Parsec	unilaterally.	In	making	their	judgement,	the	directors	considered	the	Groups’	absolute	size	of	holding	

in	Parsec	and	the	relative	size	of	and	dispersion	of	the	shareholding	owned	by	the	other	shareholders.	After	assessment,	the	

directors concluded that control was obtained on 1 June 2015 after all the significant suspensive conditions were met.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of  

the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

within the next financial year.

(a) Goodwill impairment

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4.1 

for goodwill. The recoverable amount of the cash generating units have been determined based on value in use calculations. 

These calculations require the use of estimates in relation to the projections of future cash flows, the projected growth rate, the 

terminal value of the business and the discount rate derived from the weighted average cost of capital specific to the company.

(b) Deferred tax

Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many 

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.  

The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. 

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will 

impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probable that the 

deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred income tax 

assets requires the group to make significant estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future 

taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.  

To the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the group to realise the 

net deferred tax assets recorded at the year end date could be impacted.

Deferred tax is provided for on a basis that is reflective of management’s intention at year end relating to the expected manner 

of recovery of the carrying amount of the asset, i.e. sale or use. This manner of recovery affects the rate used to determine the 

deferred tax liability.

(c) Inventory

Inventory is assessed on a continuous basis in order to ensure that it is correctly valued at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value. An allowance is made against stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value when it is determined 

to be incorrectly valued as a consequence of changes in market conditions or it is considered to be damaged or un-saleable. 

Management’s	policy	in	regard	to	slow	moving	stock	is	that	stock	older	than	365	days	is	identified,	assessed	and	written	down	 

to its estimated net realisable value. The write down is included in cost of sales.

(d) Intangible, plant and equipment assets

Plant and equipment as well as intangible assets are considered for impairment if there is any reason to believe after applying 

the internal and external impairment indicators that impairments may be necessary. Factors taken into consideration include the 

economic viability of the asset itself and where it is a component of a larger cash-generating unit, the viability of the unit.  

The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use or fair value less cost to sell. Value in use is calculated by the future cash 

flows expected to be generated by the assets are projected, taking into account market conditions and the expected useful lives 

of the assets. The present value of these cash flows, determined using an appropriate discount rate, is compared to the current 

asset value and, if lower, the assets are impaired to the present value. Fair value less cost to sell is based on the best estimate of 

the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the 

cost of disposal.

3. SIGNIFIcaNT JUdGeMeNT aNd key SoURceS oF eSTIMaTIoN UNceRTaINTy CoNTINueD
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4. SUMMaRy oF SIGNIFIcaNT accoUNTING PolIcIeS
4.1 basis of consolidation

Where the company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The company controls an investee if all three of 

the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the ability of 

the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate 

that there may be a change in any of these elements of control. De facto control exists in situations where the company has the 

practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee without holding the majority of the voting rights.

In determining whether de-facto control exists the company considers all relevant facts and circumstances, including:

•	 	the	size	of	the	company’s	voting	rights	relative	to	both	the	size	and	dispersion	of	other	parties	who	hold	voting	rights;

•	 	substantive	potential	voting	rights	held	by	the	company	and	by	other	parties;

•	 	other	contractual	arrangements;	and

•	 	historic	patterns	in	voting	attendance.

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the company and its subsidiaries (“the group”) as if they  

formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances between group companies are therefore eliminated in full.  

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of business combinations using the acquisition method. In the 

statement of financial position, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially recognised  

at their fair values at the acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are included in the profit or loss from the date on 

which control is obtained. They are deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Goodwill

For business combinations completed on or after 1 January 2010, cost comprises the fair value of assets given, liabilities 

assumed and equity instruments issued, plus the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree plus, if the business 

combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the acquiree. Contingent consideration is 

included in cost at its acquisition date fair value and, in the case of contingent consideration classified as a financial liability, 

remeasured subsequently through profit or loss. For business combinations completed on or after 1 January 2010, direct costs of 

acquisition are recognised immediately as an expense.

Goodwill is capitalised with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the profit or loss. Where the fair value of 

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the excess is credited in full to 

the profit or loss on the acquisition date.

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding inventories and deferred tax assets)

Impairment tests on goodwill is undertaken annually at the financial year end. Where the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its 

recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell), goodwill is written down accordingly.

The impairment test is carried out on the smallest group of assets to which it belongs for which there are separately identifiable 

cash	flows;	its	cash-generating	units	(‘CGus’).	Goodwill	is	allocated	on	initial	recognition	to	each	of	the	group’s	CGus	that	are	

expected to benefit from a business combination that gives rise to the goodwill.

Impairment charges are included in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed.

Common control business combination

A business combination is a “common control combination” if:

•	 	the	combining	entities	are	ultimately	controlled	by	the	same	party	(or	parties	–	see	below)	both	before	and	after	the	

combination;	and

•	 	common	control	is	not	transitory.

Common control combinations are not restricted to combinations between entities that are part of the same group. Entities 

controlled by the same individual shareholder (or group of shareholders acting together in accordance with a contractual 

arrangement) are also regarded as under common control.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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Business combinations involving entities under common control are outside the scope of IFRS 3, and there is no other specific 

IFRS guidance. Accordingly, management used its judgement to develop an accounting policy that is relevant and reliable, in 

accordance with IAS 8 as set out below:

•	 	the	assets	and	liabilities	of	the	acquiree	are	recorded	at	their	carrying	value	not	fair	value	on	the	acquisition	date;

•	 	intangible	assets	and	contingent	liabilities	are	recognised	only	to	the	extent	that	they	were	recognised	by	the	acquiree	in	

accordance	with	applicable	IFRS;

	•	 	no	goodwill	is	recorded.	The	difference	between	the	acquirer’s	cost	of	investment	and	the	acquiree’s	equity	is	accounted	for	

directly	in	retained	earnings	on	consolidation;	and

•	 	any	expenses	of	the	combination	are	written	off	immediately	in	the	statement	of	comprehensive	income;

4.2 Financial instruments
4.2.1 Financial assets

Classification, recognition and measurement

The group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with 

the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial assets are recognised in the group’s statement of financial position 

when the group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group classifies its financial assets into one of the categories as discussed below, depending on the purpose for which the 

asset was acquired. The group has not classified any of its financial assets as held to maturity or as available-for-sale assets. 

The executive management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The group’s accounting policies for each category are as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this 

category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. This category comprises only in-the-money 

derivatives (refer to note on Financial liabilities for out-of-money derivatives). Assets in this category are carried in the 

consolidated statement of financial position at fair value and classified as current assets

Derivative financial instruments, consisting of foreign exchange contracts, are initially measured at fair value on the contract 

date and are re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 

the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within 

other (losses)/gains in the period in which they arise. Other than the derivative financial instruments which are not designated 

as hedging instruments, the group does not have any assets held for trading nor does it voluntarily classify any financial asset as 

being at fair value through profit and loss.

loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an  

active market. The group’s loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables, loans to related parties and cash and 

cash equivalents.

trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. 

 If collection is expected within one year or less, they are classified as current assets.

Project receivables are where the outcome of a project contract can be estimated reliably, project revenue and costs are 

recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the financial year end date, as measured by the 

proportion that project costs incurred for work performed to date to the estimated total project costs.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with  

the customer. Trade and other receivables, including project receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

4. SUMMaRy oF SIGNIFIcaNT accoUNTING PolIcIeS CoNTINueD
4.1 basis of consolidation continued

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
81



loans to related parties

Loans to related parties are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments 

with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method.

Bank overdraft are classified as other financial liabilities on the statement of financial position.

impairment of financial assets carried at amortised cost

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 

financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is tested for impairment only if there is objective 

evidence	of	impairment	as	a	result	of	one	or	more	events	that	occurred	after	the	initial	recognition	of	the	asset	(a	‘loss	event’)	

and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial 

assets that can be reliably estimated.

The group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists. The following objective evidence is considered in 

determining when an impairment loss has been incurred:

•	 	Significant	financial	difficulty	on	the	part	of	the	counterparty	or	significant	delay	in	payment

•	 A	breach	of	contract,	such	as	a	default	or	delinquency	in	interest	or	principal	repayments

•	 It	is	becoming	probable	that	the	debtor	will	enter	bankruptcy	or	other	financial	re-organisation.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 

effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 

occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of  

the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the 

investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the 

impairment not been recognised.

For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being 

recognised within operating expenses in the profit or loss. On confirmation that the trade receivables will not be collectable, the 

gross carrying value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

de-recognition of financial assets

The	group	de-recognises	a	financial	asset	only	when	the	contractual	rights	to	the	cash	flows	from	the	asset	expire;	or	it	

transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 

transferred asset, the group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have  

to pay. If the group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the group 

continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

4. SUMMaRy oF SIGNIFIcaNT accoUNTING PolIcIeS CoNTINueD
4.2 Financial instruments continued
4.2.1 Financial assets continued
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4.2.2 Financial liabilities

The group classifies its financial liabilities into one of two categories, depending on the purpose for which the liability was 

acquired. The group’s accounting policy for each category is as follows:

Classification, recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities (including liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, 

which is the date that the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

The group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are 

recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial 

liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, and trade and other payables.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value and the fair value is re-measured at each balance sheet date. 

Gain or loss on the fair value changes are recognised in profit or loss.

 Fair value through profit or loss

The group does not hold or issue derivative instruments for speculative purposes, but for hedging purposes. Other than these 

derivative financial instruments, the group does not have any liabilities held for trading nor has it designated any financial 

liabilities as being at fair value through profit or loss.

This category comprises only out-of-the-money derivatives (refer to note 4.2.1 Financial assets for in-the-money derivatives). 

They are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the profit 

or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities include the following items:

Borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value. Such interest-bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment 

is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried in the consolidated statement of financial position. Interest expense in 

this context includes initial transaction costs and premiums payable on redemption, as well as any interest or coupon payable 

while the liability is outstanding.

Bank overdrafts are shown within cash and cash equivalents in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable 

that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there 

is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for 

liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business 

from suppliers. Trade payables and other short-term liabilities are initially carried at fair value plus directly attributable 

transaction cost and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities, at amortised cost if payment is due within one year or less.
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loans from related parties

Loans from related parties are measured initially at fair value less transaction costs and, after initial recognition, at amortised 

cost, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial 

amount and the maturity amount.

4.3 Stated capital and equity

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as 

a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 

liabilities.	If	the	group	reacquires	its	own	equity	instruments,	those	treasury	shares	are	deducted	from	equity.	No	gain	or	loss	is	

recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale issue or cancellation of the group’s own equity instruments. Consideration paid 

or received is recognised directly in equity.

4.4 Plant and equipment

The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

•	 	it	is	probable	that	future	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	item	will	flow	to	the	group;	and

•	 the	cost	of	the	item	can	be	measured	reliably

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 

to add to replace part of or service it. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of plant and 

equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognised. Plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write down the plant and equipment, on a straight line basis to their residual values as follows:

Item average useful life

Plant and equipment 5 – 10 years
Motor	vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fittings 6 years
Tools and laboratory equipment 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years

Each part of an item of plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated 

separately if it has a useful life or depreciation method that differs from the remainder of the asset. The depreciation charge for 

each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. The gain or loss arising 

from de-recognition of an item of plant and equipment is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when 

the item is de-recognised.

The estimated useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect 

of any changes associated for prospectively.
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4.5 Intangible assets

An intangible assets is recognised when:

•	 it	is	probable	that	the	expected	future	economic	benefits	that	are	attributable	to	the	asset	will	flow	to	the	entity	and

•	 the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from internally development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is  

recognised when:

•	 it	is	technically	feasible	to	complete	the	asset	so	that	it	will	be	available	for	use	or	sale

•	 there	is	an	intention	to	complete	and	use	or	sell	it;

•	 there	is	an	ability	to	use	or	sell	it;

•	 it	will	generate	probable	future	economic	benefits;

•	 there	are	available	technical,	financial	and	other	resources	to	complete	the	development	and	to	use	or	sell	the	asset;	and

•	 the	expenditure	attributable	to	the	asset	during	its	development	can	be	measured	reliably.

Reassessing and ascribing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is 

an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount 

is amortised over its useful life. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant 

factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation 

is not provided for these intangible assets. The amortisation period, residual value and the amortisation method for intangible 

assets are reviewed every reporting period.

 Intangible assets are amortised at the following rates:

Item average useful life

Externally acquired:
Computer software                                                                                                 2 years

Internally generated (development cost)
Ansys	Maintenance	Management	System																																																																																		 2 years
Signalling products                                                                                                2 years
Continuous	Rope	Monitoring		System	(CRMS)																																																																							 2 – 5 years
Mobile	Rope	Testing	unit	(MRTu)																																																																																													 2 – 5 years

4.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The group assesses, at each financial year end date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such 

indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in 

profit or loss, except to the extent that they reverse gains previously recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the assets other than goodwill, the entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment 

loss recognised in prior periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 

amounts of those assets are estimated. The carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an 

impairment loss is not increased above the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss relating to assets carried at cost less accumulated 

depreciation or amortisation, other than goodwill, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4.7 Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at a cost less any accumulated impairment in the company’s separate financial 

statements. The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

•	 	the	fair	value,	at	the	date	of	exchange,	of	assets	given,	liabilities	incurred	or	assumed,	and	equity	instruments	issued	by	 

the	group;	plus

•	 	any	costs	directly	attributable	to	the	purchase	of	the	subsidiary.

4.8 leases

Leases for assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 

operating leases.

Leases of assets are classified as instalment sale agreements when the leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards 

incidental to ownership of the assets to the group. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Instalment sale agreements

Assets held under instalment sale agreements are recognised in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of the 

leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.  

The corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, on the instalment sale agreements are recorded as obligations under 

instalment sale agreements. All assets held under instalment sale agreements are classified as plant and equipment.

Depreciation and impairment loss are calculated and recognised in the same manner as the depreciation and impairment loss on 

plant and equipment as set out in note 7.

Minimum	lease	payments	are	apportioned	between	finance	charge	and	the	reduction	of	the	outstanding	liabilities.	The	finance	

charge is recognised in profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability.

Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 

amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

Contingent rents are charged as an expense in the periods in which they are incurred.

4.9 Fair value measurement

Certain assets and liabilities, requirement measurement and/or disclosure of fair value. These assets and liabilities are 

measured at fair value using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the market observable inputs used in making 

the fair value measurement (refer to the notes in the financial statements). The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

•	 	Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	assets	or	liabilities	(Level	1);

•	 	Inputs	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	Level	1	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	liability,	either	directly	(i.e.	as	

prices)	or	indirectly	(i.e.	derived	from	prices)	(Level	2);	and

•	 	Inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	based	on	observable	market	data	(unobservable	inputs)	(Level	3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the asset or liability is categorised, is determined on the basis of the lowest 

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The group measures the following items at fair value:

•	 	Derivative	assets	and	liabilities	at	Level	2	(refer	note	14).
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4.10 Inventories

Inventory is initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of 

inventory comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location 

and	condition,	and	is	determined	using	a	weighted	average	basis.	Net	realisable	value	is	the	estimated	selling	price	in	the	

ordinary course of business less any selling expenses.

Obsolete, redundant and slow-moving inventory is identified on a regular basis and is written down to its estimated net 

realisable value.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in cost of sales during the 

period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all 

losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of 

any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of 

inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

4.11 employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered such as paid vacation 

leave and sick leave bonuses and non monetary benefits such as medical care) is recognised in the period in which the service is 

rendered and is not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 

entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The expected cost of bonus payments 

is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past 

performance.

Employee benefits in the form of annual leave entitlements are provided for when they accrue to employees with reference to 

services rendered up to the financial year end date.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 

entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 

plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered 

by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future 

payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the period 

in which the employees render the service are discount to their present value.

4.12  current and deferred income tax

Current taxation expense

Income tax for the year includes current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except 

to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised directly in equity. In the case if the tax relates to 

items that are recognised directly to equity, current tax and deferred tax are also recognised directly to equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax liabilities and assets are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities, 

using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Current tax is the 

amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or loss for a period.
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4.12 current and deferred income tax continued

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the consolidated statement 

of financial position differs from its tax base, except for differences arising on:

•	 	the	initial	recognition	of	goodwill;

•	 	the	initial	recognition	of	an	asset	or	liability	in	a	transaction	which	is	not	a	business	combination	and	at	the	time	of	the	

transaction	affects	neither	accounting	or	taxable	profit;	and

•	 	investments	in	subsidiaries	and	jointly	controlled	entities	where	the	group	is	able	to	control	the	timing	of	the	reversal	of	the	

difference and it is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively. Temporary differences 

are the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. 

Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability 

arises	from	the	initial	recognition	of	an	asset	or	liability	in	a	transaction	which	is	not	a	business	combination;	and	at	the	time	of	

the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 

will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised, unless the deferred tax asset arises from the 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews and assesses the recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets and the future 

taxable profit to determine whether any recognised deferred tax assets should be derecognised and any unrecognised deferred 

tax assets should be recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 

realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 

balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the group has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:

•	 	the	same	taxable	group	company;	or

•	 	different	group	entities	which	intend	either	to	settle	current	tax	assets	and	liabilities	on	a	net	basis,	or	to	realise	the	assets	

and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities 

are expected to be settled or recovered.

4.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the revenue can 

be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts 

receivable or received for services provided and goods delivered, net of discounts and value added taxation (VAT) and where 

there is reasonable expectation that the income will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
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4.13 Revenue recognition continued

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of good is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

•	 	The	group	has	delivered	the	goods	to	the	customers	and	the	customer	has	accepted	the	goods	together	with	the	risks	and	

rewards	of	ownership	of	the	goods;

•	 	The	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;

•	 	Receipt	of	the	future	economic	benefits	is	probable;	and

•	 	Costs	relating	to	the	transaction	can	be	measured	reliably.

Revenue comprises net invoiced sales to customers excluding VAT and other non-operating income.

Rendering of services

•	 	The	initial	amount	of	revenue	agreed	in	the	contract;	and

•	 	Variations	in	contract	work	claims	and	incentive	payments	to	the	extent	that	it	is	probable	that	they	will	results	in	revenue,	

and they are capable of being reliably measured.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the 

reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the Statement of Financial Position date. The outcome of a transaction 

can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

•	 The	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;

•	 It	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	with	the	transaction	will	flow	to	the	group;

•	 	The	stage	of	completion	of	the	transaction	at	the	Statement	of	Financial	Position	date	can	be	measured	reliably;	and

•	 	The	costs	incurred	for	the	transaction	and	the	cost	to	complete	the	transaction	can	be	measured	reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be 

recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. When it is probable that total project cost will 

exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

The stage of completion is determined by the proportion of the contract costs incurred to date as a percentage of the total 

estimated contract costs to be incurred. When the stage of completion differs from the actual invoicing at financial year end, 

it is recognised as project receivables or deferred revenue in either trade and other receivables or trade and other payables 

respectively, as appropriate.

4.14 dividends

Dividend distribution to the group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the group’s financial statements in the period in 

which the dividends are approved by the board of directors.

4.15 Finance income

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest 

rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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4.16 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The consolidated group financial statements are 

presented in Rand (R), which is the group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rand, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot 

exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At each financial year end:

•	 	foreign	currency	monetary	items	are	translated	using	the	closing	rate;

•	 	non-monetary	items	that	are	measured	in	terms	of	historical	cost	in	a	foreign	currency	are	translated	using	the	exchange	rate	

at	the	date	of	the	transaction;	and

•	 	non-monetary	items	that	are	measured	at	fair	value	in	a	foreign	currency	are	translated	using	the	exchange	rates	at	the	date	

when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different from those 

at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognised in profit 

or loss in the period in which they arise.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised directly in equity, any exchange component of that gain or loss 

is recognised directly in equity. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange 

component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency are 

recorded in Rand by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign currency at 

the date of the cash flow.

4.17   Segment reporting

The segment information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, which requires disclosure of 

financial information of an entity’s operating segments.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the 

operating segments, has been identified as the steering committee that makes strategic decisions.

A segment is a distinguishable component of the group engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic 

environment, which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

All intersegment transactions are eliminated.

The group operates within four operating segments and its principal activities are:

(a) Rail

(b)	 Mining

(c) Defence

(d) Telecoms
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 4.18 offsetting

Asset and liabilities and income and expenses are not offset unless specifically permitted by an accounting standard. Financial 

assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported only when a legally enforceable right to set off the 

amounts exists and the intention is either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.19  Provisions

The group has recognised provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount including those for warranty claims.  

The provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, 

discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability.

4.20  earnings per share

The company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 

the period. Headline earnings per ordinary share are calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 

during the period and are based on the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders, after excluding those items as required by 

Circular 2/2013 issued by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (“SAICA”).

4.21  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the group if:

(a)  directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or is under common  

control with, the group, has an interest in the group that gives it significant influence over the group, or has joint control over 

the	group;

(b)	 the	party	is	an	associate	of	the	group;

(c)	 the	party	is	a	joint	venture	in	which	the	group	is	a	venture;

(d)	 	the	party	is	a	member	of	the	key	management	personnel	of	the	group	or	its	parent;	

(e)	 the	party	is	a	close	member	of	the	family	of	any	individual	referred	to	in	(a)	or	(d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in 

such	entity	resides	with,	directly	or	indirectly,	any	individual	referred	to	in	(d)	or	(e);	or

(g)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the group, or of any entity that is a related party 

of the group.
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5. New accoUNTING PRoNoUNceMeNTS
New standards and interpretations

(a) Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the company has adopted all new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the International 

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) that are relevant to its operations 

and	effective	for	annual	reporting	periods	beginning	on	1	March	2014.	The	adoption	of	these	new	and	revised	Standards	and	

Interpretations, has not resulted in material changes to the company’s accounting policies or had a material impact on the 

financial statements. The remainder of the Standards and Interpretations enhanced and affected the disclosures in the annual 

financial statements. 

ias 36 impairment of assets

Amendments to address the disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based 

on fair value less costs of disposal.

(b) Standards and interpretations not yet effective at the reporting date:

It is anticipated that these standards and interpretations which are relevant to the company but not yet effective, will be adopted 

in the financial statements when they become effective. It is not anticipated that the application of the below standards will 

have a material impact on the amounts reported in respect of the group’s financial statements. However, it is not practicable to 

provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

iFrs 8: Operating segments

Annual Improvements 2010–2012 Cycle: Amendments to some disclosure requirements regarding the judgements made by 

management in applying the aggregation criteria, as well as those to certain reconciliations.

The improvements are effective for annual periods on or after 1 July 2014.

iFrs 3: Business combinations

Annual improvement 2010–2012 Cycle: Amendments to the measurement requirements for all contingent consideration assets 

and liabilities including those accounted for under IFRS 9. Annual Improvement 2011 – 2013 Cycle: Amendments to the scope 

paragraph for the formation of a joint arrangement. Effective 1 July 2014.

iFrs 9: Financial instruments

Annual Improvements 2010–2012 Cycle: Amendments to the measurement requirements for all contingent consideration 

assets and liabilities included under IFRS 9. Effective 1 July 2014. A finalised version of IFRS 9 has been issued which replaces 

IAS39	Financial	Instruments:	Recognition	and	Measurement.	The	completed	standard	comprises	guidance	on	Classification	and	

Measurement,	Impairment	Hedge	Accounting	and	Derecognition:

IFRS 9 introduces a new approach to the classification of financial assets, which is driven by the business model in which the 

asset is held and their cash flow characteristics. A new business model was introduced which does allow certain financial assets 

to be categorised as “fair value through other comprehensive income” in certain circumstances. The requirements for financial 

liabilities are mostly carried forward unchanged fro IAS 39. However, some changes were made to the fair value option for 

financial liabilities to address the issue of own credit risk.

•	 	The	new	model	introduces	a	single	impairment	model	being	applied	to	all	financial	instruments,	as	well	as	an	“expected	

credit loss” model for the measurement of financial assets.

•	 	IFRS	9	contains	a	new	model	for	hedge	accounting	that	aligns	the	accounting	treatment	with	the	risk	management	activities	

of an entity, in addition enhanced disclosures will provide better information about risk management and the effect of hedge 

accounting on the financial statements.

•	 	IFRS	9	carries	forward	the	derecognition	requirements	of	financial	assets	and	liabilities	from	IAS	39.

This standard is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2018.
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5. New accoUNTING PRoNoUNceMeNTS CoNTINueD
New standards and interpretations continued

(b) Standards and interpretations not yet effective at the reporting date continued

iFrs 13 Fair value measurement

Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: Amendments to clarify the measurement requirements for those short-term 

receivables and payables. Effective 1 July 2014.

Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013 Cycle: Amendments to clarify that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts within the 

scope of, and accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 or IFRS 9. Effective 1 July 2014.

iFrs 15 revenue from Contracts with Customers

New	standard	that	requires	entities	to	recognise	revenue	to	depict	the	transfer	of	promised	goods	or	services	to	customers	in	 

an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.  

This core principle is achieved through a five step methodology that is required to be applied to all contracts with customers.

The new standard will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were not 

previously addressed comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements.

The new standard supersedes:

(a)	 IAS	11	Construction	Contracts;

(b)	 IAS	18	Revenue;

(c)	 IFRIC	13	Customer	Loyalty	Programmes;

(d)	 IFRIC	15	Agreements	for	the	Construction	of	Real	estate;

(e)	 IFRIC	18	Transfers	of	Assets	from	Customers;	and

(f) SIC-31 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

This standard is effective for annual periods after January 2017.

ias 1 presentation of Financial statements

Disclosure Initiative: Amendments designed to encourage entities to apply professional judgement in determining what 

information to disclose in their financial statements. For example, the amendments make clear that materiality applies to the 

whole of financial statements and that the inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial disclosures. 

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that entities should use professional judgement in determining where and in what order 

information is presented in the financial disclosures. 

This standard is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2016.

ias 16 property, plant and Equipment

•	 	Amendments	to	IAS	16	and	IAS	38	to	clarify	the	basis	for	the	calculation	of	depreciation	and	amortisation,	as	being	the	

expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset. 

•	 	Amendment	to	both	IAS	16	and	IAS	38	establishing	the	principle	for	the	basis	of	depreciation	and	amortisation	as	being	the	

expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset. Clarifying that revenue is generally presumed 

to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of economic benefits in such assets. 

•	 	Amendments	to	IAS	16	and	IAS	41	which	defines	bearer	plants	and	includes	bearer	plants	in	the	scope	of	IAS	16	Property,	

plant and Equipment, rather than IAS 41 allowing such assets to be accounted for after initial recognition in accordance  

with IAS 16. 

This standard is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2016.
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ias 24 related party disclosures

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle: Amendments to the definitions and disclosure requirements for key management 

personnel. Effective 1 June 2014.

ias 27 Consolidated and separate Financial statements

Amendments to IAS 27 will allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 

associates in their separate financial statements. 

This standard is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2016.

ias 38 intangible assets

•	 	Amendments	to	IAS	16	and	IAS	38	to	clarify	the	basis	for	the	calculation	of	depreciation	and	amortisation,	as	being	the	

expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset.

•	 	Amendment	to	both	IAS	16	and	IAS	38	establishing	the	principle	for	the	basis	of	depreciation	and	amortisation	as	being	the	

expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an asset. Clarifying that revenue is generally presumed 

to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of economic benefits in such assets.

This standard is effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2016.

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ending 28 February 2015

5. New accoUNTING PRoNoUNceMeNTS CoNTINueD
New standards and interpretations continued

(b) Standards and interpretations not yet effective at the reporting date continued

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
94



6. SeGMeNTal INFoRMaTIoN
The segment information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, which defines requirements of the 

disclosure of financial information of an entity’s operating segments.

Identification of reportable segments

The group discloses its reportable segments according to the group’s components that management monitor regularly in making 

decisions about the operating matters. The reportable segments comprise various operating segments primarily located in 

South Africa based on the group’s lines of business.

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the basis that is reported to the Executive Committee in assessing segment 

performance and allocating resources to segments. These values have been reconciled to the consolidated financial statements. 

The basis reported by the group is in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the 

consolidated group financial statements and are consistent with the prior year.

Segment	revenue	excludes	value	added	taxation	and	relates	to	external	customers	only.	Net	revenue	represents	segment	

revenue from which intersegment revenue has been eliminated. Sales between segments are made on a commercial basis. 

Segment expenses include direct and allocated expenses. Depreciation and amortisation have been allocated to the segment to 

which they relate, where possible.

Segment assets exclude tax assets and assets used primarily for corporate purposes, or assets and liabilities that cannot be 

allocated to segments reliably. The segment assets comprise all assets of the different segments that are employed by the 

segment and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.

Reportable segments

During the year the group conducted operations in four main business areas: rail, defence, mining and telecoms. Transactions 

between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Information about geographical areas

No	geographical	area	segment	information	is	disclosed,	as	the	group’s	business	for	the	year	ended	28	February	2015	was	

mostly	conducted	within	the	Republic	of	South	Africa.	Minor	revenue	was	generated	from	Botswana,	but	it	was	not	considered	

significant enough to report separately as a geographical area. The risk and rewards are not considered to be different within the 

regions	of	the	Republic	of	South	Africa.	No	significant	revenue	from	external	customers	can	be	attributed	to	any	foreign	country	

nor are assets located in any foreign countries. All revenue from external customers can be attributed to the entity’s country  

of domicile.

2015 2014
Revenue generated from customers includes: Segment R’000 R’000

Customer A Rail  77 686  31 543 
Customer B Rail  8 419   83 
Customer C Rail  6 224   522 
Customer D Rail  –  1 568 
Customer E Mining  –   492 
Customer F Mining  2 112   51 
Customer G Defence  6 797  14 759 
Customer H Defence   789   465 
Customer I Telecoms  104 729  7 295 
Customer J Telecoms  12 288  1 319 
Customer K Telecoms  10 286  3 716 

 229 330  61 813 
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6. SeGMeNTal INFoRMaTIoN CoNTINueD

GRoUP
Rail defence Mining Telecoms Total

Revenue from external customers per product R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015

Rail:
Vehicle Identification  11 141  11 141 
Train	Conditioning	Monitoring	  33 185  33 185 
Train Communication  49 783  49 783 

defence:
System integration, test and support equipment  9 993   9 993 

Mining:
Mine	Rope	Tester	–	mobile 2 112 2 112

Telecoms: 
Passive products  133 969  133 969 
Enterprise products  8 559  8 559 
Service installations  2 379  2 379 

Total  94 109  9 993  2 112  144 907  251 121 

2014

Rail:
Vehicle Identification 23 686 23 686
Train	Conditioning	Monitoring	 4 433 4 433
Train Communication 8 999 8 999

defence:
System integration, test and support equipment 15 031 15 031

Mining:
Mine	Rope	Tester	–	mobile 267 267
Mine	Rope	Tester	–	continuous 226 226
Mine	Rope	Tester	–	calibration 50 50

Telecoms: 
Passive products 11 234 11 234
Enterprise products 1 380 1 380
Service installations 497 497

Total 37 118 15 031 543 13 111 65 803
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GRoUP

Rail defence Mining Telecoms
Un-

allocated Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
Revenue
External sales  94 109  9 993  2 112  144 907  –    251 121 

Total revenue from operations  94 109  9 993  2 112  144 907  –    251 121 

(No	inter	segment	sales	occur)

Results
Segment result from operations  30 900 2 721  (2 942)  848  –    31 527 
Unallocated expenses*  (22 090)  (22 090)

operating profit from operations 9 437
Finance income  –    –    –    –    35 35
Other gains and losses  (1 122)  –  –  5 088  303  4 270 
Finance costs  –    –    –    (1 842)  (1 842)
Development cost impairment  –    –    (1 168)  –    –    (1 168)

Profit before taxation  14 327
Taxation expense  (4 302)

Profit for the year  10 025 

other information
Capital additions (plant and equipment) – – – – 927 927
Depreciation  40  –    –    218  210  468 
Capital additions (intangible assets)  –    –    –    –    263  263 
Amortisation  –    –    1 317  –    94  1 411 

Financial position
Assets 58 810  1 012 1 635  55 881 34 492  151 830 
Liabilities  –    –    –    59 563 49 834 109 397

* Unallocated expenses relates to head office and administration cost and consolidation adjustments which cannot be allocated to segments.
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6. SeGMeNTal INFoRMaTIoN CoNTINueD

GRoUP

Rail Defence Mining Telecoms
Un-

allocated Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2014
Revenue
External sales 37 118 15 031 543 (13 111) – (65 803)

Total revenue from operations 37 118 15 031 543 (13 111) – (65 803)

Results
Segment result from operations 9 843 8 256 (3 456) (2 308) – 12 335
Unallocated expenses* – (21 127) (21 127)

operating loss from operations (8 792)
Other income – – – – 654 654
Finance income – – – – 3 3
Other gains and losses – – – – 796 796
Finance cost – – – – (903) (903)
Impairment of development cost – –  (868) – –  (868)

loss before taxation (9 110)
Taxation expense 2 085

loss for the year (7 025)

other information
Capital additions (plant and equipment) – – – – 306 306
Depreciation 36 – – 140 222 398
Capital additions (intangible assets) – – – 18 – 18
Amortisation – – 1 504 47 30 1 551

Financial position
Assets 22 125 1 677 6 212 37 698 20 099 87 811
Liabilities 72 1 347 17 45 391 8 576 55 403

*Unallocated expenses relates to head office, administration cost and consolidation journals which cannot be allocated to segments.
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GRoUP

cost

accu-
mulated

depre-
ciation 

carrying
 value Cost

Accu-
mulated

depre-
ciation 

Carrying
 value 

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

owned assets
Plant and machinery  916  (482)  434 442 (442) –
Motor	vehicles 2 816 (2 513) 303 2 816 (2 376) 440
Furniture and fittings 938 (679) 259 901 (501) 400
Office equipment 251 (245)  6 244 (243) 1
Computer equipment 1 557 (1 214) 343 1 260 (1 039) 221
Tools and laboratory equipment 709 (487)  222 658 (389) 269
Electronic equipment  214  (178)  36 214 (147) 67

Total 7 401 (5 798) 1 603 6 535 (5 137) 1 398

capitalised leased assets
Leasehold improvements  236 (123) 113 223 (37) 186

Total 236 (123) 113 223 (37) 186

Total 7 637 (5 921) 1 716 6 758 (5 174) 1 584

The carrying amounts of plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

GRoUP
carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year additions disposals

de-
preciation

carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
owned assets
Plant and machinery  –    474  –    (40)  434 
Motor	vehicles 440  –    –    (137)  303 
Furniture and fittings 400  37  –    (178) 259
Office equipment  1 10 (4)  (2)  6 
Computer equipment  221 302  (4)  (175)  343 
Tools and laboratory equipment 269 50  (1)  (98) 222
Electronic equipment 67  –    –    (31)  36 

1 398 874  (9)  (662)  1 603 

capitalised leased assets
Leasehold improvements  186 52  (39)    (86)  113 

 186 52  (39)    (86) 113

Total  1 584 926  (48)  (748)  1 716 
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7. PlaNT aNd eqUIPMeNT CoNTINueD

GRoUP

Carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year Additions

Business
 com-

bination Disposals
De-

preciation

Carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2014
owned assets
Plant and machinery 36 – – – (36) –
Motor	vehicles 2 38 440 –  (40) 440
Furniture and fittings 229 45 400 (140) (134) 400
Office equipment 7 – – –  (6) 1
Computer equipment 122 – 288 (115) (74) 221
Tools and laboratory equipment 14 14 269 –  (28) 269
Electronic equipment 99 30 – – (62) 67

509 127 1 397 (255) (380) 1 398

capitalised leased assets
Leasehold improvements – 179 25 – (18) 186

Total 509 306 1 422 (255) (398) 1 584

Group: The carrying value of motor vehicles R302 773 (2014: R440 198) and plant and equipment R426 444 (2014: Rnil) are held 

as security over the instalment sale agreements as per note 18. Additions to the value of R544 665 (2014: Rnil) were financed 

through instalment sale agreements.

coMPaNy

cost

accu-
mulated

depre-
ciation 

carrying
 value Cost

Accu-
mulated

depre-
ciation 

Carrying
 value 

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

owned assets
Plant and machinery  916  (482)  434 442 (442) –
Motor	vehicles  747  (747) – 747 (747) –
Furniture and fittings  453  (422)  32 438  (357) 81
Office equipment  226  (221)  6 244 (243) 1
Computer equipment  989  (787)  202 902 (802) 100
Tools and laboratory equipment  76  (41)  34 43 (35) 8
Electronic equipment  214  (178)  36 214 (147) 67

Total  3 622  (2 878)  744 3 030 (2 773) 257
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The carrying amounts of plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:

coMPaNy
carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year additions disposals

de-
preciation

carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
owned assets
Plant and machinery –  474  (40)  434 
Motor	vehicles  –   –  –    –   
Furniture and fittings  81  16  (65)  32 
Office equipment  1  7 (22)  (2)  6 
Computer equipment  100 204  (5)  (99)  203 
Tools and laboratory equipment  8  35  (1)  (9)  33 
Electronic equipment  67  (31)  36 

 257 736  (28)  (250)  744 

2014
owned assets
Plant and machinery 36 – – (36) –
Motor	vehicles 2 – –  (2) –
Furniture and fittings 229 – (45) (103) 81
Office equipment 7 – –  (6) 1
Computer equipment 122 52 – (74) 100
Tools and laboratory equipment 14 – (1)  (5) 8
Electronic equipment 99 – (1) (31) 67

509 52 (47) (257) 257

Company: The total carrying value of plant and equipment of R426 444 (2014: Rnil) is held as security over the instalment sale 

agreements as per note 18. Additions to the value of R544 665 (2014: Rnil) were financed through instalment sale agreements.
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8. INTaNGIble aSSeTS 
GRoUP

cost

accu-
mulated

amort-
sation/
impair-

ment 

carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year Cost

Accu-
mulated

amort-
sation/
impair-

ment 

Carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year 

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Development cost  8 625  (6 990)  1 635  24 421  (20 300)  4 121 
Computer software 1 953 (1 778) 175 1 690 (1 641) 49

10 578 (8 768) 1 810 26 111 (21 941) 4 170

The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:

GRoUP
carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year additions

business
 com-

bination
Im-

pairments
amor-

tisation

carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
development cost:  4 121  –    –    (1 168)  (1 318)  1 635 

–	CRMS	  1 285  –    –    (795)  (490)  – 
–	MRTu	  2 836  –    –    (373)  (828)  1 635 

Computer software 49 263  –    –    (137) 175

4 170 263  –    (1 168)  (1 455)  1 810 

2014
development cost:  6 493  –    –    (868)  (1 504)  4 121 

–	CRMS	  2 107  –    –    (226)  (596)  1 285 
–	MRTu	  4 386  –    –    (642)  (908)  2 836 

Computer software  52 18 26  –    (47)  49 

 6 545  18    26    (868)  (1 551)  4 170 
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coMPaNy

cost

accu-
mulated

amort-
sation/
impair-

ment 

carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year Cost

Accu-
mulated

amort-
sation/
impair-

ment 

Carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year 

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Development cost  8 625  (6 990)  1 635  24 421  (20 300)  4 121 
Computer software  1 294  (1 161)  133  1 118  (1 094)  24 

 9 918  (8 151)  1 767  25 539  (21 394)  4 145 

The carrying amounts of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows: 

coMPaNy
carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year additions

Im-
pairments

amor-
tisation

carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
Development cost:  4 121  –    (1 168)  (1 317)  1 635 

–	CRMS	  1 285  –    (795)  (490) –
–	MRTu	  2 836  –    (373)  (828)  1 635 

Computer software  24  203  –    (94)  133 

 4 145  203  (1 168)  (1 411)  1 769 

2014
Development cost:  6 493  –    (868)  (1 504)  4 121 

–	CRMS	  2 107  –    (226)  (596)  1 285 
–	MRTu	  4 386  –    (642)  (908)  2 836 

Computer software  52  –    –    (28)  24 

 6 545  –    (868)  (1 532)  4 145 

Impairment test for development cost
The recoverable amount of the development cost assets is determined based on fair value (level 3) less cost to sell calculations 

and is based on the assumption that a certain number of units will be sold over a three to five year period. The fair value is  

based on management’s best estimated selling price in the current market conditions, which take into consideration previous 

selling prices and current market conditions. Discount rate of 30% was used to take into account the time value of money and 

other variables.

The	impairment	in	the	current	year	relates	to	the	development	cost	capitalised	for	the	Continuous	Rope	Monitoring	 

System	(CRMS)	of	R794	887	(2014:	R226	330)	and	the	Mobile	Rope	Monitoring	System	(MRTu	Triton)	of	R373	489	(2014:	642	053).	 

The	challenging	mining	market	conditions	have	had	a	significant	impact	on	the	sales	of	the	Rope	Monitoring	Systems	 

which	triggered	the	requirement	for	impairment.	The	impairment	formed	part	of	the	Mining	segment	results	as	reflected	in	 

the segment report.
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9. GoodwIll 
GRoUP

cost

carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year Cost

Carrying
 value at 

the end of
 the year 

2015 2015 2014 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Goodwill 15 059 15 059 15 059 15 059

15 059 15 059 15 059 15 059

The carrying amounts of goodwill can be reconciled as follows: 

GRoUP
carrying 
value at 

beginning
 of year

carrying
 value at 
the end 

of the year

R’000 R’000

2015
Goodwill 15 059 15 059

15 059 15 059

2014
Goodwill 15 059 15 059

15 059 15 059

Goodwill is allocated to the company’s cash-generating units (CGU’s) identified according to business segment.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

CGU – – – –
– Rail: On board system product range 15 059 15 059 – –

15 059 15 059 – –

Rail: on board system product range
Impairment tests for goodwill
The recoverable amount of the CGU (on board system products) is determined based on a value-in-use calculations.  

The calculation used pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Executive Committee 

covering a three-year period. Cash flows beyond the initial three-year period were extrapolated using the estimated growth 

rate disclosed below. The discount rates are pre-tax and reflect the specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The key 

assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation are as follows:
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Growth rate
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period is 1.0% (2014: 1.0%). The rate is consistent with the 

forecast included in the industry.

Discount rate
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projection of 21.98% (2014: 24.75%). The rate used reflects the specific risk 

relating to the relevant operating segment.

Operating margin
Operating margin rate applied to the cash flow projection was 34% (2014: 38%).

Sensitivity analysis
The various sensitivity analyses performed by changing key variables with 10% in the calculation resulted in the recoverable 

amount exceeding the carrying amount in all instances.

10. INveSTMeNT IN SUbSIdIaRIeS

coMPaNy
2015 2014

R’000 R’000

Cost of investment in QuadSoft Pty Ltd 15 711 15 711
Cost of investment in Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd 18 400 18 400

34 111 34 111
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries  (6 902) (15 602)

27 209 18 509

The carrying amounts of subsidiaries are shown net of impairment losses.

quadSoft Pty ltd
On 1 December 2007, the group acquired 100% of the share capital of QuadSoft Pty Ltd, a group that developed and maintained 

locomotive in-cab communication systems that support the management and control of locomotives.

on	1	March	2010,	Ansys	Ltd	bought	the	business	of	QuadSoft	Pty	Ltd	as	a	going	concern	and	included	it	as	part	of	the	Rail	

segment. During the 2013 financial year, the investment in QuadSoft Pty Ltd was impaired to its recoverable amount which is 

represented by the net asset value of QuadSoft Pty Ltd, as the company is dormant.

Tedaka Technologies Pty ltd
On 9 December 2013, Ansys Ltd acquired 100% of the share capital of Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd, a group that distributes 

telecommunication infrastructure products and related network accessories for R18,4 million. At this date the company had a 

net liability position of R6 million. 

The recoverable amount of the investment is determined based on a free cash flow over a three year approved forecast period 

and a terminal value that has been discounted. In the previous financial year end, the investment in Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd 

was impaired to its recoverable amount of R9,7 million which is represented by an external valuation that was performed on the 

company. The significant loss in the previous financial year of Tedaka triggered an impairment review. In the current financial 

year under Ansys management, the company turned around and contributed positively, thus the same assumptions were used 

with updated free cash flows. This led to the recoverable amount being higher than the original cost price of the investments 

and therefor reversing the impairment recognised to the aount of R8,7 million from the previous financial year.
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Growth rate
•	 	Growth	rate	used	to	extrapolate	cash	flows	during	the	three	year	forecast	period	is	10%	–	25%	(2014:	10%	–	25%).

discount rate
•	 	Pre-tax	discount	rate	applied	to	the	cash	flow	projection	of	23,06%	(2014:	23,06%).	The	rate	used	reflects	the	specific	risk	

relating to the relevant operating segment.

Sensitivity analysis
•	 	The	various	sensitivity	analyses	performed	by	changing	key	variables	with	10%	in	the	calculation	resulted	in	the	recoverable	

amount decreasing with approximately R2,9 million (2014: R2.7 million).

Gross profit margin
•	 The gross profit margin, used in the forecast period, was between 24% – 26% (2014: 24% – 26%).

11. loaNS (FRoM)/To RelaTed PaRTIeS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Amounts owing to Tedaka Investments Pty Ltd  (9 070)  (9 070)  –    –   
Amounts	owing	to	Bearing	Management	

Consultants Pty Ltd
 (1 791)  (923)  (781)  –   

Amounts owing to QuadSoft Pty Ltd  –    –    (8 809)  (8 809) 
Amounts owing from Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd  –    –    1 701  8 160 
Amounts owing to Teddy Daka  (4 206)  –   (335)  –   

 (15 067)  (9 993)  (8 224)  (649) 

Non-current	assets  –    –    1 701  8 160 
Non-current	liabilities  (9 070)  (9 993)  –    –   
Current liabilities  (5 998)  –    (9 925)  (8 809) 

 (15 067)  (9 993)  (8 224)  (649)

Loans approximate fair value as it is linked to prime interest rate.

Tedaka Investments Pty ltd
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime rate and is repayable in October 2016.

bearing Management consultants Pty ltd
– The loan owing by subsidiaries of the group, is unsecured, bears interest at prime rate and is repayable in October 2016.

–  The loan owing by the company bears interest at prime rate  plus 5,5% compounded monthly and was repaid  

after year end.

quadSoft Pty ltd
The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and has no fixed repayment terms.

Tedaka Technologies Pty ltd
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime rate, has no fixed repayment terms except that it will not be called on within the 

next 12 months. 

Teddy daka
The loan was unsecured, bore interest at prime rate plus 5,5% compounded monthly and was repaid after the year end.
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12. deFeRRed TaxaTIoN aSSeT aNd lIabIlITy
GRoUP

Non-current
 asset

Non-current
liability Net value 

(charged)/
credited to

profit or loss
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
accelerated capital allowances:
Intangible assets  –    (458)  (458)  696
Plant and equipment  – (66)  (66)   (35) 

available losses:
Assessed loss  3 628  –    3 628  (8 240) 

other temporary differences and  
deductible allowances:
Warranty provision  638  –    638  580 
Slow moving stock provision  819  –    819  751 
Retention debtors  –    (371)  (371)  24 
Deferred revenue  809  –    809  627 
Leases  33  –    33  (8) 
Allowance for doubtful debts  117  –    117 117
Advance payments received  198  –    198  (448) 
Accrued leave pay  363  –    363  145 
Provision for bonus  1 899  –    1 899  1 899 
Other  –    –    –   (77)

Net deferred tax asset  8 506  (894)  7 611 3 970

2014
accelerated capital allowances:
Intangible assets – (1 154) (1 154)  664
Plant and equipment – (34) (34) (34)

available losses:
Assessed loss 11 868 – 11 868 3 887

other temporary differences and  
deductible allowances:
Warranty provision 58 – 58 58
Slow moving stock provision 69 – 69 69
Retention debtors – (394) (394) 240
Deferred revenue 183 – 183 (51)
Leases 40 – 40 1
Advance payments received 647 – 647 (536)
Accrued leave pay 218 – 218 18
Other 78 – 78 78

Net deferred tax asset acquired – – – (2 157)

Net deferred tax asset 13 161 (1 582) 11 579 2 237
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coMPaNy

Non-current
 asset

Non-current
liability Net value 

(charged)/
credited to

profit or loss
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
accelerated capital allowances:
Intangible assets –    (458)  (458)  (696) 

available losses:
Assessed loss  3 628  –    3 628  (5 556) 

other temporary differences and  
deductible allowances:
Warranty provision  638  –    638  580 
Slow moving stock provision  188  –    188  120 
Retention debtors  –    (371)  (371)  24 
Deferred revenue  809  –    809  627 
Leases  27  –    27  7 
Allowance for doubtful debts  –    –    –    –   
Advance payments received  198  –    198  448 

Accrued leave pay  299  –    299  100 
Provision for bonus  1 468  –    1 468  1 468 

Net deferred tax asset  7 256  (828)  6 428  (2 383) 

2014
accelerated capital allowances:
Intangible assets – (1 154) (1 154) 664

available losses:
Assessed loss 9 183 – 9 183 1 203

other temporary differences and  
deductible allowances:
Allowance for doubtful debt 58 – 58 58 
Slow moving stock provision 69 – 69 69
Retention debtors – (394) (394) 240
Deferred revenue 183 – 183 (51) 
Leases 20 – 20 (19)
Advance payment received 647 – 647 (536)
Accrued leave pay 199 – 199 (1)

Net deferred tax asset 10 359 (1 548) 8 811 1 627

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences giving rise to the deferred 

tax asset where the directors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered in the forseeable future.

The directors have reviewed the 12 months forecast for the company which indicated taxable profits for the period which will 

continue to utilise the assessed losses. The group also has a significant order book which should result in taxable profits in the 

foreseeable future.

The deferred tax rates used to calculate deferred tax on the temporary difference relating to the above was under the liability 

method using effective tax rate of 28% (2014: 28%).
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13. INveNToRIeS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Inventories comprise: 
Raw materials  3 758  3 592  3 758  3 592 
Work in progress  16 165  4 867  15 745  6 492 
Finished goods  20 610  20 541  –    –   
Goods in transit –  218  –    –   

 40 533  29 218  19 503  10 084 

Group
Work-in-progress stock is carried at the net realisable value. Raw material and finished goods of R158 893 401  

(2014: R26 859 542) have been recognised as an expense in cost of sales for the year. Inventory with a carrying value of  

R24 367 872 (2014: R3 781 211) is carried at fair value less cost to sell, refer to note 25 for the impairment written-off.

Work-in-progress inventory to the value of R2 million was written off to net realisable value as it is considered partially 

obsolete. The impairment is included in the mining segment. Inventory to the value of R4,8 million included in finished goods 

has been written off to its estimated net realisable value as it is technologically obsolete. The impairment is included in the 

telecoms segment.

company
Work-in-progress stock is carried at the net realisable value. Raw material and finished goods of R48 947 933 (2014: R17 607 166) 

have been recognised as an expense in cost of sales for the year. Inventory with a carrying value of R3 757 993 (2014: R3 781 211) 

is carried at fair value less cost to sell, refer to note 25 for the impairment written-off.

Work-in-progress inventory to the value of R2 million was written off to net realisable value as it is considered partially 

obsolete. The impairment is included in the mining segment.

14. deRIvaTIve FINaNcIal aSSeTS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Financial assets
At fair value through profit and loss:  

held-for-trading
–  Foreign exchange contract – 80 – 78

an analysis of derivative financial asset 
maturity is as follows:
Up to 3 months – 80 – 78

level 2 financial assets
The fair value of the company’s foreign exchange contract is based on a quote received from the company’s bank based on the 

forward exchange rate at the reporting date. The company’s financial instrument is current and this is based on the remaining 

maturity of the derivative contract and its contractual cash flows.

INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT

2015
109



15. TRade aNd oTheR ReceIvableS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Trade debtors  62 068  16 476  44 767  7 734 
Sundry debtors 949  745 318  322 
Retention debtors  1 324  1 408  1 324  1 408 
Value added tax  –    4 828  –    –   
Project receivables (Work-in-progress)  475  574  475  574 

64 816  24 031  46 884  10 038 

The project receivables relates to revenue recognition on current projects. Project receivables are recognised when the actual 

work performed, up to financial year end date, exceeds the actual invoicing according to the contract. Refer to note 20 relating to 

deferred revenue, for amounts due to customers, in respect of revenue recognition calculations.

Trade and other receivables pledged as security
Trade and other receivables of R62 million (2014: R16,5 million) were pledged as security for the bank overdraft facilities.  

Refer to note 16 for further detail.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than three months past due are not considered to be impaired. At year end  

trade receivables of R2 million million (2014: R1 million) for the group and R0.2 million million (2014: R0,3 million) for the 

company were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no past history 

of defaults.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Past due but not impaired 2 017  1 044  206  287 

The ageing is as follows: 
3 to 6 months  2 017  1 044  206  287 

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 28 February 2015, trade and other receivables of R0,6 million (2014: Rnil) were impaired and accounted for.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Allowance account for credit losses:  –    –    –    –   
Opening balance  –    –    –    –   
Increase in allowance  684  –    –    –   

closing balance  684  –    –    –   
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16. caSh aNd caSh eqUIvaleNTS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Favourable cash balances
Cash on hand  11  9  11  10 
Bank balances  19 379  499  3 023  47 

 19 390  508  3 035  57 

overdraft
Bank overdraft  –    (7 722)  –    (7 722) 

 –    (7 722)  –    (7 722) 

Current assets  19 390  508  3 035  57 
Current liabilities  –    (7 722)  –    (7 722) 

 19 390  (7 214)  3 035  (7 665) 

At 28 February 2014, the bank overdrafts were secured over the cession of book debts, refer to note 15.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Overdraft facility
– Facility  13 500  13 500  10 000  10 000 
– Utilised  -    (7 722)  -    (7 722) 

available  13 500  5 778  10 000  2 278 

17. STaTed caPITal
coMPaNy

2015 2015 2014 2014
Number of

shares R’000
Number of

shares R’000

authorised
Total number of authorised ordinary shares 
Issued 

1 725 490 196 1 725 490 196

Opening balance 244 867 056 73 668 164 867 056 47 268
Number	of	shares	issued – – 80 000 000 26 400

closing balance 244 867 056 73 668 244 867 056 73 668

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

The shares have no par value and the issued shares are fully paid. Each issued share has one voting right and there are  

no restrictions. 

On 28 August 2014, an ordinary resolution was passed by way of general authority, to issue all or any of the authorised  

but	un-issued	shares	in	the	capital	of	the	company	for	cash,	subject	to	the	Memorandum	of	Incorporation	of	the	company,	 

the requirement of the Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listing Requirements, when applicable.

Shares issued for common control business combination 
80 000 000 ordinary shares were issued at R0,33 on 18 January 2014 for the Tedaka business combination.
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18. INSTalMeNT Sale aGReeMeNT
Information about the obligation to make future lease payments is set out below:

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Future minimum lease payments fall  
due as follows:
– within one year  421 231  190 –
– later than one year but within five years  555 483  300 –

Total  976 714  490 –
Future finance costs  (94) (99)  (44) –

Lease liability 882 615  446 –

analysed as follows:  –   
Current portion 350 (179)  153 –
Non-current	portion 532  (436)  293 –

882 (615)  446 –

The lease liability is secured on the related motor vehicles. The average lease term remaining is three years and the average 

effective borrowing rate was 9,75% (2014:9,5%). Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. The group’s obligations 

under instalment sale agreements are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

At the end of the lease term, when the final lease payment is made, ownership of the motor vehicles passes to the entity.

19. PRovISIoNS

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Provision for warranty
Provision  2 280  209  2 280  209 

carrying amount at end of the year  2 280  209  2 280  209 

The provision for warranty claims on products sold and delivered was calculated on a project specific basis as the revenue on 

the products are recognised. A 3% to 7% failure rate and  the estimated production and material cost was used to calculate the 

provision. The warranty claim is valid for a 12 month period.

Information that is typically considered is whether there is back-to-back warranty cover from the supplier on the products as 

well as material failure rates from historic information.
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20. TRade aNd oTheR PayableS

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Trade creditors  80 888  26 486  37 001  6 563 
Accrued leave  1 364  730  1 067  712 
Sundry creditors  –    344  –    70 
Value added tax  3 611  4 184  3 021  79 
Deferred revenue  3 366  1 227  3 366  1 227 
Advance payment  709  2 311  709  –   

 89 938  35 282  45 164  8 651 

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their fair value. All the trade and 

other payables, with exception of accrued leave pay and deferred revenue, is payable within the next three months.  

The deferred revenue relates to revenue received in advance based on the revenue recognition calculation on current projects. 

Deferred revenue is recognised when the actual invoicing, according to the contract, exceeded the actual work performed up to 

financial year end date. Refer to project receivables in the note 15 for amounts due from customers.

21. bUSINeSS coMbINaTIoN
business acquisition of Parsec – Subsequent to year end
 On 1 June 2015, the group acquired 100% of the shares and all shareholders claims against Parsec Holdings, 25% of the non-

controlling interest in Parsec and 20% of the non-controlling interest in Redline Telecommunications SA for a maximum amount 

of R81 733 120, made up as follows:

	•	 		R63	583	492,	of	which	R56	883	492	is	payable	to	the	Parsec	Holdings	sellers	and	R6	700	000	relates	to	the	property	and	is	

only payable once the Property is transferred into the name of Parsec Properties. The R63 583 492 will be paid by the issue 

of	102	475	593	Ansys	shares	at	40	cents	per	share	and	R22	593	255	in	cash;

		•	 		R15	750	002,	which	relates	to	the	25%	shareholding	in	Parsec,	not	owned	by	Parsec	Holdings,	payable	to	the	Parsec	seller,	

by	the	issue	of	39	375	004	Ansys	shares	at	40	cents	per	share;	and

		•	 		R2	399	626,	which	relates	to	the	20%	shareholding	in	Redline	Telecommunications	SA	not	owned	by	Parsec	Holdings	,	

payable to the Redline Telecommunications SA seller by the issue of 3 867 404 Ansys shares at 40 cents per share and  

R852 664 in cash.

The Acquisitions are another significant step for Ansys to become an Intellectual Property-led provider of technology-driven 

engineering solutions, producing world-class products for global distribution. Although Ansys and Parsec in general target the 

same markets, there is currently very little overlap in terms of product and service offerings between the operations of these 

companies, and the Acquisitions will provide Ansys with access to:

		•	 		intellectual	property	and	the	scarce	skill	sets	of	a	sought	after	professional	team	including	45	engineers;

		•	 		an	opportunity	to	diversify	Ansys’	income	streams	by	enhancing	its	mining	safety,	defence	and	telecommunications	

divisions,	as	well	as	entry	into	the	international	defence	market;

		•	 		new	products	for	Ansys’	existing	clients	and	markets;

		•	 		a	modern	production	facility	also	utilised	for	third	party	contract	manufacturing	purposes;	and

		•	 		general	economies	of	scale	benefits.

The Parsec businesses will furthermore benefit from Ansys’ unparalleled BEE credentials in these sectors, as well as its 

foothold in the complementary railway, mining and telecommunications markets providing access to Ansys’ existing clients  

and markets. 

Prior to the effective date, Parsec Holdings will distribute R10 000 000 and R9 779 203 to the Parsec Holdings sellers as  

a dividend. 

The acquisition date of the business combination was 1 June 2015, therefore no results were included in the 28 February 2015 

financial year.
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business acquisition of Parsec – Subsequent to year end continued
The issue price of 40 cents per share was determined by the board on 8 October 2014 and is at a premium of 1,37% to the  
30 day VWAP of Ansys for the 30 days preceding 8 October 2014. The 30 day VWAP of Ansys for the 30 days preceding the  
date of signature of the agreement was 39,43 cents per share which represents a premium of 1.43% to the issue price of  
40 cents per share.

The initial purchase consideration, as per the signed sale agreement, was made up as follows:

2015
R’000

Initial purchase consideration
– 145 718 001 Ansys shares at 40 cents 58 287
– cash consideration 15 800
– contingent cash consideration 7 646

81 733

The cash consideration payable to the Sellers will be settled in three cash tranches and accrues interest at prime interest rate 
from 1 June 2015 as follows:
	•	 		the	first	tranche	of	R10	000	000	was	paid	in	cash	on	the	closing	date	of	30	June	2015,	R9	636	327	is	payable	to	the	Parsec	

Holdings sellers and R363 673 is payable to Redline Telecommunications SA seller.
		•	 		the	second	tranche	of	R3	500	000	is	payable	in	cash	on	1	December	2015,	to	the	Sellers	as	follows;	R3	372	715	is	payable	to	

the	Parsec	Holdings	sellers	and	R127	285	is	payable	to	the	Redline	Telecommunications	SA	seller;
		•	 		the	third	tranche	of	R9	945	919	is	payable	in	cash	to	the	Sellers	as	follows;
	 	–	 		the	first	instalment	of	R2	300	000	is	payable	on	1	June	2016	as	follows;	 

R2	216	355	to	the	Parsec	Holdings	sellers	and	R83	645	to	the	Redline	Telecommunications	SA	seller;	and
  –   the subsequent instalments of R2 500 000 each are payable in quarterly instalments commencing on 1 June 2017,  

payable as follows:
	 	 –	 		R7	367	858	to	the	Parsec	Holdings	sellers;	and	
  –   R278 061 to the Redline Telecommunications SA seller. 
   These are payable subject to Parsec having sufficient free cashflow. In the event that Parsec does not have sufficient  

free cashflow, the quarterly instalments of R2 500 000 each shall be increased by the amount of the shortfall in  
free cashflow.

			•	 		In	the	event	that	any	tranche	and/or	tranche	shortfall	is	not	paid	after	36	months	from	1	June	2015,	due	to	a	shortfall	in	free	
cashflows, all the said amounts shall be forfeited.  

 
The transaction cost of the business combination approximated to R2,4 million.

 accounting for business combination (provisional)
 Purchase consideration

The purchase consideration is calculated as follows:

1 June
2015

R’000

Fair value of the purchase consideration
– shares at 77 cents 112 203
– cash consideration 15 370
– contingent cash consideration 7 646

135 219

 Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired
The fair value of each major class of assets and liabilities assumed, the resulting goodwill and non controlling interest, could 
not be measured reliably due to the acquisition date financial statements of Parsec Holdings not yet finalised at the publication 
of this report.
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common control business combination: Tedaka – Prior year
On 9 December 2013, the group acquired 100% of the share capital of Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd (“Tedaka”),  

a tele-communications distribution company for infrastructure products and related network accessories.

The company acquired the entire issued share capital of Tedaka, which was controlled by the Ansys CEO, Teddy Daka. In view 

of his pre-existing significant interest in the issued share capital of Ansys, and taking account of an analysis of the attendance 

and voting patterns at shareholder meetings, it is the judgement of the board that Teddy Daka had “de facto control” over 

Ansys before the transaction. The directors have assessed that this business combination meets the definition of a business 

combination under common control. Such a business combination does not fall within the scope of IFRS 3 – Business 

Combinations and the directors have therefore recognised the assets and liabilities of the acquiree at their carrying values at 

acquisition date.

The business combination of Tedaka will expand the group offering to include solutions for the telecommunications sector, 

thereby reducing the group’s exposure to the rail and defence sectors. The supplier agreements secured by Tedaka will allow 

the group to provide state-of-the-art products that suit the needs of the telecommunications operators in their continuous 

upgrading of their networks.

The Fair and Reasonable Report, included in the Circular to Shareholders, valued the Tedaka shares between R14,2 million and 

R19,5 million with a core value of R16,2 million which was based on the information and forecast available at the time. As a 

result of the significant loss and Tedaka not meeting its targets impairment indication was triggered. Accordingly, at year end 

the Tedaka shares were independently valued at R9,7 million. Refer to note 10 for the impairment performed on the investment 

in a subsidiary.

The acquired business contributed revenues of R13,1 million and net loss after taxation of R1,7 million to the group for the period 

9 December 2013 to 28 February 2014.

The results are included in the telecoms segment as part of the segment report.
9 December

2013
R’000

details of the net assets acquired:
Negative	carrying	value	of	the	net	assets	acquired	 6 002
Less:
Purchase consideration
– shares issued 18 400

Retained earnings 24 402

The value of the shares issued was based on the published share price of 9 December 2013 of 33 cents, of which R8 million 

represented the purchase of the convertible equity loan and R18,4 million represented the sale shares of Tedaka.

The initial purchase consideration, as per the signed sale agreement, was made up as follows:

•	 	An	initial	tranche	payment	of	80	000	000	Ansys	shares	at	20	cents	each.	The	first	tranche	payment	would	be	allocated	to	the	

convertible equity loan of R8 000 000 and to the sale shares of R8 000 000.

•	 	A	second	tranche	payment	in	an	amount	equal	to	the	profit	after	taxation	of	Tedaka	for	the	financial	year	ended	 

28 February 2014, multiplied by a price:earnings ratio of 3 less the first tranche payment, which would be payable in newly 

issued Ansys shares at an issue price of 20 cents each.

Tedaka did not meet its profit targets and therefore no payments in shares will be made in addition to the initial payment.  

The transaction cost of the business combination approximated to R1,4 million.
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9 December
2013

R’000

carrying value of assets and liabilities acquired
Plant and equipment 1 422 
Intangible assets 26
Loans receivable 112 
Inventories 19 560 
Trade and other receivables 14 960 
Trade and other payables  (25 149)
Other financial liabilities  (17 666)
Deferred tax asset 2 156
Bank overdraft (780)
Borrowings (643)

Total net assets acquired (6002)

Cash consideration paid –
Less: overdraft assumed 780

Net cash outflow on acquisition (780)

22. ReveNUe
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

an analysis of revenue is as follows:
Rendering of a service 54 320  49 624 54 320  49 129 
Sale of goods 196 802  16 179 51 895  3 565 

 251 121  65 803  106 215  52 694 

23. oTheR INcoMe
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Profit on the sale of plant and equipment –  522 5  522 
Sundry income  361  132  82  107 
Management	fees  –    –    5 797  –   

 361  654  5 884  629 
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24. oTheR GaINS aNd loSSeS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Financial assets at fair value through  
profit and loss – held-for-trading:
– Fair value gains: unrealised 80 76 80 76
– Fair value losses: unrealised – – – –

Foreign exchange gains and losses:
– Fair value gains: realised 5 777 1 560 364 41
– Fair value losses: realised  (1 787) (850)  (1 182) (645)

 4 270 796  (818) (528)

25. oPeRaTING PRoFIT/(loSS)
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after 
taking into account the following items:
Impairment of intangible assets (1 168) (868) (1 168) (868)
Research and development cost  2 979 460  2 979 460
Employee cost 28 532 14 971 14 923 12 818
Post retirement benefit: defined contribution plan  1 842 1 868  1 340 1 868
Inventory write-offs 7 426 313 2 615 313 
(Loss)/profit on the disposal of plant and 

equipment (45) 522  5 522
Amortisation of intangible assets 1 455 1 551  1 411 1 512

Depreciation on plant and equipment 748 398  250 257
Reversal/(Impairment) of investment  

in subsidiary

– – 8 700 (8 700)

operating lease charges
Premises  2 682 3 268  1 574 2 887
Motor	vehicles  143 351  –   329
Equipment  152 28  18 9
Other  6 50  6 50

26. FINaNce INcoMe
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Interest received 35 3  26 –
Interest received from subsidiaries – –  506 160

35 3  532 160
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27. FINaNce coSTS
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Related party loans 648 391  116 65
Bank overdrafts  1 103 499  1 018 480
Instalment sale agreements  75 10  20 –
Other  16 3  7 1

1 842 903  1 161 546

28. INcoMe Tax exPeNSe
GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current taxation: prior year understatement 335 152 – 152

Deferred taxation
Current year temporary differences  3 970 (2 237)  2 383 (1 627)

Income taxation for the year  4 302 (2 085)  2 383 (1 475)

Reconciliation of rate of taxation % % % %
South African normal taxation rate  28 28  28 28

adjusted for:
Expenses not deductible 18 (4) 11 (18)
Tax effect on section 11D allowance – 1 – 1
Prior year adjustment – (2) –  (1)
Non	taxable	gains  (1 7) – (25) –

Effective rate of taxation 30 23  14 10

The estimated taxation loss available for set off 

against future taxable income amounts to

 12 957 42 386  12 957 32 800
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29. dIRecToRS aNd PReScRIbed oFFIceR eMolUMeNTS

directors

Fees 
 paid to

director
for 

services
basic

 salary 

bonuses
 and

perfor-
mance

 related
payments

Medical 
aid 

Retirement 
contri-

butions Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
executive directors:
Teddy Daka – 1 528  1 264 101 91  2 983 
Rachelle Grobbelaar – 1 366   806 – 74  2 246 

Non-executive directors:
Fezile	Dantile	   160  –  –  –  –   160 
David Keebine   80  –  –  –  –   80 
Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube   360  –  –  –  –   360 
Sizakele	Mzimela   160  –  –  –  –   160 

Total   760 2 894 2 070   101 165 5 989

2014
executive directors:
Teddy Daka – 1 151 – – 37 1 188
Rachelle Grobbelaar – 1 071 39 – 61 1 171

Non-executive directors:
Nonlanhla	Mjole–Mncube 270 – – – – 270
Siza	Mzimela 136 – – – – 136
David Keebine 192 – – – – 192
Fezile	Dantile 176 – – – – 176
Teddy Daka 270 – – – – 270

From the company 1 044 2 222 39 – 98 3 403

executive directors:
Teddy Daka – 317 – – – 317

From the subsidiary – 317 – – – 317

Total emoluments 1 044 2 539 39 – 98 3 719
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Prescribed officers Position

basic
salary
R’000

bonus
R’000

Medical
aid

R’000

Retirement
 contri-
bution
R’000

Total
R’000

2015
Dave Howie3 Chief operating officer 1 169  400  –  64  1 633 
Kgabo Badimo4 Chief business  

development officer

1 121  400 –  66  1 587 

Onno Sakkers2 Chief technical officer 1 026 314 – 113 1 453
Ian Lamprecht1, 2 Chief operating officer 790 273 97 98 1 257

 4 106 1 387 97 341 5 930

2014
Onno Sakkers2 Chief technical officer  998  39  –  149  1 186 
Ian Lamprecht1, 2 Chief operating officer  749  34  90  125  999 

 1 747  73  90  274  2 185 

1  Appointed on Exco from 1 September 2012
2 Resigned from Exco on 1 March 2014
3 Appointed on 1 March 2014
4  Appointed on 1 June 2014

30. eaRNINGS aNd loSS PeR ShaRe

Total 
shares

weighted
shares

Total
shares

Weighted
shares

2015 2015 2014 2014
Number Number Number Number

Total and weighted shares 
Number	of	shares	in	issue:	
Opening balance 244 867 056 244 867 056 164 867 056 164 867 056
Shares issued during the year – – 80 000 000 17 753 424

closing balance 244 867 056 244 867 056 244 867 056 182 620 480

GRoUP

2015 2014
R’000 R’000

basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable  
to ordinary shareholders
Net	profit/(loss)	attributable	to	ordinary	

shareholders

  10 025 (7 025)

Weighted average number of shares in issue  244 867 056 182 620 480

basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable  
to ordinary shareholders (cents)

4,09 (3,85)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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GRoUP

2015 2014
R’000 R’000

headline and diluted headline earnings/(loss) per share  
attributable to ordinary shareholders
Net	loss	attributable	to	ordinary	shareholders   10 025 (7 025)

Non-headline items after tax: 

Impairment of intangible asset   1 168 868
Profit on the sale of plant and equipment – (522)
Total tax effects of adjustments (327) 146

Headline and diluted headline earnings/(loss) attributable  

to ordinary shareholders

10 866 (6 533)

Weighted average number of shares in issue  244 867 056 182 620 480

basic and diluted headline earnings/(loss) per share  
attributable to ordinary shareholders (cents)

 4,44 (3,58)

31. NoTeS To The STaTeMeNT oF caSh FlowS

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Profit/(loss) before tax  14 328  (9 110)  17 091  (15 500) 
adjusted for:
Finance costs 1 842  903  1 161  546 
Finance income  (35)  (3)  (532)  (160) 
Amortisation of intangible assets  1 454  1 551  1 411  1 532 
Depreciation of plant and equipment 748  398  250  257 
Impairment/reversal of impairment of 

investment in subsidiary

– –  (8 700)  8 700 

Impairment of intangible assets  1 168  868  1 168  868 
Loss/(profit) on disposal of plant and 

equipment 45  (522) (5)  (522) 
Unrealised foreign exchange differences  80  (76) 80  (76) 

operating cash flow before working  
capital changes  19 630  (5 991) 11 924  (4 355) 
Working capital changes
Change in inventories  (11 316)  (1 391)  (9 419)  (1 819) 
Change in trade and other receivables  (40 786)  14 442  (36 845)  13 361 
Change in provisions  2 072  209  2 072  209 
Change in trade and other payables  54 656  (2 824)  36 510  (4 311) 

cash generated from operations  24 256  4 445 4 242  3 085 
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32. coMMITMeNTS UNdeR oPeRaTING leaSeS

description lease agreement details

Fixed property (office property):

Office property – Highveld Centurion Lease term of three years and rentals are fixed for the first term with  
annual	escalation	of	8%	compounded	annually	from	1	June.	No	contingent	rent	
is payable.

Office property – Route 21 Corporate Park Lease term of three years and rentals are fixed for the first term with  
annual	escalation	of	10%	compounded	annually	from	1	June.	No	contingent	rent	
is payable.

Motor vehicles:

Motor	vehicles	 Lease term of three years and rentals are fixed with no annual escalations.  
No	contingent	rent	is	payable.

copiers:

Copiers Lease term of five years and rentals are fixed with no annual escalations.  
No	contingent	rent	is	payable.

At year end, the group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases that fall due as follows:

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
leased property R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Minimum	lease	payments	under	operating	leases	

recognised as an expense during the year

 2 682 3 309 1 089 2 887

Within one year  2 233 2 267  1 187 1 115
Later than one year but within five years  662 3 097  303 1 393

 2 895 5 364  1 490 2 508

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
Motor vehicles R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Minimum	lease	payments	under	operating	leases	

recognised as an expense during the year

 648 329  470 329

Within one year  1 037 288  806 288
Later than one year but within five years  1 643 20  1 388 20

 2 680 308  2 194 308

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
copiers R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Minimum	lease	payments	under	operating	leases	

recognised as an expense during the year

 102 85  102 85

Within one year  102 85  102 85
Later than one year but within five years  154 256  154 256

 256 341  256 341
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33. RelaTed PaRTy TRaNSacTIoNS
GRoUP coMPaNy

Nature of 
transactions/ 
balancesRelationship

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Transactions during the year

Teddy Daka Director and shareholder Finance cost  506  –   35  –   
Integrated Advance 

Systems Pty Ltd

Controlled by shareholder 

of Ansys Ltd

Rental for 

office

 –    1 784  –    1 784 

Bearing	Management	

Consultants Pty Ltd

Controlled by director of 

Ansys Ltd (Teddy Daka)

Finance cost  169  –   81  –   

TDK Trust Trustee of trust is director 

and shareholder of Ansys 

Ltd (Teddy Daka)

Finance cost 54  –   –  –   

Tedaka Technologies 

Pty Ltd

Subsidiary Finance cost – – 506  –   

Tedaka Technologies 

Pty Ltd

Subsidiary Finance 

income

– – (74) –

amounts owed (to)/by the related party

Teddy Daka Director and shareholder Loan payable  (4 206)  –    (335)  –   
Tedaka Investments 

Pty Ltd

Controlled by director of 

Ansys Ltd (Teddy Daka)

Loan payable  (9 070)  (9 070)  –    –   

Bearing	Management	

Consultants Pty Ltd

Controlled by director of 

Ansys Ltd (Teddy Daka)

Loan payable  (1 791)  (923)  (781)  –   

Tedaka Technologies 

Pty Ltd

Subsidiary Loan 

receivable

 –    –    1 701  8 160 

QuadSoft Pty Ltd Subsidiary Loan payable  –    –    (8 809)  (8 809) 

The remuneration of directors and other members of  
key management during the year was as follows:

directors (refer to page 119)
– Ansys Ltd  5 989  3 403  5 989  3 403 
– Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd  –    317  –    317   

Prescribed officers (refer to page 120) 5 930 2 185 5 930 2 185
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34. FINaNcIal RISk MaNaGeMeNT
General objectives, policies and processes
The board has overall responsibility for the determination of the group’s risk management objectives and policies and, whilst 

retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the 

effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the Executive Committee. The overall objective of the board is to set 

policies that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the company competitiveness and flexibility.

The board amended the objectives, policies and process for managing risk, to fully include the risk aspects of Tedaka.

In common with all other businesses, the group is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial instruments. This note 

describes the group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. 

Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these financial statements. There have 

been no substantive changes in the group’s exposure to financial instruments risks, its objectives, policies and processes for 

managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous periods, except of the business combination of 

Tedaka, in the prior year, or unless otherwise stated in this note.

Principal financial instruments
The principal financial instruments used by the group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are, trade receivables,  

loans receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, forward currency contracts and 

borrowings (related party loans).

The group has classified its financial assets in the following categories:

GRoUP coMPaNy

Fair value
through

profit/loss
loans and

 receivables

Fair value
through

profit/loss
loans and

 receivables

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

2015
Loans to related parties 11  –    –    –    1 701 
Trade and other receivables 15  –    64 816  –    46 884 
Cash and cash equivalents 16  –    19 390  –    3 035 

 –    84 206  –    51 620 

2014
Derivative financial asset 14 80  – 78  –
Loans to related parties 11  – –  – 8 160
Trade and other receivables 15 – 19 203 – 10 038
Cash and cash equivalents 16 – 508 – 57

 80  19 201  78  18 255 
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The group has classified its financial liabilities in the following categories:

GRoUP coMPaNy

Financial 
liabilities at

 amortised
 cost 

Financial 
liabilities at

 amortised
 cost 

Note R’000 R’000

2015
Trade and other payables 20 86 327 42 143
Loans from related parties 11 15 067 9 925
Instalment sale agreement 18  882  446 
Bank overdraft 16 – –

102 276 52 514

2014
Trade and other payables 20  31 098  8 572 
Loans from related parties 11  9 993  8 809 
Instalment sale agreement 18  615 –
Bank overdraft 16  7 722  7 722 

 49 428  25 103 

The group is exposed through its operations to the following financial risks: 

(a) Credit risk

(b) Liquidity risk

(c)		 Market	risk

 – Price risk

 – Cash flow and interest rate risk

 – Foreign exchange risk

The group is exposed to these risk arising in the normal course of its business and financial instruments. The group’s risk 

management objectives, policies and processes mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks on its 

financial performance and position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

34.1 credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits, with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure 

to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. Risk control assesses the credit quality of the 

customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on 

internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are mainly 

grouped by other credit characteristics such as ageing profile, maturing and existing of previous financial difficulties are also 

considered. Customers classed as “high risk” are placed on a restrictive customer list and future contracts are entered into on 

an advance payment or payment guaranteed basis with approval of the Executive Committee.

The group may request certain customers to provide independent reputable bank guarantees, or advance payments, as 

collateral against credit risk, in respect of contracts concluded. The objective of such collateral is to counter the risk of non-

payment by the group’s contract debtors. The process described above is followed by the group to manage credit risk before 

credit is granted to the customers on projects. The group has various cash deposits and forward exchange contracts which are 

held with reputable banking institutions which mitigate credit risk. The group may be exposed to certain concentrations of credit 

risks within one customer. Refer to the segmental information for further detail.
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34.1 credit risk continued
The maximum exposure of financial assets to credit risk equates to the carrying amounts as presented in the statements of 

financial position and the notes thereto were as follows:

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Summary quantitative data
Loans to related parties 11  –   –  1 701 8 160
Derivative financial assets 14  –    80  –    78 
Trade and other receivables 15  64 816 19 703  46 884  10 038 
Deposits with banks 16  19 390  508  3 035  57 

 84 206 20 291  51 620  18 333 

credit quality of financial assets:
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due not impaired, excluding the retention debtors, can be assessed by 

reference to historical information about their default rates.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Trade and other receivables 
Customer A – low risk  41 783 3 941  41 783 3 941
Customer B – low risk  699 1 371  699 1 371
Customer C – low risk  –   1 173  –   1 173
Customer D – low risk  8 780 3 014  –   –
Customer E – low risk  6 097 1 609  –   –
Customer F – low risk  1 421 1 201  –   –
Other receivables  4 712 10 314  3 078 2 145

Trade and other receivables  63 493 22 623  45 560 8 630

cash at bank and short-term bank deposits
Cash on hand  11 9  11 10
Bank A  19 336 452  2 980 –
Bank B  43 47  43 47

cash at bank and short-term bank deposits  19 390 508  3 035 57

Customer A to F relate to existing customers with some defaults in the past. All defaults were fully recovered. Other receivables 

relates to existing customers with no defaults in the past.

Financial assets that are not past due not impaired, are high credit quality with a historical group default rate of 0% (2014: 0%) 

and company default rate of 0% (2014: 0%). The historic default rate is calculated by dividing the actual bad debt write-off by 

revenue for the year. As of 28 February 2015, group trade and other receivables of R1 357 702 (2014: R1 043 993) and company 

trade receivables R206 055 (2014: R287 470) were past due but not impaired excluding retention debtors (included in the 6 to 

12 month category). These relate to independent customers for whom there is no past history of default. Certain amounts were 

received from customers, subsequent to the financial year end.

Management	only	deposits	with	reputable	bank	institutions	and	they	do	not	expect	any	non-performance	from	the	banks. 

The rest of the financial position item cash and cash equivalents is cash on hand.
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34.2 liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the company’s management of working capital, the finance charges and principal repayments on its 

debt instruments. It is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.  

The company’s policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

The group is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It manages its funds conservatively to ensure that it always has 

sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due. Various banking facilities and credit lines have also been 

arranged with our Corporate Banker in order to fund any emergency liquidity requirements.

The Executive Committee monitors rolling forecasts of the group liquidity reserve (comprising un-drawn borrowing facility and 

cash and cash equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flow. At the end of the financial year, these projections indicated that 

the group expects to have sufficient liquid resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances.

GRoUP coMPaNy

less than
1 year

between 
1 and 5
 years Undated

less than
1 year

between 
1 and 5
 years Undated

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Undiscounted contractual 
maturity analysis:

2015
Trade and other payables 20  86 327  –    –    42 143  –    –   
Instalment sale agreements 18  421 555  –    190  300  –   
Bank overdraft 16  –    –    –    –    –    –   
Loans from related parties 11  5 998  9 070  –    1 116  –    8 809   

2014
Trade and other payables 20 31 098 – – 8 572 – –
Instalment sale agreements 18 231 483 – – – –
Bank overdraft 16 7 722 – – 7 722 – –
Loans from related parties 11 – 9 993 – – – 8 809

34.3 Market risk
Market	risk	arises	from	the	company’s	use	of	interest	bearing	loans,	foreign	currency	financial	instruments.	It	is	the	risk	that	

the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange 

rates or other market factors.

(i) Price risk
The group is not materially exposed to commodity price risk.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The group is not materially exposed to fair value interest rate risk as its borrowings are mostly at market related floating 
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk which is mainly from its deposits with banks and borrowings (related parties and 
banks). It is a common practice in South Africa to have floating rate borrowings with the banks.

In order to manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the group will repay the corresponding borrowings when it has  
surplus funds.
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Summary quantitative data

GRoUP coMPaNy

Interest rate 
applicable

2015 2014 2015 2014

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

variable rate instruments: 
liabilities
Loans from related parties
– Teddy Daka Prime plus 5,5%  (4 206) –  (335) 
– Tedaka Investments Pty Ltd Prime rate  (9 070) (9 070) – –
–		Bearing	Management	Consulting	 

Pty Ltd

Prime rate  (1 791) (923)  (781) – 

Bank overdraft Prime plus 2,7% – (7 722) – (7 722)

assets
Cash and cash equivalents Daily call interest rate  19 390  508  3 035  57 
Loans to related parties
– Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd Prime rate – –  1 701  8 160 

Sensitivity analysis
Group:
At 28 February 2015, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other variables held constant,  
the group losses for the year would have been R1 325 308 (2014: R108 898) higher/lower.

Company:
At 28 February 2015, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis points lower with all other variables held constant,  
the company losses for the year and retained earnings would have been R738 129 (2014: R141 180) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance 
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for the relevant financial instruments in existence at  
that date. The changes in interest rate represent management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates  
at that date over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.

The analysis is prepared on the same basis for the prior financial year.

(iii) Foreign exchange risk
The group is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in foreign currencies, as a result of future transactions with foreign companies 
for the supply of products and/or or material. The group makes use of a combination of future contracts and forward exchange 
contracts to manage this risk, which is customer contract specific.

The Executive Committee manages the foreign exchange risk exposure in the group arising from future commercial  
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities, by use of forward exchange and future contracts. Currency risk arises 
when future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s 
functional currency.

The group reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments on an ongoing basis. There have been no changes to 
the method used from the prior year.

In respect of sales and receivables, the group sets a prudent credit limit to individual customers who transact with it in other 
foreign currencies. The directors’ approval is required on the exposure to an individual customer or transaction that exceeds  
the limit.
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The exchange rate used for the conversion of foreign items at financial year end date was:

2015 2014
R’000 R’000

USD 11.57770 10.7894
AUD 9.04030 9.6482
EUR 12.9837 14.7563

Forward exchange contracts which relate to future commitments:

amount in foreign currency
Future  
contract rate

Fair value
translation rate Maturity date

2015
Future contracts
USD  USD1 = R11,290  USD1 = R11,696 31	March	2015
USD  USD1 = R11,311  USD1 = R11,696 31	March	2015
USD  USD1 = R11,797  USD1 = R11,696 31	March	2015
USD  USD1 = R11,494  USD1 = R11,865 30 June 2015

amount in foreign currency
Forward 
exchange rate

Fair value
translation rate Maturity date

2014
Forward exchange contracts
USD 12 002.14  USD1 = R11,2119  USD1 = R10,7743 7	March	2014
USD 32 084.60  USD1 = R11,1949  USD1 = R10,7857 14	March	2014
USD 41 944.00  USD1 = R11,2088  USD1 = R10,7940 19	March	2014
USD 53 611.02  USD1 = R11,2361  USD1 = R10,8207 4 April 2014
USD 27 206.71  USD1 = R11,2285  USD1  = R10,8740 5	May	2014
AUD 33 153.00  AUD1 = R10,0000  AUD1 = R9,6423 2 April 2014

Sensitivity analysis
At 28 February 2015, if the South African Rand weakened 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant,  
the group’s loss for the year would have been R34 652 (2014: R180 407) higher/lower.

At 28 February 2015, if the South African Rand weakened 10% against the Australian Dollar with all other variables held 
constant, the group’s loss for the year would have been Rnil (2014: R31 967) higher/lower.

At 28 February 2015, if the South African Rand weakened 10% against the Euro with all other variables held constant, the group’s 
loss for the year would have been R353 076 (2014: R387 243) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared with the assumption that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the 
balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to currency risk for the relevant financial instruments in existence at 
that date. The changes in foreign exchange rates represent the Corporate Banker’s assessment of a reasonably possible change 
in foreign exchange rates at that date over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.

The foreign currency amounts translated for the outstanding forward exchange contracts at 28 February 2015 were Rnil  
(2014: R2 123 738).

The analysis is prepared on the same basis as the prior year.
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35. FaIR valUe hIeRaRchy
Assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value in the statement of financial position are categorised in its entirety into 

the following three levels of the fair value hierarchy based on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement in its entirety:

Level	1:	 fair	value	measured	using	quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	identical	financial	assets	or	liabilities;

Level 2:  fair value measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the financial 

asset	or	liability,	either	directly	or	indirectly;	and

Level 3: fair value measured using inputs for the financial asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as held for trading and available-for-sale securities)  

is based on quoted market prices at the financial year end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 

group is current bid price. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using the quoted forward exchange rates 

at the financial year end date, with the resulting value discounted back to present value.

The fair value of financial liabilities categorised as “other financial liabilities” and financial assets categorised as “loans and 

receivables” is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models comprising discounted cash flow analysis.  

The fair value of derivative financial assets (e.g. forward exchange contracts) is based on a Level 2 recuring fair value 

measurement hierarchy (refer to note 14).

The carrying value of non-current financial assets and liabilities at market related floating rates approximate fair value and are 

classified as Level 3.

Where the effects of discounting are immaterial, short-term receivables and short-term payables are measured at the original 

invoice amount. Due to the short-term nature of trade receivables and trade payables their carrying amounts approximate their 

fair value.

36. eveNTS SUbSeqUeNT To yeaR eNd
Except for what is noted below, the directors are not aware of any significant events that have occurred between the year  

end and the date of this report that may materially affect the results of the group for the year or its financial position as at  

28 February 2015.

acquisition of Parsec
Ansys acquired 100% of the shares in and all shareholders claims against Parsec Holdings Pty Ltd (“Parsec”), 25% of the shares 

in and all shareholders claims against Parsec Pty Ltd and 20% of the shares in and all shareholders claims against Redline 

Telecommunications SA Pty Ltd for a maximum amount of R81,7 million, which includes the net consideration for the property, 

Erven 3323 and 3318, Irene Extension 72, Kungwini local municipality, JR, Gauteng, together with all improvements thereon of 

approximately R6,7 million, with the effect from 1 June 2015. Refer to note 21.

Part of the purchase price for the acquisition of Parsec has been funded by the issue on 8 April 2015 of 42 406 667 Ansys 

ordinary no par value shares at 36 cents per share to various new investors in terms of a vendor consideration placing. 

Tedaka Investments loan conversion
To assist in improving the Statement of Financial Position of Ansys, Tedaka Investments Pty Ltd signed an agreement to convert 

the loan entered into with Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd with a value of R7 900 000, into equity, in terms of a specific issue  

of 22 674 375 Ansys ordinary no par value shares to Tedaka Technologies Pty Ltd at an issue price of 40 cents per share.  

The shareholder’s approved the specific issue of the shares at the general meeting on 1 June 2015 and the shares were issued  

on 6 July 2015.  

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ending 28 February 2015
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37. caPITal MaNaGeMeNT
The group objective when managing capital is to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of 

capital. This objective is consistent with the prior year.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,  

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, obtain additional funding or overdraft or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This is calculated as net debt 

divided	by	total	capital.	Net	debt	is	calculated	as	total	borrowings	(which	include	instalment	sale	agreements,	other	financial	

liabilities and bank overdraft as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.  

The total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.

GRoUP coMPaNy

2015 2014 2015 2014
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Loans from related parties  15 068 9 993  9 925 8 809
Instalment sale agreement  882   615   447    –
Bank overdraft – 7 722 – 7 722
Less: cash and cash equivalents  (19 390)  (508)  (3 035)  (57)

Net debt (3 440) 17 822 7 337 16 474
Total equity  42 433 32 408  49 454 34 748

Total capital 38 993 50 230 56 791 51 222

Gearing ratio – 35% 13% 32%

Group: 
The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from the improvement of the cash position. The group is not subjected to 

any externally imposed capital requirements.

Company: 
The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted from the increase in cash and cash equivalents as well as profits generated during  

the year. The group is not subjected to any externally imposed capital requirements.

38. GoING coNceRN
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 

presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 

contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The directors have reviewed the group’s budget and cash flow forecasts for the year ended February 2016 which include certain 

assumptions about the cash flows from planned and unplanned projects and raising additional funding when required. On this 

basis and in light of the group’s current financial position, the directors are satisfied that the group will continue to operate for 

the foreseeable future and have therefore adopted the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

39. coNTINGeNcIeS
The group has no contingent liabilities.
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     The group’s performance reflects 
aggressive growth across 
           the board and at the end of the  
   financial year the business is in a much 
stronger financial position. 
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDERS

company Ansys Limited

Register date 27 February 2015

Issued Share capital 244 867 056

Shareholder spread
Number of

shareholders
Percentage

 held %
Number of

 shares held
Percentage

 held %

1 – 1 000 shares  147 13,79  76 884 0,03

1 001 – 10 000 shares  406 38,09  2 142 769 0,88

10 001 – 100 000 shares  417 39,12  14 897 973 6,08

100 001 – 1 000 000 shares  73 6,85  23 695 523 9,68

1 000 001 shares and over  23 2,16  204 053 907 83,33

Total 1 066 100,00 244 867 056 100,00

Shareholder spread
Number of

shareholders
Percentage

 held %
Number of

 shares held
Percentage

 held %

Banks 1 0,09 20 0,00

Close corporations 23 2,16 2 826 760 1,15

Individuals 981 92,03 128 611 376 52,52

Insurance companies 1 0,09 4 185 608 1,71

Investment companies 2 0,19 15 810 0,01

Mutual	funds 1 0,09 70 702 0,03

Other corporations 6 0,56 120 643 0,05

Private companies 18 1,69 105 843 800 43,23

Trusts 33 3,10 3 192 337 1,30

Total 1 066 100,00 244 867 056 100,00

Public/non-public shareholders
Number of

shareholders
Percentage

 held %
Number of

 shares held
Percentage

 held %

Non-public shareholders 4 0,16 125 283 622 51,16

Directors and Associates of the Company 4 0,16 125 283 622 51,16

Public shareholders 1 062 99,84 119 583 434 48,84

Total 1 066 100,00 244 867 056 100,00

beneficial shareholders holding 3% or more
Number of

 shares held
Percentage

 held %

T Daka 125 062 745 51,07

UBU Investment Holdings Pty Ltd 15 594 776 6,37

JH Hofmeyr 12 326 520 5,03

OK Sakkers 12 000 294 4,90

Graceful Equity Holdings Pty Ltd 9 350 000 3,82

Total 174 334 335 71,20
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

aNSyS lIMITed
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number: 1987/001222/06) 

(“Ansys” or “the company”)

ISIN	Code:	ZAe	000097028	

Share	Code:	ANS	

If you are in doubt as to what action to take in regard to this notice, please consult your central Securities depository Participant 

(“cSdP”), broker, banker, accountant, attorney or other professional adviser immediately and refer to the instructions set out in 

the conclusion of this notice.

Notice	is	hereby	given	that	an	annual	general	meeting	of	shareholders	of	the	Company	will	be	held	on	wednesday, 9 September 2015  

at 10h00 at 140 bauhinia Street, highveld Techno Park, centurion to deal with such business as may lawfully be dealt with at 

the meeting and to consider and, if deemed fit, pass, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions set out 

hereunder in the manner required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended “(the Companies Act”), the memorandum of 

incorporation	(“MoI”)	of	the	Company	and	the	Listings	Requirements	of	the	JSe	Limited	(“JSe	Listings	Requirements”).

The record date on which members must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries of the Company 

for the purpose of being entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting is 26 August 2015.

Meeting	participants	(including	shareholders	and	proxies)	are	required	to	provide	reasonably	satisfactory	identification	before	

being entitled to attend or participate in a shareholders’ meeting. Forms of identification include valid identity documents, driver’s 

licences and passports.

PReSeNTaTIoN oF aNNUal FINaNcIal STaTeMeNTS
The consolidated audited annual financial statements of the Company and of the group, for the year ended 28 February 2015, 

incorporating the directors’ report, the Audit Committee report and the auditor’s report, have been distributed as required and will 

be presented to shareholders as required in terms of section 30(3)(d) of the Companies Act.

RePoRT oF The SocIal, eThIcS aNd TRaNSFoRMaTIoN coMMITTee
In accordance with Companies Regulation 43(5)(c), issued in terms of the Companies Act, the chairman of the Social, Ethics and 

Transformation Committee will table a report to shareholders, as contained in the integrated annual report, at the annual  

general meeting.

1. ordinary resolution number 1

Annual financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2015 
“Resolved that the annual financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries, which includes the directors’ report and Audit 

and Risk Committee report for the year ended 28 February 2015 be and are hereby adopted.”

The consolidated audited annual financial statements of the company (as approved by the board of directors of the company), 

incorporating the external auditor, Audit and Risk Committee and directors’ reports for the year ended 28 February 2015, have 

been distributed as required and will be presented.

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on 
the resolution.

The complete annual financial statements are set out on pages 68 to 131 of the integrated annual report posted to shareholders 

on 6 August 2015.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

2. ordinary resolution number 2

Re-election of directors who retire by rotation 

“Resolved that shareholders re-elect by way of series of votes, the following directors who retire by rotation in terms of  

article	26.6.1	of	the	Company’s	MoI,	and	who,	being	eligible,	have	offered	themselves	for	re-election:

2.1		 Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube	

2.2	 Sizakele	Mzimela”	

Brief biographies in respect of each director offering herself for re-election are contained on pages 31 to35 of the integrated  

annual report.

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on 

 the resolution. 

3. ordinary resolution number 3

Re-appointment of external auditor

“Resolved that shareholders authorise the board to re-appoint BDO South Africa Incorporated (Pretoria), Riverwalk Office Park, 

Building	C,	41	Matroosberg	Road,	Ashlea	Gardens,	Pretoria,	South	Africa,	as	the	independent	external	auditors	and	 

Tinus Jansen van Vuuren as the individual designated auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to determine the 

remuneration of the auditors.”

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on  

the resolution. 

4. ordinary resolution number 4

Re-election of Audit and Risk Committee 

“Resolved that shareholders re-elect, each by way of a separate vote, the following three independent non-executive directors,  

as members of the Ansys Audit and Risk Committee, with effect from the end of this annual general meeting until the conclusion 

of the next annual general meeting of the Company:

4.1		 Sizakele	Mzimela	(Chairperson)

4.2	 Fezile	Dantile

4.3	 Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube”

Brief biographies of these directors offering themselves for election as members of the Ansys Audit and Risk Committee are 

enclosed in the report on pages 31 to 35 of the integrated annual report. 

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on  

the resolution. 

5. ordinary resolution number 5

Endorsement of Ansys remuneration policy

“Resolved that shareholders endorse, by way of a non-binding advisory vote, the Company’s remuneration policy (excluding the 

remuneration of the non-executive directors and the members of board committees for their services as directors and members 

of committees), as set out in the integrated annual report on page 60.”

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on 

the resolution. 
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6. ordinary resolution number 6

General authority to directors to allot and issue authorised but unissued ordinary shares

“Resolved that the authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the Company be and are hereby placed under the control  

and authority of the directors of the Company and that the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised and 

empowered to allot, issue and otherwise dispose of such shares to such person or persons on such terms and conditions and  

at such times as the directors of the Company may from time to time and in their discretion deem fit, subject to the provisions of 

the	Companies	Act,	the	MoI	of	the	Company	and	the	JSe	Listings	Requirements,	when	applicable,	such	authority	to	remain	in	force	

until the next annual general meeting.”

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 50% of the votes exercised on  

the resolution. 

7. ordinary resolution number 7

General authority to issue shares for cash

“Resolved that the directors are hereby authorised as a general authority to allot and issue the authorised but unissued shares in 

the	capital	of	the	Company,	for	cash,	subject	to	the	Companies	Act,	the	MoI	of	the	Company,	the	JSe	Listings	Requirements,	 

provided that:

(a)   the equity securities be of a class already in issue or, where this is not the case, must be limited to such securities or rights 

that	are	convertible	into	a	class	already	in	issue;	

(b)   the equity securities must be issued to public shareholders, as defined in the JSE Listing Requirements, and not to  

related	parties;	

(c)    the equity securities which are the subject of a general issue for cash:

  (1)  may not exceed 50% of the Company’s listed equity securities as at the date of the passing of the notice of the annual 

general meeting limited to 230 519 160 shares seeking the general issue for cash authority, provided that: 

   (i)  the authority shall be valid until Ansys’ next annual general meeting, or for 15 months from the date on which the 

general issue for cash ordinary resolution was passed, whichever period is shorter subject to the requirements of 

the	JSe	and	to	any	other	restrictions	set	out	in	this	authority;	

   (ii)  the calculation of the Company’s listed equity securities must be a factual assessment of theCompany’s listed 

equity	securities	as	at	the	date	of	the	this	annual	general	meeting,	excluding	treasury	shares;	

    (iii)  any equity securities issued under the authority during the period contemplated in(c)(1)(i) above must be deducted 

from	such	number	in	(1)	above;	and	

   (iv)  in the event of a sub-division or consolidation of issued equity securities during the period contemplated in (c)(1)(i), 

the	existing	authority	must	be	adjusted	accordingly	to	represent	the	same	allocation	ratio;	

(d)   the maximum discount at which equity securities may be issued is 10% of the weighted average traded price of such equity 

securities measured over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the Company 

and the party subscribing for the securities. The JSE should be consulted for a ruling if the applicant’s securities have not 

traded	in	such	30-business	day	period;	

(e)			 	a	Securities	exchange	News	Service	(“SeNS”)	announcement	giving	full	details,	including	the	impact	on	net	asset	value,	net	

tangible asset value, earnings and headline earnings per share will be published at the time of any issue representing, on a 

cumulative	basis	within	a	financial	year,	5%	or	more	of	the	number	of	securities	in	issue	prior	to	the	issue;	and

(f)   this authority includes any options/convertible securities that are convertible into an existing class of equity securities.”

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the approval of 75% majority of the votes cast by shareholders present or represented 

by proxy at this annual general meeting will be required for this authority to become effective.

8. ordinary resolution number 8

Authority to sign all required documents

“Resolved that, subject to the passing of the ordinary and special resolutions at the meeting, any director of the Company or the 

Company Secretary shall be and is hereby authorised to sign all documents and perform all acts which may be required to give 

effect to such ordinary and special resolutions.”
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9. Special resolution number 1

General authority to acquire (repurchase) shares

“Resolved that the Company be and is hereby authorised by way of a specific approval as contemplated in section 48 of the 

Companies Act, to acquire from time to time any or all of the issued ordinary shares of the Company, upon such terms and 

conditions	and	in	such	amounts	as	the	directors	of	the	Company	may	from	time	to	time	determine,	but	subject	to	the	MoI	of	the	

Company and the provisions of the Companies Act, when applicable and provided:

That the Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company is hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, from time to time,  

to acquire ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, provided that:

•	 	Any	such	acquisition	of	ordinary	shares	shall	be	effected	through	the	order	book	operated	by	the	JSe	trading	system	and	done	

without	any	prior	understanding	or	arrangement	with	the	counterparty;

•	 	This	general	authority	shall	be	valid	until	the	earlier	of	the	Company’s	next	annual	general	meeting	or	the	variation	or	

revocation of such general authority by special resolution at any subsequent general meeting of the Company, provided that it 

shall	not	extend	beyond	15	months	from	the	date	of	passing	of	this	special	resolution	number	1;

•	 	An	announcement	will	be	published	as	soon	as	the	Company	or	any	of	its	subsidiaries	have	acquired	ordinary	shares	

constituting, on a cumulative basis, 3% of the number of ordinary shares in issue and for each 3% in aggregate of the initial 

number	acquired	thereafter,	in	compliance	with	paragraph	11.27	of	the	JSe	Listings	Requirements;

•	 	Acquisitions	of	shares	in	aggregate	in	any	one	financial	year	may	not	exceed	20%	of	the	Company’s	ordinary	issued	share	

capital,	as	the	case	may	be,	as	at	the	date	of	passing	of	this	special	resolution	number	1;

•	 	ordinary	shares	may	not	be	acquired	at	a	price	greater	than	10%	above	the	weighted	average	of	the	market	value	at	which	

such ordinary shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date the transaction is effected. The JSE should be 

consulted	for	a	ruling	if	the	Company’s	securities	have	not	traded	in	such	five	business	day	period;

•	 	The	board	of	directors	authorises	the	acquisition,	the	Company	passes	the	solvency	and	liquidity	test	and	that	from	the	time	

that	the	test	is	done,	there	are	no	material	changes	to	the	financial	position	of	the	Company;

•	 	The	Company	has	been	given	authority	by	its	MoI;

•	 	At	any	point	in	time,	the	Company	and/or	its	subsidiaries	may	only	appoint	one	agent	to	effect	any	such	acquisition;

•	 	The	Company	and/or	its	subsidiaries	undertaking	that	they	will	not	enter	the	market	to	so	acquire	the	Company’s	shares	until	

the Company’s Designated Advisor has provided written confirmation to the JSE regarding the adequacy of the Company’s 

working	capital	in	accordance	with	Schedule	25	of	the	JSe	Listings	Requirements;	

•	 	A	resolution	has	been	passed	by	the	board	of	directors	confirming	that	the	board	has	authorised	the	general	repurchase,	that	

the Company passed the solvency and liquidity test and that since the test was done, there have been no material changes to 

the	financial	position	of	the	group;	and

•	 	The	Company	and/or	its	subsidiaries	not	acquiring	any	shares	during	a	prohibited	period,	as	defined	in	the	JSe	Listings	

Requirements unless a repurchase programme is in place, where dates and quantities of shares to be traded during the 

prohibited	period	are	fixed	and	full	details	of	the	programme	have	been	disclosed	in	an	announcement	over	SeNS	prior	to	the	

commencement of the prohibited period.”

  Although no such repurchases are currently in contemplation, the directors undertake that they will not effect a general 

repurchase of shares as contemplated above unless the following can be met:

	 •	 	The	Company	and	the	group	would	in	the	ordinary	course	of	their	business	be	able	to	pay	their	debts;

	 •	 	The	consolidated	assets	of	the	Company	and	the	group	would	exceed	the	consolidated	liabilities	of	the	Company	and	the	

group respectively, such assets and liabilities being fairly valued and recognised and measured in accordance with the 

accounting	policies	used	in	the	financial	statements	contained	in	the	integrated	annual	report;

	 •	 	The	issued	capital	and	reserves	of	the	Company	and	the	group	would	be	adequate	for	the	purposes	of	the	Company	and	the	

group’s	business;	and

	 •	 	The	Company	and	the	group’s	working	capital	would	be	sufficient	for	their	requirements.

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 75% of the votes exercised on  

the resolution. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
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9. Special resolution number 1 continued

General authority to acquire (repurchase) shares continued
Reason and effect of special resolution number 1
The reason and effect for special resolution number 1 is to grant the Company general approval to acquire its own issued shares  

on such terms, conditions and such amounts determined from time to time by the directors of the Company by the limitations set 

out above.

Pursuant to and in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the directors of the Company hereby state:

•	 	The	directors	of	the	Company	have	no	specific	intention	to	effect	the	provisions	of	special	resolution	number	1	but	will,	

however, continually review this position having regard to prevailing circumstances. 

•	 	The	intention	of	the	Company	and/or	its	subsidiaries	is	to	utilise	the	general	authority	to	repurchase;	if	at	some	future	date	the	

cash resources of the Company are in excess of its requirements.

•	 	The	method	by	which	the	Company	and	any	of	its	subsidiaries	intends	to	repurchase	its	securities	and	the	date	on	which	such	

repurchase will take place, has not yet been determined.

The JSE Listings Requirements require, the following disclosures, which appear in the integrated annual report:

•	 	Directors	and	management	–	refer	to	pages	31	to	35	of	the	integrated	annual	report.

•	 	Major	shareholders	–	refer	to	page	134	of	the	integrated	annual	report.

•	 	Directors’	interests	in	securities	–	refer	to	page	71	of	the	integrated	annual	report.

•	 	Share	capital	of	the	Company	–	refer	to	page	111	of	the	integrated	annual	report.

Litigation statement

The directors, whose names appear on pages 31 to 35 of the integrated annual report of which the notice of annual general 

meeting forms part, are not aware of any legal of arbitration proceedings that are pending or threatened, that may have or had in 

the recent past, being at least the previous 12 months, a material effect on the Ansys group’s financial position.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors, whose names appear on pages 31 to 35 of the integrated annual report, collectively and individually accept 

full responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to this special resolution and certify that, to the best of their 

knowledge and belief, there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statements false or misleading, and that 

all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that this special resolution contains all information required 

by law and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Material changes

Other than the facts and developments reported on in the integrated annual report, there have been no material changes in the 

financial or trading position of the Company and its subsidiaries since the date of signature of the audit report and up to the date 

of the notice of annual general meeting.

The directors have no specific intention, at present, for the Company or its subsidiaries to acquire any of the Company’s shares 

but consider that such a general authority should be put in place should an opportunity present itself to do so during the year, 

which is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The directors are of the opinion that it would be in the best interests of the Company to extend such general authority and 

thereby allow the Company or any of its subsidiaries to be in a position to acquire the shares issued by the Company through the 

order book of the JSE, should the market conditions, tax dispensation and price justify such an action.

10. Special resolution number 2: Remuneration of non-executive directors
“Resolved that the board and committee fees for non-executive directors for the financial year ending 28 February 2016,  

as set out in the note below, be and are hereby authorised, in accordance with section 66 (8) – (9) of the Companies Act and  

that the Company may continue to pay directors’ fees at the annual rates specified in the note below, for the period from  

28 February 2015 until the Company’s 2016 annual general meeting.” 
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10. Special resolution number 2: Remuneration of non-executive directors (continued)

existing 2015 fee Proposed 2016 fee

Type of meeting Monthly
Meetings 

per annum annualised annualised

board

chairperson 360 000 360 000
Retainer  30 000 12 360 000 360 000
Meeting	attendance – 4 – –

Members 128 000 152 000
Retainer 8 000 12 96 000 120 000
Meeting	attendance 8 000 4 32 000 32 000

aRc

chairperson 24 000 60 000
Retainer – – – 60 000
Meeting	attendance 8 000 3 24 000 –

Members 24 000 32 000
Retainer – – – –
Meeting	attendance 8 000 3 24 000 32 000

SeRc

chairperson 8 000 24 000
Retainer – – – 24 000
Meeting	attendance 8 000 1 8 000 –

Members 8 000 16 000
Retainer – – – –
Meeting	attendance 8 000 1 8 000 16 000

The Social, Ethics and Remuneration Committee (“SERC”) relied on a salary benchmark and survey from 21st Century,  
an	independent	third	party,	to	determine	whether	the	Non-executive	Directors	(“NeD”)	fees	presented	to	shareholders	for	
approval, were in line with market trends. Further to the aforementioned, the SERC was desirous to determine whether the  
NeD	fees	were	aligned	with	the	Remuneration	Philosophy	and	Policy	of	the	Company.	In	this	regard,	shareholders	are	reminded	
that part of the philosophy is to remunerate employees and directors fairly and market related in order to retain the necessary 
skill and expertise required.  

The non-executive directors, other than the chairperson of the board, were in the past remunerated on a monthly retainer as 
well as attendance fee per meeting. It is now proposed that non-executive directors, similar to the chairperson of the board, to 
receive monthly remuneration as opposed to a fee per meeting. This recognises the responsibility of directors for the efficient 
control of the company and creates the expectation that the non-executive directors will attend every board or committee 
meetings. A premium is payable to the chairperson of the board, as well as to the chairpersons of the subcommittees 

The percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 75% of the votes exercised on 
the resolution. 

Reason and effect of special resolution number 2
The Companies Act requires shareholder approval of directors’ fees prior to payment of such fees.

11. Special resolution number 3
Financial assistance in terms of section 44 and 45 of the Companies Act as amended
“Resolved that the board of directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised subject to section 44 and 45 of the Companies 
Act,	the	Company’s	MoI	and	the	JSe	Listing	Requirements,	authorise	the	Company	to	provide	direct	or	indirect	financial	
assistance, to a related or interrelated Company or corporation, or to a member of a related or interrelated corporation, provided 
that no such financial assistance may be provided at any time in terms of this authority after the expiry of two years from the 
date of the adoption of this special resolution number 3.” 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
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the percentage of voting rights that will be required for this resolution to be adopted is more than 75% of the votes exercised 
on the resolution. 

Reason and effect of special resolution number 3
The reason for, and effect of, the special resolution referred to above, is to permit the Company to provide direct or indirect 
financial assistance to the entities referred to above.

“This notice constitutes notice in terms of section 45 (5) of the Companies Act that the board has passed the same resolution, 
which resolution will take effect on the passing of special resolution number 3 set out above.”

voTING INSTRUcTIoNS
In terms of the Companies Act, any member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint one or more persons  
as proxy, to attend and speak and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Forms of proxy must be 
deposited at the office of the transfer secretaries not later than 7 September 2015 before the time fixed for the meeting (excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays).

If your Ansys shares have been dematerialised and are held in a nominee account, then your Central Securities Depository 
Participant (“CSDP”) or broker, as the case may be, should contact you to ascertain how you wish to cast your vote at the annual 
general meeting and thereafter cast your vote in accordance with your instructions.

If you have not been contacted it would be advisable for you to contact your CSDP or broker, as the case may be, and furnish them 
with your instructions. If your CSDP or broker, as the case may be, does not obtain instructions from you, they will be obliged to act in 
terms of your mandate furnished to them, or if the mandate is silent in this regard to abstain from voting.

Dematerialised shareholders whose shares are held in a nominee account must not complete the attached form of proxy.  
Unless you advise your CSDP or broker timeously in terms of the agreement between yourself and your CSDP or broker by the cut-off 
time advised by them that you wish to attend the annual general meeting or send a proxy to represent you at the annual general 
meeting, your CSDP or broker will assume you do not wish to attend the annual general meeting or send a proxy. If you wish to 
attend the annual general meeting, your CSDP or broker will issue the necessary letter of representation to you to attend the annual 
general meeting.

Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker, other than “own name” registered dematerialised 
shareholders, who wish to attend the annual general meeting, must request their CSDP or broker to issue them with a letter of 
representation, or they must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in terms of the relevant custody agreement/
mandate entered into between them and the CSDP or broker.

ShaReholdeR RIGhTS
It is requested that forms of proxy should be forwarded to reach the Company’s transfer secretaries at the address given below by 
no	later	than	Monday,	7	September	2015	at	10h00.

In terms of section 63 (2) and 63 (3) of the Companies Act, shareholders or their proxies may participate in the meeting by way of 
telephone conference call and, if they wish to do so:
•	 	must	contact	the	Company	Secretary	(by	email	at	the	address	melinda@fusioncorp.co.za)	by	no	later	than	Monday,	 
7	September	2015	at	10h00	in	order	to	obtain	a	pin	number	and	dial-in	details	for	that	conference	call;

•	 	will	be	required	to	provide	reasonably	satisfactory	identification;	and
•	 	will	be	billed	separately	by	their	own	telephone	service	providers	for	their	telephone	call	to	participate	in	the	meeting.

by order of the board

Melinda Gous
rEprEsEntativE OF: FusiOn COrpOratE sECrEtarial sErviCEs prOpriEtary limitEd

11. Special resolution number 3 continued

Financial assistance in terms of section 44 and 45 of the Companies Act as amended continued
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exPlaNaToRy NoTeS To The NoTIce oF aNNUal GeNeRal MeeTING aNd PRoPoSed ReSolUTIoNS
1.  annual financial statements

The ordinary business to be considered at the annual general meeting of the company is more fully governed in terms of the 

MoI	of	the	company.	In	short,	the	ordinary	business	at	an	annual	general	meeting	is	to	receive	and	consider	the	annual	financial	

statements, to declare or sanction dividends (where applicable), to elect directors, auditors and other officers in the place of 

those	retiring	by	rotation	or	otherwise	and	to	elect	the	Audit	and	Risk	Committee.	No	special	business	shall	be	transacted	at	an	

annual general meeting unless due notice thereof has been given. 

2. Re-election and rotation of directors
The	rotation	of	directors	is	fully	governed	in	terms	of	articles	26.6.1	of	the	MoI	of	the	Company,	which	require	one	third	of	the	

directors to retire from office at the annual general meeting. The retiring directors at each annual general meeting shall be 

those who have been longest in office since their last election or appointment. If at the date of the annual general meeting any 

director will have held office for a period of three years since his last election or appointment he shall retire at such meeting 

either as one of the directors to retire in pursuance of the foregoing or additionally thereto. A retiring director shall act as a 

director	throughout	the	meeting	at	which	he	retires.	The	retiring	directors	shall	be	eligible	for	re-election.	Sizakele	Mzimela	and	

Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube	offer	themselves	for	re-election.	

3. Re-appointment of external auditor
The Audit and Risk Committee considered and assessed the independence of the external auditor, BDO South Africa Incorporated 

(Pretoria),	Riverwalk	office	Park,	Building	C,	41	Matroosberg	Road,	Ashlea	Gardens,	Pretoria,	South	Africa	in	accordance	

with section 90 of the Companies Act. The Audit and Risk Committee were satisfied with BDO South Africa Incorporated’s 

(Pretoria) independence. Furthermore, the Ansys Audit and Risk Committee has, in terms of paragraph 3.86 of the JSE Listings 

Requirements, considered and satisfied itself that Tinus Jansen van Vuuren the reporting accountant and individual auditor,  

is accredited to appear on the JSE List of Accredited Auditors, in compliance with section 22 of the JSE Listings Requirements.  

The Audit and Risk Committee nominated to reappoint BDO South Africa Incorporated (Pretoria) as the registered auditor for the 

2015 financial year, with Tinus Jansen van Vuuren as the individual designated auditor of the Company for the ensuing year.  

The board has accepted the recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee subject to shareholder approval as required in 

terms of section 90(1) of the Companies Act. 

The auditors will remain the appointed auditors until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.  

The remuneration of the auditors shall be fixed by agreement with the Company.

4. election of audit committee members
In terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act, the Company must elect an Audit Committee comprising at least three members. 

The Audit Committee is no longer a committee of the board, but a committee elected by the shareholders at each annual general 

meeting. The proposed members of the Audit Committee have experience in audit, accounting, economics, human resources, 

commerce and general industry, among others.

The	board	confirms	that	Sizakele	Mzimela	(Chairperson),	Fezile	Dantile	and	Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube	are	independent	

non-executive directors as contemplated in the King III Code of Governance Principles for South Africa and the JSE Listings 

Requirements. Each member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Company is a suitably qualified and skilled director of the 

Company. The members of the committee are not involved in the day-to-day management of the business or have not been so 

involved	at	any	time	of	the	previous	financial	year.	None	of	the	members	are	a	prescribed	officer	or	full-time	employee	of	the	

Company or another related or inter-related company, or have been such an officer or employee at any time during the previous 

three	financial	years.	None	of	the	members	were	a	material	supplier	or	customer	of	the	Company.

5. endorsement of ansys’s remuneration policy
The endorsement of Ansys’s remuneration policy is of an advisory nature only and failure to pass this resolution will therefore 

not have any legal consequences relating to existing arrangements. However, the board will take the outcome of the vote into 

consideration when considering the Company’s remuneration policy in the remuneration of executive directors.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
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6. General authority to directors to allot and issue authorised but unissued ordinary shares
In	terms	of	the	company’s	MoI,	the	board	might	with	the	prior	approval	of	the	Company	in	general	meeting,	subject	to	the	

statutes and the approval of the Listings Division of the JSE (where necessary), issue authorised but unissued shares in the 

Company to such person or person on such terms and conditions and with such rights or restrictions attached thereto as the 

directors may determine.

The existing general authorities granted by the shareholders at the previous annual general meeting, held 28 August 2014, will 

expire at the annual general meeting to be held on 9 September 2015 unless renewed. The authorities will be subject to the 

Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements. The aggregate number of ordinary shares able to be allotted and issued in 

terms of these authorities are limited as set out in the respective resolutions.

The directors request shareholder approval for the renewal of these authorities as it would be advantageous for the business to 

make use of the authority if opportunities arise. 

7. General authorisation to issue shares for cash
This enables the directors to issue shares for cash.

8. authority to sign all required documents
This requests authority to be given to a director or the Company Secretary to sign such documents and execute such actions as 

will be required to register and give effect to the resolutions passed.

9. General authority to acquire (repurchase) shares
This is to grant the company and its subsidiaries a general authority to facilitate the acquisition by the company and/or its 

subsidiaries of the Company’s own shares, which general authority shall be valid until the earlier of the next annual general 

meeting of the Company, provided that this general authority shall not extend beyond 15 months from the date of the passing of 

this special resolution number 1. 

10. Remuneration of non-executive directors
In terms of section 66(8) – (9) of the Companies Act, remuneration may only be paid to directors, for their service as directors, in 

accordance with a special resolution approved by the shareholders within the previous two years and if not prohibited in terms of 

a	company’s	MoI.

11. Financial assistance in terms of section 44 and 45 of the companies act
This general authority would greatly assist the Company inter alia with making inter-company loans to subsidiaries as well as 

granting letters of support and guarantees in appropriate circumstances. The existence of a general shareholder authority would 

avoid the need to refer each instance to members for approval which might impede the negotiations and add time and expense.  

If approved, this general authority will expire at the end of two years.

The board must when considering such assistance either for the specific recipient, or generally for a category ensures that:

-	 The	Company	will	satisfy	the	solvency	and	liquidity	test	immediately	after	providing	the	financial	assistance;	and

- The terms under which the financial assistance is proposed to be given are fair and reasonable to the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS DIARY

Financial year end 28 February

Annual general meeting 9 September 2015

Interim half-year to August 2015 26	November	2015

Announcement of 2015 annual results 29	May	2015

2015 integrated report published 6 August 2015

2015 integrated report posted 6 August 2015
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FORM OF PROxY

aNSyS lIMITed
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 
(Registration number: 1987/001222/06) 
(“Ansys” or “the company”)
ISIN	Code:	ZAe	000097028	
Share	Code:	ANS

FoRM oF PRoxy FoR The aNNUal GeNeRal MeeTING To be held IN The aNSyS boaRdRooM, 140 baUhINIa STReeT, hIGhveld 
TechNo PaRk, ceNTURIoN oN 9 SePTeMbeR 2015 – FoR USe by ceRTIFIcaTed oRdINaRy ShaReholdeRS aNd deMaTeRIalISed 
oRdINaRy ShaReholdeRS wITh “owN NaMe” ReGISTRaTIoN oNly.

Holders of dematerialised ordinary shares other than “own name” registration must inform their CSDP or broker of their intention  
to attend the annual general meeting and request their CSDP to issue them with the necessary authorisation to attend the  
annual general meeting in person or provide their CSDP of broker with their voting instructions should they not wish to attend  
the annual general meeting in person but wish to be represented thereat.

I/We 
(please print names in full)

of (address)                                                          

Being the registered holder(s) of                                        ordinary shares in the capital of the Company do hereby appoint

1. or failing him/her                                                 

2. or failing him/her                             

The chairperson of the annual general meeting as my/our proxy to act on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting of the 
Company which will be held on 9 September 2015  for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without 
modification, the resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote for and/or against the resolutions 
and/or abstain from voting in respect of the shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions:

Please indicate with an “x” in the appropriate spaces provided above how you wish your vote to 
be cast. If no indication is given, the proxy will be entitled to vote or abstain as he/she deems fit.

Number of ordinary shares

For against abstain

1. Ordinary resolution number 1: Approval of financial statements

2. Ordinary resolution number 2: Re-election of directors who retire by rotation: 

2.1			Sizakele	Mzimela	

2.2		Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube

3. Ordinary resolution number 3: Reappointment of external auditor

4. Ordinary resolution number 4: Election of Audit and Risk Committee

4.1			Sizakele	Mzimela		(Chairperson)

4.2		Fezile	Dantile

4.3		Nonhlanhla	Mjoli-Mncube

5. Ordinary resolution number 5: Endorsement of Ansys remuneration policy

6.
Ordinary resolution number 6: General authority to directors to allot and issue authorised but 
unissued ordinary shares

7. Ordinary resolution number 7: General authority to issue shares for cash

8. Ordinary resolution number 8: Authority to sign documents

9. Special resolution number 1: General authority to acquire (repurchase) shares

10. Special resolution number 2: Remuneration of non-executive directors

11. Special resolution number 3: Financial assistance

Signed at                                                                                                                              on                                               2015

Signature              

Assisted by me
(where applicable)

Please read the notes on the reverse side hereof. INTEGRATED ANNuAl REpoRT
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In terms of section 58 of the Companies Act:
•	 	a	shareholder	of	a	company	may,	at	any	time	and	in	accordance	with	the	provisions	of	section	58	of	the	Companies	Act,	appoint	

any individual (including an individual who is not a shareholder) as a proxy to participate in, and speak and vote at,  
a	shareholders’	meeting	on	behalf	of	such	shareholder;

•	 	a	proxy	may	delegate	her	or	his	authority	to	act	on	behalf	of	a	shareholder	to	another	person,	subject	to	any	restriction	set	out	in	
the	instrument	appointing	such	proxy;

•	 	irrespective	of	the	form	of	instrument	used	to	appoint	a	proxy,	the	appointment	of	a	proxy	is	suspended	at	any	time	and	to	the	
extent that the relevant shareholder chooses to act directly and in person in the exercise of any of such shareholder’s rights as a 
shareholder;

•	 	any	appointment	by	a	shareholder	of	a	proxy	is	revocable,	unless	the	form	of	instrument	used	to	appoint	such	proxy	states	
otherwise;

•	 	if	an	appointment	of	a	proxy	is	revocable,	a	shareholder	may	revoke	the	proxy	appointment	by:	(i)	cancelling	it	in	writing,	or	
making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy and (ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the 
relevant	company;

•	 	a	proxy	appointed	by	a	shareholder	is	entitled	to	exercise,	or	abstain	from	exercising,	any	voting	right	of	such	shareholder	
without direction, except to the extent that the relevant company’s memorandum of incorporation, or the instrument appointing 
the	proxy,	provides	otherwise;	and

•	 	if	the	instrument	appointing	a	proxy	or	proxies	has	been	delivered	by	a	shareholder	to	a	company,	then,	for	so	long	as	that	
appointment remains in effect, any notice that is required in terms of the Companies Act or such company’s memorandum of 
incorporation to be delivered to a shareholder must be delivered by such company to:

	 –	 	the	relevant	shareholder;	or
 –  the proxy or proxies, if the relevant shareholder has: (i) directed such company to do so, in writing and (ii) paid any reasonable 

fee charged by such company for doing so.

1.  An ordinary shareholder holding dematerialised shares by “own name” registration, or who holds shares that are not 
dematerialised, may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the ordinary shareholder’s choice in 
the space provided, with or without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”. The person whose name stands first 
on the proxy form and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of those 
whose names follow. Should a proxy not be specified, this will be exercised by the chairman of the annual general meeting.  
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

2.  An ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and, on a poll, to that proportion of the total votes in the 
Company which the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the shares held by him/her bears to the aggregate amount of the 
nominal value of all the shares issued by the Company. An ordinary shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated 
by inserting the relevant number of votes exercisable by the ordinary shareholder in the appropriate box(es). An “X” in the 
appropriate box indicates the maximum number of votes exercisable by that shareholder. Failure to comply with the above will 
be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the annual general meeting as he/she deems fit in respect 
of the entire shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat. An ordinary shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes 
exercisable by the ordinary shareholder, or to cast all those votes exercised in the same way, but the total of the votes cast and in 
respect whereof abstention is recorder may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the ordinary shareholder.

3.  If any ordinary shareholder does not indicate on this instrument that his/her proxy is to vote in favour of or against any 
resolution or to abstain from voting, or give contradictory instructions, or should any further resolution(s) or any amendment(s) 
which may be properly put before the annual general meeting be proposed, the proxy shall be entitled to vote as he/she  
thinks fit.

4.  The completion and lodging of this proxy form will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the annual general 
meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat instead of any proxy appointed in terms thereof.

5.  Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing the proxy form in a representative capacity must be 
attached to this form, unless previously recorded by the Company or waved by the chairman of the annual general meeting.

6.  The chairman of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any proxy form which is completed and/or received other than 
in compliance with these notes.

7.  A proxy may not delegate his/her authority to act on behalf of the shareholder, to another person.
8.  It is requested that this proxy form should be completed and returned to the Company’s transfer secretaries, Computershare 
Investor	Services	Proprietary	Limited,	70	Marshall	Street,	Johannesburg	2001	(Po	Box	61051,	Marshalltown,	2017),	so	as	to	reach	
them	by	no	later	than	Monday,	7	September	2015	at	10h00.

9.  Should a shareholder lodge the proxy form with the transfer secretaries less than 24 hours before the annual general meeting, 
such shareholder will also be required to furnish a copy of such proxy form to the chairman of the annual general meeting before 
the appointed proxy exercises any such shareholder’s rights at the annual general meeting.

ADDITIONAL FORMS OF PROXY ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE TRANSFER SECRETARIES ON REQUEST.

SUMMARY OF RIGHTS CONTAINED IN  
SECTION 58 OF THE COMPANIES ACT

NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROxY
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aNSyS lIMITed
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa) 

(Registration number: 1987/001222/06) 

(“Ansys” or “the company”)

ISIN	Code:	ZAe	000097028	

Share	Code:	ANS

To:

The Directors

Ansys Ltd

I/we   , the undersigned
(please print names in full)

of (address)                 

being the registered holder(s) of       ordinary shares in the capital of the company do hereby elect to 

receive any documents or notices from Ansys, by electronic post, to the extent that the company is permitted to so distribute any 

notices, documents, records or statements in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, and any and every other statute, 

ordinance, regulation or rule in force from time to time, including the Listings Requirements of the JSE Ltd, concerning companies 

and affecting Ansys.

I/we hereby furnish the following email address and/or fax number for such electronic communication:

Email address                

Fax number                

Any written amendment or withdrawal of any such notice of consent by me/us, shall only take effect if signed by me/us and 

received by the company.

Signed at                                                                                                                              on                                               2015

Signature                

Assisted by me

(where applicable)

Please complete, detach and return this election form to ansys’ company Secretary, Fusion corporate Secretarial Services 

Proprietary limited, Po box 68528, highveld, 0169 by no later than Monday, 7 September 2015 at 10h00.

ELECTION FORM
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contacts

REGISTERED OFFICE AND  140 Bauhinia Street, Highveld Techno Park, Centurion, Pretoria

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS Telephone: (012) 749 1800

 Facsimile: (012) 665 2767

 Website: www.ansys.co.za

COMPANY SECRETARY Fusion Corporate Secretarial Services Proprietary Limited

 1st Floor, The Greens Office Park, Charles de Gaulle Street

 Highveld Techno Park, Centurion

 PO Box 68528, Highveld 0169

 Telephone: (087) 550 1123

 Facsimile: (086) 616 6545

TRANSFER SECRETARIES Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited

 Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg 2001

 PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 2107

 Telephone: (011) 370 5000

 Facsimile: (011) 688 5210

DESIGNATED ADVISOR  Exchange Sponsors (2008) Proprietary Limited

 44A Boundry Road, Inanda 2196

 PO Box 411216 Craighall 2024

 Telephone: (011) 880 2113

 Facsimile: (011) 447 4824

REGISTERED AUDITORS BDO South Africa Incorporated

 Riverwalk Office Park, Building C, 3rd Floor

 41 Matroosberg Road, Ashlea Gardens, Pretoria 0081

 Telephone: (012) 433 0160

 Facsimile: (012) 346 8233

ATTORNEYS Edelstein Bosman Incorporated

 220 Lange Street, New Muckleneuk, Pretoria 0181

 PO Box 178, Groenkloof 0027

 Telephone: (012) 452 8900

 Facsimile: (012) 452 8901

BANKERS Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

 Hillcrest Office Park, 177 Dyer Street, Falcon Place, Hillcrest

 PO Box 62325, Marshalltown 2107

 Telephone: (012) 364 3121

 Facsimile: (086) 507 9812

 First National Bank Limited

 Ground Floor, 267 West Avenue, Centurion

 PO Box 12154, Centurion 0046

 Telephone: (012) 643 7766

 Facsimile: (012) 634 7777
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